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\' STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE MT’

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9520 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9520
Fax: 603-271-4643 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Diane Langley
Director

September 3, 2014
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION Y Ol LSV M
Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care

Services to amend an existing agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire,

Inc. (Vendor # 177204), 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103, to continue managing the statewide

Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support services to New Hampshire National Guard,

Reserves and Active Duty service members, who are deployed or returning from combat, and their families

by adjusting certain budget line items for State Fiscal Year 2014 and State Fiscal Year 2015 in order to

meet specific needs effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval with no change to the end

date of September 30, 2014. This is a zero cost amendment.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010 item #88
and subsequently amended on September 22, 2010 Item #185A, June 8, 2011 Item #115, June 20, 2012
Item #74, September 19, 2012 Item #69A, March 6, 2013 Item #15, April 17, 2013 Late Item B, May 1, 2013
Item #37C and July 24, 2013 Item #28.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015.

05-95-95-958010-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Revised

Modified increase Modified

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs  $ 888,025 $ 888,025
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,409,816 $2,409,816
2012 102-5007 31 Contracts for Program Svcs ~ $2,000,000 $2,000,000
2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 617,423 $ 617,423

05-95-49-490510-2983 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV OF
COMM BASED CARE SVC, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Increase/ Revised
Modified (Decrease)  Modified
Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 893,938 ($77,460) $ 816,478
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 127,551 $77.460 $ 205,011
Total $6,936,753 $0 $6,936,753
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this zero cost amendment is to allow the vendor to adjust certain budget lines for
State Fiscal Year 2014 and State Fiscal Year 2015 in order to meet contractual needs in order to continue
the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support
services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families
who are deployed or returning from combat. Adjustments to budget line items for this program are
inevitable because Vendor cannot determine when or how often the New Hampshire National Guard will
deploy troops until after orders have been received. Therefore, the Vendor must adjust budget line items to
meet the specific needs of families and service members preparing for or returning from active duty.

The Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a community-based support system, which
integrates current veteran services with existing service delivery systems and allows local access for a full-
spectrum of care. It is a preventive approach supporting families and military members’ pre, during and
post deployments. Crisis prevention for families and military members is addressed through early
development of care plans by professional care providers. The care plan is a risk assessment used to
organize support services early, thereby reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service
members and families involved in the war effort. Case managers proactively address care plan needs and
refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of
Health and Human Services and the National Guard released a Request for Proposals to solicit vendors for
the implementation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1,
2009. The Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human Services website
and a notice of the release was sent to all known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was
selected following a comprehensive evaluation of three proposals received. The Request for Proposals
stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a vendor to manage the program. The
selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest price bid but they received the
overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. Additionally, they have
contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the pilot program
since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged
in the deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance
measures and other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices,
program/financial reports and site reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care Services.
The contractor has met or exceeded performance criteria during the prior contract periods.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize this amendment, military
men and women and their families will not receive community-based support services pre, during and post-
deployment in active military duty.
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Area served: Statewide.

Source of funds: 100% other funds (federal funds received and transferred from the State of New
Hampshire’s Adjutant General’s Department).

In the event federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested to
support this request.

RegpecHully submitted,

Ik

Sheri L. Rockburn
Chief Financial Officer

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



BiD LIST FOR RFP # 10 DCBCS-CBMP-DCSP-02

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND AND MANAGEMENT OF DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUPPORT PROGRAM

BIiDDER'S NAME/ADDRESS:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH
Family Strength, 85 North State Street, Concord, NH
New Hampshire Children's Trust Fund, 10 Ferry Street, Suite 315, Concord,NH
RECOMMENDATION : Contract with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Jo Moncher-Evaluator

Criteria/Max. Pts.

Easter Seals

Familystrength

NH Childrens Trust

Bureau Chief Agency Capacity (30) 26 24 17
DHHS Community Based Military Programs Workplan {50) 46 39 26
Budget (15) 13 13 8
Format (5) 5 5 4
' Points: 90 81 55
Ranking: 1 2 3

William Howley-Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
Financial Manager Agency Capacity (30) 29 24 19
DHHS Community Based Care Services Workplan (50) 48 40 33
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Poinis: 96 82 63
Ranking: 1 2 3

Col. Greenwood

Easter Seals

Familystrength

NH Childrens Trust

J-1 Agency Capacity (30) 27 24 12
New Hampshire National Guard Worlplan (50) 49 43 17
Budget (15) 14 13 11

Format (5) 5 5 5

Points: 95 85 45

Ranking: 1 2 3

Easter Seals

NH Childrens Trust

Col. Martell Familystrength
Joint Chief of Staff Agency Capacity (30) 20 18 11
New Hampshire Nationa! Guard Workplan (50) 33 26 11
Budget (15) 11 8 4
Format (5) 5 3 3
Points: 69 55 29
Rankijg: 1 2 3

Col. Protzmann Evaluator

Easter Seals

Familystrength

NH Childrens Trust

RFP DCSP BID LIST.xis

2nd Wing Commander Agency Capacity (30) 26 22 15
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 42 35 31
Budget (15) 14 11 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Points: 87 73 62
Ranking: 1 2 3
Average Scorgs Easter Seals Familystrength  NH Childrens Trust
Poinis: 84 71 45
Ranking: 1 2 3
Bid Amounts Easter Seals Familystrength  NH Childrens Trust
SFY 2010 (3/1/10 - 6/30/10)| $ 888,025 | § 611,818 | § 799,999
SFY 2011 (7/1/10 - 9/30/10)] $ 604,816 | $ 523,671 | $ 600,000
Total:| § 1,492,841 | $§ 1,135,489 ) § 1,399,999
in-Kind Funds:[ § 155,182 ] § 14,834 [ § 67,792
3/4/2010




New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Amendment to the Deployment Cycle Support Program Contract

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #9 to the Deployment Cycle Support Program Contract

This 9th Amendment to the Deployment Cycle Support Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #9") dated this 3rd day of September, 2014, is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department”) and Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with
a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on March 24, 2010, and amended by an agreement (Amendment #1
to the Contract) approved on September 22, 2010 (Item #185A), and amended by an
agreement (Amendment #2 to the Contract) approved on June 8, 2011 (Item #115), and
amended by an agreement (Amendment #3 to the Contract) approved on June 20, 2012
(Item #74), and amended by an agreement (Amendment #4 to the Contract) approved
on September 19, 2012 (Item #69A) ), and amended by an agreement (Amendment #5
to the Contract) approved on March 6, 2013 (Item #15), and amended by an agreement
(Amendment #6 to the Contract) approved on April 17, 2013 (Late Item B), and
amended by an agreement (Amendment #7 to the Contract) approved on May 1, 2013
(Item #37C), and amended by an agreement (Amendment #8 to the Contract) approved
on July 24, 2013 (Item #28), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 the State may amend
the agreement by written instrument of the parties upon approval of the Governor and
Executive Council;

WHEREAS the parties agree to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Year 2014
and 2015; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc.
Amendment #9
Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Amendment to the Deployment Cycle Support Program Contract

To amend as follows:

1. Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, Paragraph 1, to read:
Service Rate | SFY 2010 | SFY 2011 SFY 2012 SFY SFY 2014 SFY 2015 | Total
2013
Deployment | Cost
Cycle Reim
Support burse $888,025 $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 | $617,423 816,478 205,011 $6,936,753
Program ment

2. Exhibit B-1, Contract Budget Form is replaced with Amendment #9 — Exhibit B-1,
Contract Budget Form.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Amendment #9

Page 2 of 4




New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Amendment to the Deployment Cycle Support Program Contract

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
De ment of Health and Human Services

DatZ// ‘/,/ /4 0{ Kwﬁ/

Sher’L. Rockburn’
Chief Financial Officer

Easter Seals of New Hampshire, Inc.

7/5/}(!/’// WM/L/Z’\_/

Date Name: =/, /€l 710
Title: 8/55,

Acknowledgement:

State of Ngw Hampsinice, County of Hille bhocnoglh on Suprambar 3 2014
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the berson identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Mame and Lillg/of Notary or Justice of the Peace

(N Y M. BOELEE, Notary Public
ly Commission Expires: Oct. 21, 2014

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Amendment #9
Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health & Human Services
Amendment to the Deployment Cycle Support Program Contract

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

A4 /1 ,
Date '{ ’/ Name: M%(,\ A\{AQ
)

Title: ‘M@

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, inc.
Amendment #9
Page 4 of 4
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State of Netw Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New 1lampshire, do hereby
certify that Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed November 6, 1967. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this officc

is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WIIEREOF, I hereto
sct my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshirc.
this 10" day of April A.ID. 2014

ey Sk

William M. Gardner
Secretary of Statc
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CERTIFICATE OF YOTE / AUTHORIZATION

I, Betty Burke, do hereby certify that:
1. I am the duly elected Assistant Secretary of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation duly held on June 11, 2014.

RESOLVED: To authorize the president, chief operating officer/chief financial officer, vice
president of finance, senior vice president of human resources and the legal counsel of the
corporation, or any one of them acting alone, to execute contracts, leases and documents,
which have been approved in accordance with the policies of the corporation and its fiscal
authorities adopted by the board of directors and to include within that authority Easter Seals
New York, Inc., Easter Seals Maine, Inc., Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (Farnum Center), Webster Place Center, Inc., Special
Transit Services, Inc. or Agency Realty, Inc.

3. [ further certify that  Elin Treanor is the CFO of Easter Seals
New Hampshire, Inc., and a/l its subsidiaries, and is still qualified and serving in such
capacity.

4. The foregoing resolution has not been amended or revoked and remains in full force

and effect as of SELTEMRCER. 3, ¢ :

Bottr £ burd

Assistant SEcretary

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 5@5 day of

- Fﬁv on\oae20 11 .

Notary Fublic \venby M BOELEE, Notary Public
f My Commission Expires: Oct. 21, 2014




Client#: 497072 EASTESEA7

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE o

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate hoider Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 06“1“:1'

USI Insurance Services LLC P[ HONNEO £xy: 855-874-0123 X ey 603-625-1107
3 Executive Park Dr., Suite 300 EMAL _ sandy.lacroix@usi.biz

Bedford, NH 03110 -  INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE Nk
855-874-0123 iwsuren A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850

INSURED :
Easter Seals NH, Inc. INSURER B :

Easter Seals NY, Inc. :::3::::
555 Auburn Street ' INSURERE : o
Manchester, NH 03103 ‘ .

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

L TYPE OF INSURANCE by POLICY NUMBER (RSN (s ng LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY X | X |PHPK1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 eacH occuaasncs 51,000,000
X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMIREIQRENTED 1 |$100,000
ctamsmape | X/ occur . MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
X: Professional Liab | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
_ _GENERAL AGGREGATE 153,000,000 |
| GEN'L AGGREGATE lerr APPLIES PER: ! | PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
_ roucy. |5 o _ - . ; i $
A _AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ' PHPK1220846 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 FEhesten "¢ ™7 141,000,000
X any auto ' BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$
T ALLOWNED SCHEDULED -
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY {Per acciden) | 5
i X X | Norownep PROPERTY DAMAGE s
: HIRED AUTOS {Per_acedent) — ]
s
A | X UMBRELLALIAB . X | occun PHUBA471553 09/01/2014 09/01/2015 EACH OCCURRENGE $15,000.000
_ EXCESSLIAB | | GLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE 15,000,000
DED X. nmuﬂoussmooo o I ) $
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN' ‘ Yot | 189
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE |
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A EL BACH ACCIDENT 8
(Mendetory In W) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §
If yes, describe ul
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below . L ] ) . E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT  §

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Altach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, If more space is required)
“*Supplemental Names**: Easter Seals NY, Inc., Easter Seals ME, Inc., STS, Inc., Agency Realty, Inc.,

Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabllitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum Center,
Easter Seals VT, Inc.,- The General Liability policy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional Insured
Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Walver of Subrogation status to the Certificate
Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the named insured and the

(See Attached Descriptions) »
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION .
State of NH SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Dept. of Health & Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of 2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
#513141709/M13136562 LXGzZpP



N
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE %05/30/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1-617-723-7775 ﬁguEACT Michael Boisvert
Hays Companies of New England
¥ o P ONE Exty: 617.778.5040 (AlS, No): 617 .723.5155
133 Federal Street E-DMIIJNR'ESS: mboisvert@hayscompanies.com
2nd Floor
Boston, MA 02110 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A: UNITED STATES FIRE INS CO 21113
INSURED INSURERB :
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
INSURERC :
555 Auburn Street INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03103-4803 INSURER E :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 39998963 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR| WVD POLICY NUMBER MM/DD (MM/DDIYYYY) LiMITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $
I CLAIMS-MADE D OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | §
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | §
GENERAL AGGREGATE $
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $
POLICY RO LOG $
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CE(;hggl_"NEEtSINGLE M R
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Per person) | $
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED "
AR Fese BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED 1 ‘ RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION _ 1/01/15| x| WCSTATU- OTH-
A | AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 406-6810956 01/01/14 01/01/15 X | RESTAC | |9
ANY PROPRIETORIPARTNERIEXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED D N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 1,000,000
if yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
Evidence of Insurance as respects Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Dept of Health & Human Services THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
DCYF & DJJS ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord, NH 03301 ?CCJ\/\_/
| USA

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
MCrosby
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the statements of financial position as of August 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC



To the Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, and changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matter

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis
rather than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 14,
2013 on our consideration of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

._Ba.Ker kLm'ﬂr\ e %65

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 14, 2013



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable, less contractual allowance of
$210,300 in 2013 and $131,500 in 2012, and allowance for
doubtful accounts of $930,400 in 2013 and $395,000 in 2012
Contributions receivable, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $25,500 in 2013 and $25,000 in 2012
Current portion of assets limited as to use
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use, net of current portion

Fixed assets, net

Property held for sale

Bond issuance costs, net

Investments, at fair value

Beneficial interest in trusts held by others and other assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Lines of credit
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Rate reserves
Current portion of deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreements
Current portion of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

Deferred revenue, net of current portion
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreements, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

See accompanying notes.

2013 2012
$ 3,042,621 $ 4,402,187
247,471 441,980
11,224,708 9,321,570
686,110 491,729
541,961 458,005
783.844 1,304,173
16,526,715 16,419,644
4,558,513 5,017,773
28,066,884 25,132,481
822,504 910,171
244,751 254,390
14,264,341 13,005,757
6.830.800 _6.620.011
$71,314.508 $67,360.227
$ 4,212,394 $ 1,982,604
1,812,128 2,630,935
4,143,454 4,362,192
- 435,008
1,866,234 1,757,283
708,132 734,470
796.290 746.716
13,538,632 12,649,208
3,191,386 3,778,487
1,367,458 1,168,659
2,050,214 4,401,508
25318.667 22.923.934
45,466,357 44,921,796
14,767,708 11,937,759
925,437 598,750
10.155,006 _9.901.922
25.848.151  22.438.431
$71,314,508 $67,360,227



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $307,832

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $80,637

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and grants from governmental

agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase in net assets from operations

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

$ 862353 § 1,622,346 § 13,648 $ 2,498,347
857,369 131,154 - 988,523
391,930 51,304 - 443,234
369,823 - — 369,823

1,497,063 (1,497.063) -~ ~
3,978,538 307,741 13,648 4,299,927
66,453,590 - - 66,453,590
24,013,223 - - 24,013,223
4,019,558 - - 4,019,558
681,151 1,141 - 682,292
144,771 - - 144,771
695.295 — — 695,295
96,007,588 1,141 - 96.008.729
99,986,126 308,882 13,648 100,308,656
609,102 - - 609,102
41,275 - - 41,275
87,378,754 — - 87.378.754
88,029,131 - - 88,029,131
9,404,656 - - 9,404,656
1,756,069 — — 1,756,069
11,160,725 — - 11.160.725
99,189,856 - — 99,189,856
121,780 — — 121,780
99,311,636 - - 99.311,636
674,490 308,882 13,648 997,020



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps $ 2,377,632 § - $ - $ 2,377,632
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments 789,496 24,173 - 813,669
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others - - 239,436 239,436
Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment 7.392 — - 7.392
3,174,520 24,173 239,436 3.438.129
Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations 3,849,010 333,055 253,084 4,435,149
Loss from discontinued operations (1.019.061) (6.368) - (1,025.429)
Total increase in net assets 2,829,949 326,687 253,084 3,409,720
Net assets at beginning of year 11.937.759 598,750 9.901,922 22,438.431
Net assets at end of year $14,767,708 $__925,437 $10,155,006 $_ 25,848,151

See accompanying notes.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2012

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions

Special events, net of related
direct costs of $618,599

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $79,441

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:
Fees and grants from governmental
agencies
Other fees and grants
Sales to public
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education
Direct services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services

Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
$ 1,529,794 § 370,723 $ 62,323 § 1,962,840
1,114,326 71,451 - 1,185,777
445,604 32,367 - 477,971
127,761 - - 127,761

482.671 (482,671) - -
3,700,156 (8,130) 62,323 3,754,349
63,215,906 - - 63,215,906
26,755,347 — - 26,755,347
4,057,412 - - 4,057,412
680,465 3,635 - 684,100
140,373 - - 140,373
642,000 - - 642,000
95,491,503 3.635 — 95,495,138
99,191,659 (4,495) 62,323 99,249,487
595,634 - - 595,634
22,251 — - 22,251
86.643.303 - - 86.643.303
87,261,188 - - 87,261,188
8,700,472 - - 8,700,472
1.882.355 — - 1.882.355
10,582,827 -~ — 10,582,827
97,844,015 - - 97,844,015
134,887 — - 134.887
97.978.902 ~ — 97.978.902
1,212,757 (4,495) 62,323 1,270,585



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2012

Other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps
Net unrealized and realized gains
on investments

Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in net assets before
effects of discontinued operations

(Loss) gain from discontinued operations
Total increase in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted _Restricted Restricted Total

$(1,262,396) $ - 3 - $(1,262,396)

562,646 6,681 - 569,327

- - 345,574 345,574

4.442 - - 4,442
(695.308) 6,681 345,574 (343.053)

517,449 2,186 407,897 927,532
(83,341) 2,237 - (81.104)

434,108 4,423 407,897 846,428

11,503,651 594,327  9,494.025  21.592,003

$11.937.759 $__598.750 $9,901,922 $22,438.43]
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:

Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bad debt provision

Increase in beneficial interest in trusts held by others

Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale

Change in fair value of interest rate swaps

Net unrealized and realized gains on investments

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Rate reserve
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash used by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and property held for sale
Cash provided by acquisition
Increase in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of long-term debt
Issuance of long-term debt
Payment for termination of interest rate swap
Repayments on lines of credit
Borrowings on lines of credit
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

10

2013 2012
$ 3,409,720 $ 846,428
1,807,843 1,897,233
774,569 46,344
(239,436) (345,574)
(283,942)  (2,024,351)
(2,377,632)  1,254.211
(813,669) (569,327)
194,509 (218,818)
(2,677,707) 858,969
(194,381) (172,018)
520,329 (203,018)
(4,483) (723,547)
(1,037,545) (405,642)
- (314,557)
(435,008) (656,571)
(478,150) (938,226)
198.799 16,715
(1,636,184)  (1,651,749)
(4,859,057)  (1,794,331)
531,189 3,034,938

- 227,830
(444,915) (624,655)
375304 1.165.832
(4,397,479) 2,009,614
(750,199)  (2,508,652)
3,194,506 360,982
- (159,678)
(27,372,936)  (26,040,436)
29.602.726  27.374.577
4.674.097 (973.207)
(1,359,566) (615,342)
4,402,187 5.017.529

$.3.042621 $_4.402,187



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 012
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid 1,119.0 $__1,225,000

During 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH transferred property with a net carrying value of $16,224 and
$1,513,272, respectively, from fixed assets to property held for sale. Additionally, Easter Seals NH sold
property held for sale with a net carrying value of $1,108,357 in 2012 (see note 13). During 2012, Easter
Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of $1,100,000, which has been recorded as
deferred revenue (see note 5). See also acquisition described in note 2.

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2013 and 2012

Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of ten separate nonprofit
entities: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Easter Seals New York,
Inc. (Easter Seals NY); Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (Easter Seals ME); Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc.
(Easter Seals RI); Agency Realty, Inc. (real estate corporation); The Harbor Schools Incorporated
(Harbor Schools); Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center; Webster Place, Inc. (Webster Place),
which was acquired in 2012 - see note 12; Easter Seals Connecticut, Inc. (Easter Seals CT); and Easter
Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each
subsidiary. Easter Seals NH is affiliated with Easter Seals, Inc. (the national headquarters for the
organization).

On May 22, 2013 the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. voted to dissolve and
transfer the assets and liabilities of Special Transit Services, Inc. to Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY, voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program. On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in
Portland, Maine was transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME
discontinued offering those services. On September 1, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH
voted to discontinue the Raymond Preschool program and surrender the related operating license. On
September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp programs
and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013. On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of
Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all operations of this subsidiary, and also
voted to approve discontinuing the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.
See also note 13.

In May 2013, the Boards of Directors of Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center and Webster
Place voted to merge the two organizations with Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center being the
surviving corporation, having found such merger to be in the best interest of both organizations. The
effective date of the merger is September 1, 2013.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide (1) programs and services for people with disabilities and other
special needs, (2) assistance to people with disabilities and their families, (3) assistance to communities
in identifying and developing needed services for residents, and (4) a climate of acceptance for people
with disabilities and other special needs which will enable them to contribute to the well-being of the
community. Easter Seals NH operates programs throughout New Hampshire, New York, Maine,
Massachusetts (prior to the closure of Harbor Schools), Rhode Island, Vermont and Connecticut.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, overnight repurchase agreements and
money market funds, excluding assets limited as to use.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand. Approximately $2,432,000
and $2,277,000, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately $2,238,000 and
$2,070,000, respectively, of investments were on-hand under this practice as of August 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other
nonoperating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts

Easter Seals NH is the beneficiary of several trusts held by others. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an
asset the fair value of its interest in the trusts and such amount is included in permanently restricted net
assets, based on the underlying donor stipulations. The change in the interest due to fair value change is
recorded within other nonoperating expenses, gains and losses as permanently restricted activity.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at
the date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are
recorded as restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending
resolution of the uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and
equipment are recorded as unrestricted support. See also note 5.

Property held for sale is recorded at the lower of net realizable value or carrying value.

Intangible Assets and Long-Lived Assets

Accounting rules require that intangible assets with estimable or determinable useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and be reviewed by
management for impairment. Based on management’s assessments, there is no impairment of
intangible assets at August 31, 2013. Intangible assets at August 31, 2013 consist of a patient list
obtained in the acquisition of Webster Place (see note 12).
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Expected amortization of intangible assets through the end of their useful lives is as follows:

2014 $ 33,130
2015 33,130
2016 33,130
2017 33,130
2018 33,130
Thereafter 99.393

$265,043

Amortization expense recognized for the patient list in 2013 and 2012 totaled $33,130 and $32,827,
respectively.

When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are
impaired by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the
assets to their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the
assets, impairment has occurred and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates
and assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment.

Based on current facts, estimates and assumptions, management believes that no long-lived assets were
impaired at August 31, 2013 and 2012.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized by the straight-line method over the repayment period of the
related bonds, or the expected time until the next refinancing, whichever is shorter. Amortization
expense recognized during 2013 and 2012 was $9,639 and $36,418, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue generated from services provided to the public is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from clients, third-party payors and others based upon approved rates as services are rendered.
A significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors. As such, Easter Seals NH is dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating
activities. There is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material
amount in the near term. Differences between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently
determined to be recoverable or payable are included in other fees and grants in the year that such
amounts become known. Easter Seals NY recognized additional revenue of approximately $1,046,000
in 2013 due to a favorable rate adjustment approved by the State of New York in April 2013. Easter
Seals NY had also established rate reserves of $435,008 at August 31, 2012 for differences between
rates previously estimated and amounts which will be either recoverable or payable to third-party payors
based upon actual rates approved by third-parties. These rate reserves were reversed in 2013.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A third-party payor for three Easter Seals NY programs began to recoup a facility tax assessment on a
monthly basis in 2013. The recoupment is a part of Easter Seals NY’s reimbursement contract with the
payor. The facility tax assessment is based on approved rates. As of August 31, 2013 the facility tax
assessment due was approximately $138,000, and is recorded in deferred revenue in the accompanying
2013 statement of financial position.

Revenues are recognized as earned, or attributable to the period in which specific terms of the funding
agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred for the purposes specified by
the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregoing amounts are accounted for as deferred
revenue until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are incurred.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an analysis by management of the
collectibility of outstanding balances. Management considers the age of outstanding balances and past
collection efforts in determining the allowance for doubtful accounts. Accounts are charged against the
allowance for doubtful accounts when deemed uncollectible.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when pledged.

Advertising

Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time
records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudited)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as
determined by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with
decisions made by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately
$7,373,000 and $5,979,000 for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY, Easter Seals ME, Easter Seals VT, Easter Seals
Rhode Island, Harbor Schools, Webster Place, Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, Easter
Seals CT and Special Transit Services, Inc. are exempt from both federal and state income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, for Easter Seals NY of the Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law of the State of New York. Agency Realty, Inc. received a determination letter from
the Internal Revenue Service stating that it qualifies for tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(2) of the
Internal Revenue Code.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a
tax position historically taken on various tax exposure items including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in
income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold,
based upon the technical merits of the position.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries
on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the organizations have maintained their tax-
exempt status, do not have any significant unrelated business income, and have taken no uncertain tax
positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to income tax
examinations by the federal or state tax authorities for years prior to 2010.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreements described in note 8. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal
to the net amounts receivable under the swap agreements (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreements. However, Easter Seals NH does not
anticipate nonperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

As of August 31, 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $2,758,346 and
$5,135,978, respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 8. As a result
of changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments and excluding a termination
payment related to one swap agreement of $159,678 in 2012 (see note 8), Easter Seals NH recognized
an increase in net assets of $2,377,632 for the year ending August 31, 2013 and a decrease in net assets
of $1,254,211 for the year ending August 31, 2012 (including increases in net assets of $8,185, included
in discontinued operations) related to swap agreements.

Increase in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other nonoperating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the increase in the fair value of
beneficial interest in trusts held by others, gains and losses on sales and disposals of property, plant and
equipment, and net realized and unrealized gains on investments.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2012 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2013 presentation.

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statement of financial position date are evaluated by management to
determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements. Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal
year end and December 14, 2013, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.

Classification of Net Assets

In accordance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets
are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Gifts are
reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are received with donor
stipulations that limit the use of donated assets. Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use
by Easter Seals NH has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. When a donor
restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished),
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.
Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by Easter Seals NH in
perpetuity, the income from which is expendable to support all activities of the organization, or as
stipulated by the donor.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and
preservation of the fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(¢) general economic conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; (e) the expected total
return from income and the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and
(g) the investment policies of the organization.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds at August 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

2013

Camping program § - $ 1918 $ 363,869 $ 365,787
Other programs - 18,913 340,203 359,116
Operations — - 3.613.207 3,613,207
Total endowment net assets $_— $20,831 $4317.279 $4,338,110
2012

Camping program $ - $ 1,698 $ 362,869 $ 364,567
Other programs - 14,345 327,555 341,900
Operations - - 3.613.207  3,613.207
Total endowment net assets $_— $16,043 $4,303,63 $4,319,674

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

During the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-
related activities:

Temporarily = Permanently

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2011 $ - $ 14,785 $4.241308 $4,256,093
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees - 54,655 - 54,655
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) - 523,768 - 523,768
Contributions - - 62,323 62,323
Appropriated for expenditure - (577.,165) - (577.165)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2012 - 16,043 4,303,631 4,319,674
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees - 18,777 - 18,777
Net appreciation (realized
and unrealized) — 563,208 - 563,208
Contributions - - 13,648 13,648
Appropriated for expenditure — (577.197) - (577,197)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2013 $ = $_ 20,831 $4.317,279 $4.338.110
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Total Non-
Temporarily Permanently Endowment
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Net Assets

2013

Seniors program $ 88,902 $ 11,729 $ - $ 100,631
Veterans program - 517,035 - 517,035
India initiative - 57,881 - 57,881
Other programs - 285,461 - 285,461
Operations 14,678.806 32,500 5.837.727 20,549,033
Total non-endowment net assets $14,767,708  $904,606 $5.837.727 $21,510,041
2012

Seniors program $ 106,866 $ 16,386 $ - $ 123,252
Veterans program - 353,044 - 353,044
India initiative - 51,900 - 51,900
Other programs 35,199 128,877 - 164,076
Operations 11,795,694 32,500 5,598,291 17,426,485
Total non-endowment net assets $11,937,759  $582,707 $5.598.291 $18,118,757

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent
duration. Deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets. There were no deficiencies
between the fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level required by donor
stipulation at August 31, 2013 or 2012.

Investment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of
donor-restricted funds that Easter Seals NH must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period.
Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate
market index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its
endowment funds to provide an average rate of return over a five year period equal to the rate of 2%
over the inflation rate. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

To satisty its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a
greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent
risk constraints.

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Leases

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as
operating leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately
$2,168,000 and $2,101,000 for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Some of these
leases have terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s
option without substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at
August 31, 2013, through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as
follows:

Year Ended August 31:

2014 $1,850,275
2015 1,073,592
2016 850,435
2017 608,811
2018 305,738
Thereafter 371,118

Easter Seals NY leases certain facilities for school operations from unrelated parties at lease terms that
are either below fair market value, or that are almost entirely rent-free. Under accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, lease agreements must be evaluated based upon
their economic substance rather than legal form, and a lease subsidy would be recorded as both
contribution and rental expense. However, Easter Seals NH has determined that such amounts would
not be material to the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Easter Seals NY subleases certain office space located at 11 West 42™ Street in New York to an
unrelated party. The sublease agreement expires in February 2014. Total rental income earned under
this sublease agreement for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $144,000 and
$140,000, respectively.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2013 2012
Buildings $ 33,015,085 § 28,872,993
Land and land improvements 3,494,009 3,493,590
Leasehold improvements 952,100 892,094
Office equipment and furniture 9917,122 9,993,575
Vehicles 3,225,015 3,093,740
Construction in progress 216,678 861.415

50,820,009 47,207,407
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (22,753.125)  (22.074.926)

$.28,066,884 $_25,132,481

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $1,765,074 and $1,827,988 in
2013 and 2012, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets included within
discontinued operations in 2013 and 2012 totaled $191,588 and $287,815, respectively.

During 2012, Easter Seals NH received a donated building with an estimated fair value of
approximately $1,100,000. Under the terms of the donation, for a period of six years, Easter Seals NH
must continue to use the building as a child care center. Should Easter Seals NH cease to operate the
program, or wish to sell or donate the property, Easter Seals NH must first provide the donor with the
opportunity to purchase the property for $1. The contribution representing the fair value of the building
has been recorded as deferred revenue at August 31, 2013 and 2012.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2013 2012
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,513,266 §$ 2,784,158
Certificates of deposit 554,282 1,650,399
Marketable equity securities 2,770,110 2,301,934
Mutual funds 10,992,033 10,504,252
Corporate and foreign bonds 903,497 930,355
Government and agency securities 631.627 310.437

19,364,815 18,481,535

Less: assets limited as to use (5.100.474) (5.475.778)
Total investments, at fair value $14,264,341 $13,005,757
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The composition of assets limited as to use at August 31, 2013 and 2012 is set forth in the table shown
below at fair value. The portion of assets limited as to use that is required for obligations classified as
current liabilities is reported in current assets.

013 2012
Under an agreement with the State of Connecticut, which provides that
the funds be utilized for certain allowable program expenditures:
Cash and cash equivalents $2,310,566 $2,246,143
Certificates of deposit 554,282 1,650,399
Mutual funds 428,148 137,686
Marketable equity securities 151.573 -

3,444,569 4,034,228
Under a deferred compensation plan (see note 7):
Investments 1,367,127 1,167,789
Maintained in escrow to make required
payments on certain bonds (see note 8):

Cash and cash equivalents 288.778 273,761
Total assets limited as to use $5,100,474 $5,475,778

The principal components of investment income and net realized and unrealized gains included in
continuing operations are summarized below. Amounts included in discontinued operations for 2013
and 2012 were not significant.

2013 2012
Unrestricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:
Dividend and interest income $ 681,151 $ 680,465
Net unrealized gains 231,743 393,815
Net realized gains 557,753 168.831

1,470,647 1,243,111
Restricted investment income and unrealized
and realized gains on investments:

Dividend and interest income 1,141 3,635
Net unrealized gains 7,631 1,905
Net realized gains 16,542 4.776

25.314 10316

$1.495,961 $1.253.427
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Employee contributions may be matched by Easter Seals NH as determined in the annual
budget. The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual
maximum amounts. The employer match was approximately $474,000 and $490,000 for the years
ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in
an Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may
make a discretionary contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination,
retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency. FEaster Seals New Hampshire, Inc. contributed
approximately $130,000 and $120,000 to this plan during the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The assets and liabilities associated with this plan were $1,367,127 and $1,167,789 at
August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are included within assets limited as to use and other
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:

[\
—_
(8]
[\
—
N

Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 A, tax exempt, issued through the New

Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority NHHEFA),

with a variable rate determined through weekly remarketing (0.07%

at August 31, 2013) through December 2034, annual principal

payments continually increasing from $385,000 to $1,060,000 with

a final payment of $1,060,000 due December 2034, secured by a

pledge of all gross receipts of Easter Seals NH and certain letters of

credit (see below) $14,660,000 $15,025,000
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010, issued through the Monroe County

Industrial Development Corporation, interest only payments due

through December 2011, after which monthly principal and interest

payments ranging from $10,050 to $21,980 are required through the

maturity date of December 31, 2040. Interest is payable monthly at a

rate equal to 68% of the sum of the monthly LIBOR rate plus 2.65%

(1.93% at August 31,2013) 5,052,360 5,171,840
Mortgage payable to a bank with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 2.65%

(2.83% at August 31, 2013), principal of $9,500 plus interest

payable monthly, with a final payment of $2,299,000 due March

2015, secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT,

excluding certain assets limited as to use totaling $3,444,569 at

August 31, 2013 2,470,000 2,584,000
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 4.25%, principal and interest
of $823 payable monthly, paid in full in July 2013 - 8,941
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August 31,2013 and 2012

Borrowings (Continued)

2013 2012
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 2.50%, principal and interest
of $985 payable monthly through April 2018, secured by vehicles $§ 52008 % -
Note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.66%, principal and interest
of $3,177 payable monthly, due August 2015, secured by vehicles 73,357 108,052
Unsecured note payable to an individual with a fixed rate of 5.25%,
principal and interest of $10,3 11 payable monthly, due April 2016 307,232 411,835
Non-revolving note payable to a bank with a total availability of
$3,500,000 with a variable rate of LIBOR plus 4.07% (4.25% at
August 31, 2013), interest only payments through June 2014, after
which monthly principal and interest payments are required
through the maturity in June 2015, secured by an interest in certain
property with a net book value of $3,955,615 at August 31, 2013 3,500,000 360.982
26,114,957 23,670,650
Less current portion 796,290 746.716
$25318,667 22,923,934

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are as follows:

2014 $ 796,290
2015 6,529,599
2016 642,389
2017 585,665
2018 610,934
Thereafter 16.950.080

$26,114,957

Lines of Credit

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 nonrevolving
equipment line of credit. The line of credit is to be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled
vehicles for use by Easter Seals NH through April 2, 2014. The interest rate charged on outstanding
borrowings is at a fixed rate at the then prime rate minus 0.75% for maturities up to a five-year term.
Availability under this nonrevolving line of credit, which is reduced by the original amount of certain
notes payable as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, is $229,640 at August31, 2013. The balances
outstanding under the note payable at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were converted to the $52,008 and
$8,941 term notes, respectively, as described above.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Borrowings (Continued)

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. (the sole member of Easter Seals NY and Harbor Schools), Easter
Seals NY and Harbor Schools have a revolving line of credit with a bank, with available borrowings up
to $7 million (a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $98,795, of which $39,795 is
related to Easter Seals NY). Outstanding advances are due on demand. The revolving line of credit has
the following sub-limits which were last amended in May 2013: Easter Seals NH $3.725 million, Easter
Seals NY $3 million and Harbor Schools $275,000. The interest rate charged on outstanding
borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.43% at August 31, 2013). Under an event of default, the interest
rate will increase from LIBOR plus 2.25% to LIBOR plus 5.25%. The line is secured by a first priority
interest in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals NY and Harbor
Schools. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be reduced to
$3,500,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. The agreement also limits each
borrower’s ability to incur additional indebtedness in excess of $500,000. Amounts outstanding under
this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were $262,356 and $451,302,
respectively, related to Harbor Schools, $1,599,505 and $1,124,649, respectively, related to Easter Seals
NY and $1,425,875 and $0, respectively, related to Easter Seals NH.

Easter Seals CT has a demand revolving line of credit with a bank with available borrowings up to
$1 million. The interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings is at LIBOR plus 2.25% (2.43% at
August 31, 2013). The line is secured by all business assets and property of Easter Seals CT, except for
certain assets limited as to use ($3,444,569 carrying value as of August 31, 2013). Additionally, this
line is guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. The agreement also limits Easter Seals CT’s ability to incur
additional indebtedness in excess of $1,000,000 related to real estate, and is cross collateralized with all
Easter Seals NH borrowings at this bank. Amounts outstanding under this revolving line of credit
agreement at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were $924,658 and $406,653, respectively.

NHHEFA 20044 Revenue Bonds

In connection with the NHHEFA 2004A Revenue Bonds, Easter Seals NH is required to make deposits
of interest and principal of sufficient amounts to make the required interest payments and to retire the
Bonds when due. The 2004A Revenue Bonds require that Easter Seals NH maintain certain reserve
funds with a trustee for current required principal and interest payments. Such amounts, which are
included within assets limited as to use, totaled $288,778 and $273,761 at August 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. This agreement also requires bank approval prior to Easter Seals NH incurring additional
indebtedness. Easter Seals NH has two letters of credit securing the bonds each for $14,840,246
(expiring and subject to renewal on December 1, 2013, and mainly to support future principal and
interest repayments due under the 2004A Revenue Bonds), Easter Seals NH is required to replace or
renew the two $14,840,246 letters of credit upon their expiration or the related bonds may be subject to
early redemption. Easter Seals NH pays an annual fee for the two letters of credit relating to the 2004A
NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. Fees incurred on these letters of credit totaled approximately $157,000 and
$234,000 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Borrowings (Continued)

Series 2010 Revenue Bonds

On December 1, 2010, Easter Seals NY, in connection with the Monroe County Industrial Development
Corporation and RBS Citizens, issued $5,250,000 in Series 2010 tax-exempt Revenue Bonds (the Series
2010 Bonds). The Series 2010 Bonds were used to finance the acquisition of certain property located in
Irondequoit, New York, provide for improvements to a school building and an existing rehabilitation
facility, and construct two residential rehabilitation facilities. Additionally, proceeds were used to
refinance certain Easter Seals NY outstanding debt.

The Series 2010 Bonds are secured by a mortgage on all properties and improvements financed by the
bonds, and are guaranteed by Easter Seals NH. Easter Seals NY may elect to prepay some portion or all
of the outstanding bonds subject to a prepayment fee, as defined. This agreement also requires bank
approval prior to Easter Seals NY incurring additional indebtedness. The Series 2010 Bonds are subject
to tender for mandatory purchase at the election of the bondholder beginning June 1, 2016, and
thereafter every five years through June 1, 2036.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Easter Seals NH has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the Series 2004A
Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement has an outstanding notional amount of $14,660,000 and
$15,025,000 at August31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which reduces, in conjunction with bond
principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in December 2034. Easter Seals NH remits interest
at the fixed rate of 3.54% and receives interest at a variable rate (0.07% at August 31, 2013).

On February 23, 2011, Easter Seals NY entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in
connection with the Series 2010 Revenue Bonds. The swap agreement had an outstanding notional
amount of $5,052,360 and $5,171,840 at August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which reduces, in
conjunction with bond principal reductions, until the agreement terminates in January 2031. Easter
Seals NY remits interest at a fixed rate of 2.99% and receives interest at a variable rate (68% of monthly
LIBOR).

On December 27, 2010, Easter Seals CT entered into an interest rate swap agreement in connection with
an outstanding mortgage payable ($2,470,000 and $2,584,000 at August31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively), until the agreement terminates in March 2015. The original notional amount of
$1,800,000 will reduce ratably in conjunction with repayment of the note payable. The swap agreement
effectively changed the variable rate (2.83% at August 31, 2013) to a fixed rate of 2.72% for the
notional amounts outstanding, which is approximately 65% of the related mortgage payable.

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreements totaled $2,758,346 and $5,135,978 at
August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, $708,132 and $734,470 of which was current at August 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 net payments required
by the agreements totaled $692,269 and $708,196, respectively. These payments have been included in
interest expense within the consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 11
with respect to fair value determinations.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2013 and 2012

Borrowings (Continued)

In addition to the above swap agreements, Harbor Schools had an interest rate swap agreement with a
bank in connection with certain bonds issued through the Massachusetts Development Finance
Authority. The interest rate swap agreement, which would otherwise have terminated in October 2015,
was terminated effective November 15, 2011 upon Harbor Schools full repayment of those bonds. This
triggered a swap termination payment of $159,678, which was recognized in 2012.

Debt Covenants

In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter
Seals NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum
liquidity and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31, 2013, Easter Seals NH was in compliance
with restrictive covenants specified under the NHHEFA bonds, Series 2010 Bonds, and other debt
obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure
the value.

Related Party Transactions

Approximately 13% and 19% of other fees and grants revenue is derived from a pass-through grant
from Easter Seals, Inc. for the years ended August 31,2013 and 2012, respectively. Easter Seals NH is
a member of Easter Seals, Inc. As of August 31, 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH had a receivable of
$247,471 and $441,980, respectively, from Easter Seals, Inc. related to amounts due under this grant.
Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc. were $121,780 and $134,887 for the years ended August 31, 2013
and 2012, respectively and are reflected as support of National programs on the accompanying
consolidated statements of activity and changes in net assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurement date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trusts, investments and the interest rate swaps, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York
Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations
are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and
projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NH at August 31, 2013
and 2012,

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds and government and agency securities that are based upon quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets are reflected as Level 1. Investments in certain other mutual
funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are transparent and generally are based upon
quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment managers and reflected as Level 2.
Investments in certificates of deposit are at cost plus accrued interest, which is estimated to approximate
fair value and are included in Level 2.

Beneficial Interest in Trusts Held by Others

The beneficial interest in trusts held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trusts. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds, government and agency securities and other asset funds are based
upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and are reflected as Level 1. Investments in
marketable equity securities, mutual funds and corporate and foreign bonds where securities are
transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment
managers and reflected as Level 2. Investments in alternative and other asset funds are derived from
other methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar
techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions, and are reflected as
Level 3. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining fair value.

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The fair value for the interest rate swap liabilities is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the
counterparty using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and
discount the future amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest
rates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

At August 31, 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a

recurring basis were classified as follows:

2013
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents

Certificates of deposit

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
Small-cap
International
Emerging markets
Corporate bonds
Foreign bonds

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 3,513,266 $ - - $ 3,513,266
- 554,282 - 554,282
2,550,313 - - 2,550,313
219,797 - - 219,797
3,304,368 - - 3,304,368
543,938 - - 543,938
274,582 - - 274,582
210,342 - ~ 210,342
511,971 - - 511,971
693,837 - - 693,837
816,851 - - 816,851
369,532 - - 369,532
237,828 - - 237,828
3,868 - - 3,868
427,663 - - 427,663
2,002,955 - - 2,002,955
493,556 - - 493,556
913,054 - - 913,054
173,305 - - 173,305
14,383 - - 14,383
- 903,497 - 903,497
631,627 ~ - 631.627
$17,907,036 $1,457,779 ~ $19,364,815
$ 4555 % - - $ 4,555
2,544,889 148,594 - 2,693,483
809,286 45,600 - 854,886
- 33,110 - 33,110
319,796 40,369 - 360,165
118,842 - - 118,842
- 709,131 - 709,131
- 6,029 - 6,029
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

11.

Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income
International equity
International fixed income
Domestic large-cap equity
Domestic mid-cap equity
Domestic small-cap equity
Commodity

Government and agency securities

Real estate investment trust

Alternative and structured asset funds

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements

2012
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intermediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
International equities
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Real estate fund
Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Fixed income and bond
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap
International equity
Commodity
Corporate and foreign bonds
Government and agency securities

[\

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ - $ 654361 $ - $ 654,361
34,664 - - 34,664
19,931 - - 19,931
67,476 - - 67,476
16,984 - - 16,984
20,565 - - 20,565
5,465 - - 5,465
20,202 - - 20,202
95,123 - - 95,123
33.921 - 88.834 122,755
$.4,111,609 $1637,194 $__88.834 $ 35,837,727
$ = 3 - $2,758346 $ 2,758,346
$ 2,784,158 § - $ - $ 2,784,158
- 1,650,399 - 1,650,399
2,112,576 - - 2,112,576
189,358 - - 189,358
2,704,530 - - 2,704,530
776,015 - - 776,015
277,483 - - 277,483
142,305 - - 142,305
684,829 - - 684,829
350,761 - - 350,761
850,491 - - 850,491
1,039,241 - - 1,039,241
159,736 - - 159,736
68,271 - - 68,271
339,555 - - 339,555
2,120,790 - - 2,120,790
16,045 - - 16,045
239,693 - - 239,693
614,770 - - 614,770
119,737 - - 119,737
- 930,355 - 930,355
310.437 - - 310,437
$15,900,781 $2,580,754 § - $18,481,535
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August 31, 2013 and 2012

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds $ 403,426 $ - 3 - $ 403,426
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap 2,128,511 136,980 - 2,265,491
Mid-cap 367,586 38,092 - 405,678
Small-cap - 26,099 - 26,099
International 421,345 35,421 - 456,766
Emerging markets 23,776 - - 23,776
Corporate bonds - 622,220 - 622,220
Foreign bonds - 20,659 - 20,659
Mutual funds:
Domestic fixed income - 975,161 - 975,161
International equity 32,132 - - 32,132
International fixed income - 20,938 - - 20,938
Domestic large-cap equity 62,604 - - 62,604
Domestic mid-cap equity 14,062 - - 14,062
Domestic small-cap equity 18,779 - - 18,779
Government and agency securities 34,061 - - 34,061
Real estate investment trust 102,373 - - 102,373
Alternative and structured asset funds 35.452 - 78.614 114,066

$.3.665,045 $1.854.632 $__78,614 $_5,598,291

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreements $ - $ - $5,135978 $_5,135,978

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 assets
and liabilities for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012:

Alternative
Interest and Other
Rate Swaps Asset Funds

Beginning balance, September 1, 2011 $(4,041,445) $57,709
Unrealized (losses) gains, net (1,254,211) 20,905
Swap termination payment 159,678 -

Ending balance, August 31, 2012 (5,135,978) 78,614
Unrealized gains, net 2.377.632 10,220
Ending balance, August 31, 2013 $(2,758,346) $88.834
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Unrealized gains relating to the Harbor Schools interest rate swap totaled $8,185 in 2012, and are
included within discontinued operations (see note 13).

The net amounts of unrealized gains (losses) for the period attributable to the change in unrealized gains
(losses) relating to the interest rate swaps still held at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were $2,377,632 and
($1,254,211), respectively. The amount of unrealized gains for the period attributable to the change in
unrealized gains relating to the Level 3 investments still held at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were
$10,220 and $12,817, respectively.

Easter Seals NH’s other financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
from affiliates, program and other accounts receivable, contributions receivable, accounts payable, lines
of credit, and long-term debt, have fair values approximating their carrying values because of the short-
term nature of the financial instruments or because interest rates approximate current market rates.

Acquisition

On September 1, 2011, Easter Seals NH entered into an affiliation agreement under which Easter Seals
NH became the sole member of Webster Place. Webster Place was not controlled by Easter Seals NH
prior to this agreement. This affiliation was accounted for in the year ended August 31, 2012 in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles guidance on acquisitions by a not-for-profit
entity. Substantially all revenue and support of Webster Place is from fees charged for services.
Webster Place had revenue of approximately $2,064,000, and an increase in net assets from operations
of approximately $763,000 for the year ended August 31, 2012, which results were attributed by the
management of Easter Seals NH to being driven by effective management of the programs and
identification of candidates for those programs. The tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired,
and deferred revenue and liabilities assumed, were initially recorded at their estimated fair values as
determined by management at the acquisition date, as summarized below:

Assets acquired:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 227,830
Other current assets 26,789
Patient list 331,000
Fixed assets 112.776
698,395
Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable (54,125)
Deferred revenue (131,582)
Debt (512.688)
Fair value of net assets acquired S -
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13. Discontinued Operations

On March 22, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NY voted to discontinue the Bronx Early
Intervention program. On July 1, 2013, the Center for Therapeutic Recreation program located in
Portland, Maine was transferred to the City of Portland and at that same time Easter Seals ME
discontinued offering those services. On September 1, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals NH
voted to discontinue the Raymond Preschool program and surrender the related operating license. On
September 25, 2013, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals CT voted to discontinue the camp programs
and cease all operations effective November 16, 2013. On January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of
Easter Seals NH voted to close Harbor Schools and cease all operations of this subsidiary. On
January 25, 2012, the Board of Directors of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. also voted to approve
discontinuing the group home and special education programs in Rutland, Vermont.

The management of Easter Seals NH has determined that the closure of each of these programs/entities
met the criteria for classification as discontinued operations. The decisions to close the programs were
based on performance factors.

Summary statements of financial position for each of the above discontinued programs/entities as of
August 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Rutland,
Vermont Harbor Schools Bronx EI
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Total assets § - $1,000 §$ 872,744 $1,118306 $24451 $53,066
Total liabilities 1,197 - 595,053 813,880 9,289 -
Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted (1,197) 1,000 230,951 251,319 15,162 53,066
Temporarily restricted - - 22,914 29,281 - -
Permanently restricted — - 23.826 23,826 - -
CTR Maine CT Camp NH Preschool
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Total assets $ 1,888 $8,799 $2,119,068 $2,202,704 § - $17,786
Total liabilities 38 - 2,470,000 2,582,681 - -
Net assets (deficit):
- 17,786

Unrestricted 1,850 8,799 (350,932) (379,977)
Temporarily restricted - - -
Permanently restricted - - - - - -
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Discontinued Operations (Continued)

Summary statements of activities for each of the above discontinued programs/entities for the years
ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Rutland
Vermont Harbor Schools Bronx EI
201 2012 2013 2012 2013 201

Total public support

and revenue $ -  $242500 $ 12,907 § 2,589,615 $ 320,740 $ 330,968
Operating expenses (20,310) (401,216) (329,961) (3.871,472) (531,841) (455,208)
Other nonoperating

expense, gains

or losses - - (1,469) (57,538) - -
Gain on sale of
properties, net - 106.474 291,788 1.913.435 - -

Total increase
(decrease) in

net assets $_00310) $.(52,242) $__(26,735) $__574,040 $(211,101) $(124,240)
CTR Maine CT Camp NH Preschool
013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Total public support
and revenue $ 124872 §$ 167,848 § 774,143 § 619,084 § - $ 64,084

Operating expenses  (165,621)  (203,959)  (1,431,704) (980,659)  (53,735) (145,060)
Other nonoperating

expense, gains

or losses - - - - - -
Gain (loss) on sale

of properties, net 325 ~ — = (15.563) -

Total increase
(decrease) in

net assets $_(40424) $_(36,111) $_(657,561) $_(361.575) $.(69.298) $_(80.976)

During 2013 and 2012, Easter Seals NH sold two and six properties, respectively, related to the closure
of these programs, which resulted in gains on the sale of property of $276,550 and $2,019,909 for the
years ending August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Concentrations
Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Easter Seals NH has not

experienced any losses in such accounts, and management believes Easter Seals NH is not exposed to
any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.
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BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of August 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net
assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Easter Seals
NH’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals NH’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals NH’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
1



The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Easter Seals NH’s consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Baker Nlaorman 2

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 14, 2013



BAKER NEWMAN NOYES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ (Easter Seals NH) compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of Easter Seals NH’s major federal programs for the year ended
August 31, 2013. Easter Seals NH’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Easter Seals NH’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Easter Seals NH’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Easter Seals NH’s compliance.

Baker Newman & Noyes, LLC
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The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Easter Seals NH complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended August 31, 2013.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular No. A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as item 2013-1. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Easter Seals NH’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Easter Seals NH’s response was not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Easter Seals NH is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Easter Seals NH’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter
Seals NH’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



The Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals NH as of and for the year ended
August 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated December 14, 2013, which contained an
unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular
A-133 and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

&J@r kL'an ::A.bes

Manchester, New Hampshire Limited Liability Company
December 14, 2013



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Federal Pass-Through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA  Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through the New Hampshire Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Program:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 02-6000618 $ 16,876
National School Lunch Program 10.555 02-6000618 164,192
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558*  02-6000618 261,799
Passed through the New York Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Program:
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558*  14-6013200 138.259
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 581,126
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the City of Dover Department of Planning
and Community Development:
CDBG Project ~ ES Family Place 14.218 02-6000230 35,162
Passed through the City of Manchester Community
Improvement Program:
CIP Project — Easter Seals (VNA) Child Care 14218 02-6000517 23,250
Passed through the New York Office of Mental Retardation
and Developmental Disabilities:
Community Development Block / Entitlement Grants 14.218 14-6013200 35,411
Passed through the State of Maine Cumberland County:
Community Development Block / Entitlement Grants 14.218 14-6013200 6.000
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 99,823
U.S. Department of Justice:
Passed through Goodwill Industries of Northern New
England:
Second Chance Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative 16.812 01-0284340 1.597
Total U.S. Department of Justice 1,597
U.S. Department of Labor:
Passed through Services for the Underserved:
Homeless Veteran’s Reintegration Program 17.805 91-1918247 41,645
Homeless Female Veterans/Veterans with Families 17.805 N/A 10,575
Passed through Easter Seals, Inc.:
Senior Community Service Employment Program 17.235 36-2171729 3,151,074
Total U.S. Department of Labor 3,203,294



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2013

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs:
Passed through the Harbor Homes Inc:
VA Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF)

Total U.S. Department of Veteran’s Affairs

Americorp National — Corporation for National and Community
Service:
Passed through the University of Maryland Department of
Health Services Administration:
Legacy Corps (Americorp)

Total Americorp National

U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through the New Hampshire Department of Children,
Youth and Families:
Title 1 Part D Subpart 1
Passed through the New York Department of Education:
Special Education — Grants to States (IDEA 611)

Federal Pass-Through Total

CFDA  Entity Identifying Federal
Number Number Expenditures
64.033 02-0351932 $__ 67939
67,939
94.006 52-6002033 47,013
47,013
84.010A  02-6000618 16,090
84.027*  13-6007141 1,374
84.027*  13-6007112 22,429
84.027*  13-6007113 (2,781)
84.027*  14-6009250 1,334
84.027*  14-6001456 7,855
84.027*  13-2615395 7,565
84.207*  13-2630619 1,352
84.207*  13-6007117 1,321
84.027*  13-6007116 6,310
84.027*  14-6001632 9,234
84.027*  13-6007132 3,222
84.027* 14-6010769 1,239
84.027*  14-6001973 38,150
84.027*  13-1888668 3,618
84.027*  13-6007142 8,670
84.027*  13-6400434 95,980
84.027*  13-6007160 4,824
84.027*  13-6007163 1,302
84.027*  13-6007136 3,708
84.027*  14-6001844 28,111
84.027*  13-6007172 1,716
84.027*  14-1815092 2,752
84.027*  13-6007115 1,727
84.027*  13-7007114 1,148
84.027*  13-6007139 3,405



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2013

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

Special Education — Grants to States (IDEA 611)
(Continued)

Special Education — Preschool Grants (IDEA 619)

Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Administration on Aging, Community Innovations for
Aging in Place
Passed through the Vermont Department of Social and
Rehabilitation Services:
Foster Care — Title IV — E
Promoting Safe and Stable Families
Juvenile Justice Services

Federal

Pass-Through
CFDA  Entity Identifying

Total
Federal

Number Number Expenditures
84.027* 13-6007183 $ 8,695
84.027*  13-6007340 12,460
84.173* 13-6007141 209
84.173*  13-6007112 2,838
84.173* 13-6007113 (572)
84.173*  14-6009250 336
84.173* 14-6001456 2,335
84.173*  13-2615395 1,475
84.173* 13-2630619 228
84.173*  13-6007117 382
84.173*  13-6007116 1,065
84.173*  14-6001632 2,454
84.173*  13-6007132 966
84.173*  14-6010769 400
84.173*  14-6001973 13,734
84.173* 13-1888668 669
84.173*  13-6007142 1,700
84.173*  13-6400434 11,423
84.173*  13-6007160 956
84.173* 13-6007163 496
84.173*  13-6007136 642
84.173*  14-6001844 14,500
84.173*  13-6007172 327
84.173*  14-1815092 1,775
84.173*  13-6007115 179
84.173*  13-6007114 150
84.173* 13-6007139 822
84.173*  13-6007183 1,795
84.173*  13-6007340 2,680

356,774
93.048 102,702
93.659*  03-6000264 211,198
93.556 03-6000264 131,448
16.523 03-6000264 4,329



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2013

Federal Pass-Through Total
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA  Entity Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
Passed through the New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly and
Adult Services:
Special Programs for the Aging — Title 111, Part B —

Grants For Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 02-6000618 $ 113,219
National Family Caregiver Support 93.052 02-6000618 38,854
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 02-6000618 108,430
Medical Assistance Program (Medicaid: Title XIX) 93.778 02-6000618 124,794
CMS Research, Demonstrations and Evaluations 93.779 02-6000618 51,937
Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act —

Beneficiary Outreach and Assistance (MIPPA) 93.071 02-6000937 27,099
Passed through the New Hampshire Division of Public Health
Bureau of Community Health Services, Alcohol & Other
Drug Treatment Section:
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant  93.959 02-6000618 729,627
Regional Network 93.959 02-6000618 44,440
Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Project Grant 93.275 02-6000618 79,902
Passed through the New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services:
Child Care and Development Fund 93.596*  02-6000618 736,602
National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance 12.401*  02-6000618 800,777
Division of Public Health Services 93.991 02-6000618 10,513
Passed through the New Hampshire Department of
Children, Youth and Families:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575*  02-6000618 393,473
After Hours Information & Referral Services for the
DCYF System to Individuals & Law Enforcement 93 .xxx 02-6000618 44225
Passed through the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Department of Social Services:
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families 93.558 04-2523961 734,152
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 04-2523961 722,930
Passed through the Rhode Island and Providence Plantations
Department of Human Services:
Early Intervention Part C 84.181 05-6000522 62.959
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 5.273.610
Total Federal Expenditures $.9,631,176

* Major Program

See notes to this schedule.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended August 31,2013

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Consequently, expenditures are recognized when the obligation is incurred. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards does not include matching amounts that Easter Seals NH expends in
connection with its federal programs. Easter Seals NH affiliates that received federal awards that are
included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards include The Harbor Schools Incorporated,
Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, Webster Place, Inc., Easter Seals New York, Inc., Easter
Seals Maine, Inc., Easter Seals Rhode Island, Inc., Easter Seals Vermont, Inc., and Easter Seals
Connecticut, Inc.

Categorization of Expenditures

The categorization of expenditures by program included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards is based upon the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA).

10



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended August 31,2013

SECTION I — Summary of Audit Results

Financial Statements:

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no

Significant deficiency(ies) that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __ yes _X mno

Federal Awards:

Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(ies) that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? yes X _ none reported

yes X no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section 510(a) of
Circular A-133? X yes no

Identification of Major Programs:

CFDA # Name of Federal Program or Cluster

U.S. Department of Agriculture:
10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Program

U.S. Department of Education:
84.027 and 84.173 Special Education — Grants to States (IDEA 611),
Special Education — Preschool Grants (IDEA 619)

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:

93.659 Foster Care — Title IV-E

93.596 and 93.575 Child Care and Development Fund, Child Care and
Development Block Grant

12401 National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  yes no
11



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2013

SECTION II — Financijal Statement Findings

None reported.

SECTION III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Reference Number:

Finding 2013-1

Federal Program Information:

U.S. Department of Agriculture: Passed through the Department of Education: Child Nutrition Program
Cluster: Child and Adult Care Food Program: CFDA #10.558

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

Allowable Costs

Condition:

Three of the seven months of meal counts reviewed did not agree to the meal counts submitted to the State
for reimbursement. In total for the three months, meal counts, including breakfast, lunch and snacks, were
under-reported by 604 meals. The total quantified error is $1,046. While the net impact was favorable to the

State, one of the three months resulted in over-reported costs of $13.

Questioned Costs:

None

Context:

Compliance testing

Effect:

Total meal counts were added incorrectly and resulted in inaccurate meal counts reported to the State.

Cause:

Meal Counts for the CACFP program are maintained manually, and must be totaled each day, subtotaled

each month, and then entered into a spreadsheet. Given the manual nature of the calculation, errors are more
likely.

12



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31,2013

Recommendation:

Easter Seals NH should implement an electronic system to calculate the number of meals, and reduce the
likelihood of human error.

Corrective Action Taken:

As a long term solution, Easter Seals NH will investigate the feasibility of using Pro-care or a similar
program for attendance and meal tracking in all locations not already using it.

Until a long term solution is implemented:

e accounting staff will work with the individual programs to develop tools and double checks to minimize
errors in site sub-totals; and

e grant accounting staff will immediately begin a process of auditing meal counts by selecting one site per
month to request all meal count and attendance records. These checks will be done after completion of
month-end close and claims corrected as soon as possible when errors are found. Staff training will be
reviewed and reinforced as needed to reduce errors. Each site will be reviewed at least once during the
year.



EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

Year Ended August 31,2013

Identifving Number: 2013-1

Finding: Allowable costs, Child and Adult Care Food Program
Contact: Sherry Garretson, Sr. Accountant — Grants, Easter Seals NH

Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: See Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended August 31,2013

Finding 12-01: E-mail Encryption
Criteria:

Easter Seals NH’s policies and procedures regarding secure transmitting should provide adequate means to
ensure secure transmitting of potential protected health information (PHI) or other sensitive information.

Condition:

Although Easter Seals NH has a policy in place regarding secure transmitting of PHI or other sensitive
information, Easter Seals NH does not utilize email encryption for this sensitive information. Additionally,
there are no detective controls in place that would identify and report on PHI embedded in user emails.
Software that can scan outgoing emails for predetermined “data” would enable Easter Seals NH to
automatically encrypt emails and further safeguard and protect patients’ health information. It was noted that
Easter Seals NH is currently investigating encryption options from Citrix. A trial run has been established
using Citrix’s ShareFile, and Easter Seals NH is taking steps to complete a full roll out.

Context:

The deficiency identified above creates a risk that sensitive information is not securely transmitted by Easter
Seals NH, which could result in a breach event as defined by the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (HIPAA),

Effect:

The lack of appropriate controls over securely transmitting sensitive information could result in sensitive
information being compromised if it is intercepted by an unintended party, and a potential liability and
penalties for Easter Seals NH.

Cause:

There is a lack of sufficient detective and preventive controls relating to the secure transmitting of sensitive
information.

Recommendation:

We recommend that Easter Seals NH move forward with the roll out of ShareFile, as planned. A Secure file-
transfer solution that integrates with Outlook and other workflow tools could help prevent a HIPAA breach
notification event and could help secure enterprise data. We also recommend that Easter Seals NH
investigate solutions to scan outgoing and internal mail for potential PHI as an added measure.

Corrective Action Taken:

Easter Seals NH has moved away from the ShareFile application as a means to secure transmitted PHI in
email messages and has purchased email encryption services from our hosted exchange partner. The
encryption service encompasses subject and email message scanning for predetermined “data” that could be
considered PHI. The encryption is administered and applied at the email account level and cannot be
overridden by the sender or the recipient. Once the email is encrypted, all subsequent replies or forwards are
encrypted as well. The application for the enhancement is active. Additionally we will continue to enforce
Easter Seals NH’s compliance policies regarding email usage and the appropriate way to protect and transmit
all data.

15



Easter Seals Mission Statement

Easter Seals mission is to provide exceptional services to ensure
that all people with disabilities or special needs and their families
have equal opportunities to live, learn, work and play in their
communities.
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Elin Treanor A

CAREER SUMMARY:
Leadership, management and teamwork involving all business related functions and

administration. Major emphasis on providing high quality and cost effective
services to customers.

SKILLS & EXPERIENCE:

e Accounting, financial reporting, budgeting, internal controls, auditing, cost
reporting, variance analysis, accounts payable, purchasing and payroll

e _(Cash management, investments, horrowing, banking relationships.

o Billing, receivables, collections, funding sources, third party reimbursement

¢ Insurances, contracts, grants, legal issues

e Policies and procedures development, problem solving

e Financial training and consultation

¢ Strategic and business planning

e Liaison with Board of Directors and Committees

WORK HISTORY:

1994 — Present Caster Scals New Hampshire, Inc., Manchester, NH
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer
Oversee fiscal management for 100 million-dollar budget size,
multi-corporate, multi-state entity. Also, responsible for
reception, maintenance, customer service functions.

1988 — 1994 Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
Vice President of Finance
Responsible for finance functions and information systems
agency wide. Instrumental in major financial tumaround from
$600,000 deficit in 1988 to $100,000 surplus in 1989 and
surpluses every year thereafter.

1984 — 1988 Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
Controller

Promoted to position with added responsibilities of managing
billing function and staff. Converted financial applications to
integrated automated systems. Involved in corporate
reorganizations o multiple entities and external corporate
mergers and acquisitions.



Elin Treanor
work history cont’d

1982 - 1984

1981 - 1982

1980 — 1981

Easter Seal Society of NH, In¢c., Manchester, NH

Chief Accountant

Promoted to supervisory position to manage accounting,
payroll, payables, purchasing. Revised budget process, audit
work, procedures and monitoring systems.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH

Accountant

Promoted to take charge of general ledger, reconciliations and
financial reporting. Established chart of accounts, fund
accounting system and intemnal controls.

Easter Seal Society of NH, Inc., Manchester, NH
Internal Auditor
Handled accounts payable, cash flow, grant billing and review

1974 - 1980

EDUCATION:

1989

1980

1977

SERVICE:

National Easter Seals:

of general ledger accounts.

Marshalls, Peabody, MA

Senior Clerk

Worked as cashier, customer service representative and
bookkeeper, while attending college.

New Hampshire College, Hooksett, NH
Masters in Business Administration

Bentley College, Waltham, MA
Bachelor of Science, Accounting Major

North Shore Community College, Beverly, MA
Associates Degree, Accounting Major

Leader of Northeast Region Chief Financial Officers
Treasurer of Northeast Region Leadership Association
Past Chairman of the Quality Council



Harry E. Miller, Jr.

L

e w/Dh v v,

Goal:
» To become the Executive Director of Veterans Affairs for Easter
Seals NH

Education:
> United States Army War College. Master of Strategic Studies, 2005
» Saint Martin’s College, Master of Business Administration, 1992
» Washington and Jefferson College, Bachelor of Arts, Economics, 1980
» Valley Forge Military Jr. College, Associate of Arts, 1978

Professional Experience:
> United States Army (1980-1992)-12-years active duty with assignments
to the 1% Armored Division, 82" Airborne Division, and the1® Special
Forces Group
> National Career Centers (1993-1994)
> Pfizer Inc (1994-Present)
O Primary Care Pharmaceutical Sales-VPC 1997
O Specialty Care Pharmaceutical Sales (Neuroscience) ~CMR 1998,
VPC 2008
> Army National Guard (1995-Present) -17-years with assignments to the
New Hampshire National Guard, the 1* Infantry Divisiorvirag Assistance
Group (Active Duty-Iraq), 5™ Sbeecial Forces Group (Active Duty-Iraq),
National Guard Bureau, the10™ Mountain Division (Active Duty), and the
New York National Guard.

Professional Associations:

Member, Association of the United States Army

Member, National Guard Association of the United States
Member, Special Forces Association

Member, American Legion

Member, Veterans Count Club

Member, Horse Pond Fish and Game

vYVvVVYVvY

Personal:

Married with three daughters

2x combat veteran of Iraq, 32+ years military service

Avid outdeorsman-interests include hunting, fishing, backpacking, and
fitness training

YV Vv

References:
> Available upon request




Employment

7/88 to Present

Larry J. Gammon

President, Chief Executive Officer

Easter Seals New Hampshire/Vermont/New York
555 Auburn St.

Manchester, NH 03103

A member of Easter Seals National, the Agency is a comprehensive,

multi-facility organization with services throughout New Hampshire,

Vermont and New York. Employing over 1000 persons, and operating in
s L SRR

6/85 - 7/88

8/75 - 6/85

Educational, Residential, Clinical, Medical and Camping/Recreational.
Position reports to the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Executive Vice President

Vice President

Deputy Executive Director

Easter Seal Society/Goodwill Industries of New Hampshire/Vermont

In progressive management experiences, guided the Agency’s programs
through a growth from 1+ million dollar budget, and status as one of the
most comprehensive service organizations in the country.

Directly responsible to the Executive Director, later President, for
supervision of all professional programs of the comprehensive
rehabilitation centers, with CARF accreditation in Audiology, Speech
Pathology, Social Adjustment, Physical Restoration and Vocational
Adjustment. In addition, the Society operates a large day school for
handicapped pupils, 3 work adjustment center/sheltered workshops, a
comprehensive camping program, retail sales outlets, and a pupil
transportation program of 75 students per day. Duties included, but were
not limited to, hiring and supervision of staff, program devclopment,
budget development and control, procuring funding, and staffing of
various Board committees.



LIGammon
page 2

9/71 - 8/75

9/70 - 7/71

New Hampshire Easter Seal Society for Crippled Children & Adults, Inc.
870 Hayward St.
Manchester, NH 03103

Position: Facilities Director, Easter Seal School
Program Development, supervision and recruitment of staff, screening of

pupils; developing budget, and securing funding.

New Hampshire Department of Education
Keene Public Schools

2/69-8/70

9/67 - 1/69

Keene, NH U5431
Position: Special Education Consultant
1 year study of special education needs of 6 small towns in New

Hampshire. Responsible to 6 school boards and the New Hampshire
Department of Special Education, Title VI-B Grant.

Gary Public Schools

Gary, IN

Position: Teacher, Special Education

Classroom teacher, M.R. Summer program for trainable M.R.
Charlottesville Public Schools

Charlottesville, VA

Position: Teacher M.R. — Department Chairman

Teacher, pre-vocational services, Department Chairman for Junior High
age M.R. Director, Summer project (7/68), Title 1.



LJGammon

page 3

Education

9/62 - 8/66 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
B.S. in Special Education, emphasis in Mental Retardation. All
undergraduate courses were at the Master’s Level. Dean’s List, Junior &
Senior vears.

9/66 -8/67 University of Virginia, Charlottesville, VA
36 hours of Graduate School of Education, emphasis in Administration,
Testing & Evaluation and Research. Full time graduate scholarship.

Service National

Chairman, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1990-1991

Member, Board of Trustees, CARF, 1985-1991

Medders Award, Qutstanding Easter Seals Executive, 1995
President, Easter Seals Leadership Association, 1998-2000

Local

Queen City Rotary Club, Member

Serenity Place, Board of Directors

Mayor’s Task Force/Senior Services

Hillcrest Terrace, Board of Directors

CEO Council

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center — Assembly of Overseers
YMCA Disability Council

Recognition

Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2010
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 2005
Non-Profit Business of the Decade, Business NH Magazine, 2000
Non-Profit Business of the Year, Business NH Magazine, 1994



Tina M. Sharby, I'IIR

Human Resources Professional with multi-state experience working as a stratcgic partncr in all
aspects of Human Resources Management.

Areas of cxpertisc include

Strong analytical and organizational skills Problem solving and complaint resolution
Ability to manage multiple tasks simultaneously ~ Policy development and implementation
Employment Law and Regulation Compliance Compensation and benefits administration
Strategic management, mergers and acquisitions

MS Office (Word, Excel, Outlook, PowerPoint), PeopleSoft, Oracle

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Senior Vice President Human Resources
Easter Seals, NH, VT, NY, ME, RI, Harbor Schools & Farnum Center
1998- Present '

Reporting directly to the President with total human resources and administration.
Responsible for employee relations, recruitment and retention, compensation, benefits,
risk management, health and safety, staff development for over 2100 employees in a six
state not-for- profit organization. Developed and implemented human resources policies
to meet all organizational, state and federal requirements. Research and implemented an
organizational wide benefits plan that is supportive of on-boarding and retention needs.

Developed and implemented a due diligence research and analysis system for assessing
merger and acquisition opportunities. Partnered with senior staff team in preparation of
strategic planning initiatives.

Member of the organizations Compliance Committee, Wellness Committee and Risk
Management Committee. Attended various board meetings as part of the senior
management team, and sit on the investment commitiee of the Board of Directors for
Easler Seals NH, Inc.

Human Resources Director
Moore Center Services, Inc., Manchester, NH
1986-1998

Held progressively responsible positions in this not-for-profit organization of 450
employees. Responsible for the development and administration of all Human Resources
activities. Implemented key regulatory compliance programs and developed innovative



employee relations initiatives in a rapidly changing business environment. Lead the
expansion of the Human Resources department from basic benefit administration to
becoming a key advisor to the senior management.

Key responsibilities included benefit design, implementation and administration; workers
compensation administration; wage and salary administration, new employee orientation

and training; policy devclopment and communication; retirement plan administration;
budgetary development, and recruitment.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Scicnee Degree, Keene State College, 1986
Minor in Human Resources and Safety Management

MS Organizational Leadership, Southern NH University (in process)

Manchester Area Human Resource Association
Diversity Chair 2010
Society for Human Resource Management
BIA Human Resources
Health Care & Workforce Development Committee 2009, 2010



Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Key Personnel
Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Larry Gammon President/CEO $352,452 0% $ 0
Elin Treanor CFO $240,000 0% by 0
Tina Sharby Chief Human Resources

' Officer $140,000 0% $ 0
Harry Miller Executive Director Vets Sves $135,000 0% $ 0




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Nicholas A. Toumpas 603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

June 17, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan G&C AppfOVed

and the Honorable Council

State House - -/ 2
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 Date___/~ 294
item #,_.Qfg

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services to amend
an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., vendor number
177204, to continue to manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support services
to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are
deployed or returning from combat, by increasing the current amount by $584,415 from $6,352,338 to an amount
not to exceed $6,936,753 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014, effective
July 24, 2013, or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later. The original contract was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010 Item #88 and subsequently amended on
September 22, 2010 Item #185A, June 8, 2011 Item #115, June 20, 2012 Item #74, September 19, 2012 Item
#69A, March 6, 2013 Item #15, April 17, 2013 Late Item B and May 1, 2013 Item #37C. Funds to support this
request are anticipated to be available upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets.

05-95-95-958010-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  § 888,025 $ 888,025
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,409,816 $2,409,816
2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,000,000 $2,000,000
2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $§ 617,423 $ 617,423

05-95-49-490510-2983 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS
OFFICE

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Class/Qbject Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 437,074 $456,864 $ 893,938
2015 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  § 0 $127.551 $ 127,551

Total $6,352,338 $584,415 $6,936,753



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 17,2013

Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their
families who are deployed or returning from combat. These funds represent additional federal funds available
from the National Guard that were not known at the time the contract was effective back in July 1, 2012. The
Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a community-based support system, which integrates current veteran
services with existing service delivery systems and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care. It is a
preventive approach supporting families and military members pre, during and post deployments. Crisis
prevention for families and military members is addressed through early development of “care plans” by
professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk assessment used to organize support services early, thereby
reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and families involved in the war effort.
Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health and
Human Services and the National Guard released a Request for Proposal to select a vendor to implement and
manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was
posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all
known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation
of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format
and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justification. The Request for Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a
vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest
price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the
deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance measures and
other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices, program/financial reports and site
reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care Services. The contractor has met or exceeded
performance criteria during the prior contract periods.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize to amend this existing Agreement,
military men and women and their families will not be provided community-based support services pre, during
and post-deployment in active military duty.

Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 100% Other Funds (federal funds received and transferred from the State of New Hampshire’s
Adjutant General’s Department).



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

June 17, 2013

Page 3

In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted,

’"”’%%fé,@m |

N ollins
Associate Commissioner

Approved by:b- j\& / \

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Budget Narrative ~ SFY 14

Line Item

Justification

Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings and Conventions

Occupancy

Telephone

Equipment

Travel

Printing

Subcontracts

Supplies

Postage

Includes the monthly wages of Easter Seals staff -
charged to grant for direct service, administrative
support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

21.11% of salary & wages, includes benefit rate
reconciliation true up. Benefits include medical, dental,
life, workers compensation and long term disability
insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
central office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.

Allows for purchase of replacement laptops for program
staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile.

Includes costs of copying program materials, business cards
for staff.

Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and
individuals for direct service to Service Members and their

families.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,
binders, file labels).

Includes the cost of mailing correspondence, and reports.

iﬂt-\ﬁ*a,\

Z’u/ﬁ
O~ . Ulifes



Financial Assistance Emergency Financial Assistance provided to consumers
(provided in-kind).

Administrative Overhead Agency approved rate of 10% of direct expense to cover
administrative functions associated with program
(Management, IT, Payroll, Accounts Payable, HR,
Accounting, etc.)

L it vad 7
Ded — (ﬂ(ﬂ//a/ §



AMENDMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”) dated June 13, 2013, by and between the State of New

Hampshire acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services of the Department of Health &

Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the “Division™) and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., corporation,

organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester,

NH (hereinafter referred to as the “Provider™).
WHEREAS, pursuant fo an agreement (hereinafter called the “Agreement”), dated May 1, 2013, the

Provider agreed to perform certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in

consideration of payment by the Division of certain sums as specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended or

discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only afier approval of such modification

by the Governor & Executive Council, or amendment;

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Division have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the

Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows;

1. Amendment and modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

IL.L

Amend Section 1.8 of the General Provisions by replacing $6,352,338 with $6,936,753.

2. Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 1 with the following:
Service Rate | SFY 2010 | SFY 2011 | SFY 2012 | SFY 2013 |\SFY 2014 |[SFY 2015 | {otal
Deployme | Cost | $888,025 | $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 | $617,423 {1$437,074 | $ 0 $6,352,338
nt Cycle Reim
Support burse
Program ment
Additional $456,864 | $127,551 t 584,415
Funds
Totals $888,025 | $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 | $617,423 | $893,938 | $127,551 $6,936,753
1.3.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 2 with the following:
It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based
Care Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $6,936,753.
14.  Replace Exhibit B-1, by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the additional Deployment Cycle
Support Program costs in the amount of $893,938 in SFY 2014 and $127,551 in SFY 2015.
1.5.  Amend Section 1.7 of the General Provisions by extending the completion to September 30, 2014.
1.6. Amend end dates of all exhibits to September 30, 2014.

NH DHHS, DCBCS

Contractor Initials:

C
o[ /013

Date:

<7
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2. Effective Date of Amendment:
This Amendment shall be effective July 10, 2013 or the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,

whichever is later.

3. Continuance of Agreement:
Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Agreement

and the obligation of the parties thereunder shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth therein.

Contractor Initials:

| Y7
NH DHHS, DCBCS _
Date: Q; A /A 04(
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IN WITNESS WHEREOFPF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above

written,

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Division of Community Based Care Services

By WWK&W |

Nancy L. Rolli¥s, Associate Commissioner

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Name of Corporation

< 7 I\
By \«f//’(/u(/[iff‘—

Elin Treanor
Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer

State of New Hampshire
W4 S pugh
County of Merrimack
On this the I3Mday of June 2013, before me, \QAL ) , the undersigned officer
personally appeared Elin Treanor who executed the foregoing instrument by signing her name.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, [ hereunto set my hand and official seal.

™ oow . Pl

Notary Public/Justice ot tire Peace)

DIANE L. BOULAY, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 3, 2013

My Commission expires:

Approved by the Office of the Attorney General:

By %’“CWM

" Jeanne P. Herrick, Attorney

Date 28 Junc~ , 2013

Contractor Initials: g

NH DHHS, DCBCS -
G/ oy

Date:




Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Budget Narrative —~ SFY15

Includes the monthly wages of Easter Seals staff
charged to grant for direct service, administrative
support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

Line ltem Justification
Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings and Conventions

Occupancy

Telephone

Equipment

Travel

Printing

Subcontracts

Supplies

Postage

21.11% of salary & wages, includes benefit rate
reconciliation true up. Benefits include medical, dental,
life, workers compensation and long term disability
insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
central office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.

allows for purchase of replacement laptops for program
staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile.

Includes costs of copying program materials, business cards
for staff.

Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and
individuals for direct service to Service Members and their

families.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,
binders, file labels).

Includes the cost of mailing correspondence, and reports.

hﬂ-}—*w‘ _Z__..
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Financial Assistance Emergency Financial Assistance provided to consumers
(provided in-kind). ’

Administrative Overhead Agency approved rate of 10% of direct expense to cover
administrative functions associated with program
(Management, IT, Payroll, Accounts Payable, HR,
Accounting, etc.)

lhﬂ"iﬂzg’ Bf//
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410
Fax’ 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins Approved by b “' & ren

Associate Commissioner
Date__. 51 (3

April 25,2013 gema#__ 320

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan ’ OO (pq 4 q

and the Honorable Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services to amend
an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., vendor number
177204, to continue to manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support services
to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are
deployed or returning from combat, by increasing the current amount by $535,000 from $5,817,338 to an amount
not to exceed $6,352,338 and extending the completion date from June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014, effective May
1, 2013, or date of Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later. The original contract was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010 Item #88 and subsequently amended on
September 22, 2010 Item #185A, June 20, 2012 Item #74, September 19, 2012 Item #69A, March 6, 2013 Item
#15 and April 17, 2013 Late Item B. Funds to support this request are available in the following account in State
Fiscal Year 2013 and funds for State Fiscal Year 2014 are anticipated to be available upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budgets. .

05-95-95-958010-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  § 888,025 $ 888,025
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svcs  $2,409,816 $2,409,816
2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,000,000 $2,000,000
2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 519,497 $97,926 $ 617,423

05-95-49-490510-2983 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF,
HHS:DIV OF COMM BASED CARE SVC, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS

OFFICE

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year Class/Obiject Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2014 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves ~ § 0 $437.074 $ 437,074

Total $5,817,338 $535,000 $6,352,338



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

April 25, 2013
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the qurﬁﬁ(?ﬂzegd management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
“support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their
_ families wha are-deplogior returning from combat. These funds represent additional federal funds available.
from the National Gu%r hat were not known at the time the contract was effective back in July 1, 2012. The
Peptoyment Cyclé Support Program builds a community-based support system, which integrates current veteran
services with existing service delivery systems and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care. It is a
preventive approgcr:lflﬂ ‘gggggrting families and military members pre, during and post deployments. Crisis
-prevention for” families and military members is addressed through early development of “care plans” by
professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk assessment used to organize support services early, thereby
reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and families involved in the war effort.
Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health and
Human Services and the National Guard released a Request for Proposal to select a vendor to implement and
manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was
posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all
known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation
of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format
and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justification. The Request for Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a
vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest
price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the
deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance measures and
other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices, program/financial reports and site
reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care Services. The contractor has met or exceeded
performance criteria during the prior contract periods. ’

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize to amend this existing Agreement,
military men and women and their families will not be provided community-based support services pre, during
and post-deployment in active military duty.

Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 100% Other Funds (federal funds received and transferred from the State of New Hampshire’s
Adjutant General’s Department).
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In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted, :

TNemey o Ll

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

eI

Nicholas A. Tounfpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AMENDMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”) dated April 24, 2013, by and between the State of
New Hampshire acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services of the Department of Health
& Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the “Division”) and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., corporation,
organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshife, with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester,
NH (hereinafter referred to as the “Provider”). '

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (hereinafter called the “Agreement”), dated April 17, 2013, the
Provider agreed to perform certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the Division of certain sums as specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended or
discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such modification
by the Governor & Executive Council, or amendment;

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Division have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby‘ agree as follows;

1. Amendment and modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
1.1.  Amend Section 1.8 of the General Provisions by replacing $5,817,338 with $6,352,338.
1.2.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 1 with the following:

Service Rate SFY 2010 | SFY 2011 | SFY 2012 | SFY 2013 | SFY 2014 | Total
Deployment | Cost Reimburse- | $888,025 $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 | $519,497 | $ 0 $5,817,338
Cycle ment

Support

Program

Additional $ 97,926 | $437,074 | $ 535,000
Funds ‘

Totals $888,025 $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 | $617,423 $437,074 | $6,352,338

1.3.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 2 with the following:

It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based
Care Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $6,352,338.

1.4.  Replace Exhibit B-1, by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the additional Deployment Cycle
: Support Program costs in the amount of $97,926 in SFY 2013 and $437,074 in SFY 2014.
1.5 Amend Section 1.7 of the General Provisions by extending the completion to June 30, 2014.

1.6 Amend the end date of all exhibits to June 30, 2014.

NH DHHS, DCBCS Contractor Initials: M

Date: j/‘r///’é/f
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2. Effective Date of Amendment:
This Amendment shall be effective May 1, 2013 or the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,

whichever is later.

3. Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Agreement

and the obligation of the parties thereunder shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth therein.

7 —
NH DHHS, DCBCS Contractor Initials: (4

Date: Q/A ///{//Z



My Commiission expirés: My Commissien Expires September 32013~

Page 3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above

written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Division of Community Based Care Services

By ‘—770/:4-«—;% %&Z&M

Nancy L. Rollins, Associate Commissioner

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Name of Corporation

By W\‘

Elin Treanor
Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer

State of New Hampshire

County of Hillsborough
‘On this the 24" day of April 2013, before me,@\am | Q)Ul.)h\) , the undersigned officer

personally appeared Elin Treanor who executed the foregoing instrument by signing her name.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

S oot L P Qo

Notary Public/Fasti

DIANE L. BOULAY, Notary Public

Approved by the Office of the Attorney General:

By /)Z[)M‘*f FUC/WAC—\

(/ Jeanne P. Herrick, Attorney

Date 25 )aYW.'L . 2013

Contractor Initials: Z—
Date: /// //M-j

NH DHHS, DCBCS
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Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Budget Narrative — SFY13

Line Item

Justification

Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings and Conventions

Occupancy

Telephone

Equipment

Travel

Printing

Subcontracts

Supplies

Includes the monthly wages of Easter Seals staff
charged to grant for direct service, administrative
support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

19.35% of salary & wages, includes benefit rate
reconciliation true up. Benefits include medical, dental,
life, workers compensation and long term disability
insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
centra] office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.
Feb phone bill in March rather than Feb because it was
received late making Mar expense higher than usual.

allows for purchase of replacement laptops for program
staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile.

Includes costs of copying program materials, business cards
for new staff (provided in-kind).

Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and
individuals for direct service to Service Members and their

families.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,
binders, file labels).
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Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Budget Narrative - SFY 14

Line Item

Justification

Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings and Conventions

Occupancy

Telephone

Equipment

Travel

Printing

Subcontracts

Supplies

Includes the monthly wages of Easter Seals staff
charged to grant for direct service, administrative
support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

19.35% of salary & wages, includes benefit rate
reconciliation true up. Benefits include medical, dental,
life, workers compensation and long term disability
insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
central office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.
Feb phone bill in March rather than Feb because it was
received late making Mar expense higher than usual.

allows for purchase of replacement laptops for program
staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile.

Includes costs of copying program materials, business cards
for new staff (provided in-kind).

Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and
individuals for direct service to Service Members and their
families.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,
binders, file labels).



Postage

Financial Assistance

Administrative Overhead

Includes the cost of mailing correspondence, and reports.

Emergency Financial Assistance provided to consumers
(provided in-kind).

Agency approved rate of 10% of direct expense to cover
administrative functions associated with program
(Management, IT, Payroll, Accounts Payable, HR,
Accounting, etc.)



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE »
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410

Nicholas A. Tou s
lcct‘))msmiSSi:::r:pa Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nancy L. Rollins ‘ .
Associate Commissioner . Approvad by [3’ +C/

pae. 1-172-13

April 11, 2013
- pema ode Hen B

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan : -

and the Honorable Council _ , ’ & 100, q 46
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services to amend
an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., vendor number
177204, to continue to manage the statewxde Deployment Cycle Support Program that prov1des support services
to New. Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are
deployed or returning from combat, by increasing the current amount by $35,000 from $5,782,338 to an amount
not to exceed $5,817,338, effective date of Governor and Executive Council approval. The original contract was
approved by Governor and Executive Council on-March 24, 2010 Item #88 .and subsequently amended on
September 22, 2010 Item #185A, June 20, 2012 Item #74, September 19, 2012 Ttem #69A. and March 6, 2013

Item #15. Funds to support this request are avallable in the following account, ' _ .

05-95-95-958010-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current ‘Revised
Modified Increase Modified
Fiscal Year . Class/Object : Class Title Amount. - Amount Amount
2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $ 888,025 : $ 888,025
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves ~ $2,409,816 . $2,409,816 -
2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,000,000 $2,000,000
2013 102-5_\0073 1 Contracts for Program Sves $ 484,497 $35.000 $ 519497

$5,782,338  $35,000  $53817,338
- EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their
families who are deployed or returning from combat. These funds represent additional federal funds available
from the National Guard that were not known at the time the contract was effective back in July 1, 2012. The
Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a community-based support system, which integrates current veteran
services with existing service delivery systems and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care.. It is a
preventive approach supporting families and military members pre, during and post deployments. Crisis
prevention for families and military members is addressed through early development of “care plans” by
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professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk assessment used to organize support services early, thereby
reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and families involved in the war effort.
Case managers proactively address “care plan™ needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health and
Human Services and the National Guard released a Request for Proposal to select a vendor to implement and

" “maifdge the’ statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was

_ posted on_the Department of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all

i

known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation

~--of-three proposals- recéivéd, consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format

and Adherence to Instructions, Background and ‘Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justlﬁcatlon The Request for Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a

- vendor to manage’ th&‘p'i'o'gram “The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest

price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the
deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performa.nce will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performa.nce measures and
other terms and, conditions of the contract as evidenced by moithly invoices, program/financial reports and site

_reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care- Services. The contractor has met or exceeded

performance crlterla during the pI’lOI‘ contract periods.

Should the Govemor and Executlve Couri¢il determine to not-authorize to amend this existing Agreement,
military men and women ‘and their families will not be prov1ded commumty—based support services pre, during

and post-deployment in active rmlltary duty.
Area served: stateWIde

Source of funds: 100% Other Funds (federal funds received and transferred from the State of New Hampshlre s
Adjutant General’s Department).

In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested. to support this
program.

Respectﬁllly submitted,

Assocxate Commissioner

J— ‘&JU\ Z
Approved by: . ; _

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission Is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AMENDMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”) dated April 11, 2013, by and between the State of
New Hampshire acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services of the Department of Health
& Human Services (hereinafier referred to as the “Division”) and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., corporation,
organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester,
NH (hereinafter referred to as the “Provider”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (hereinafter called the “Agreement”), dated March 6, 2013, the
Provider agreed to perform certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the Division of certain sums as specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended or
discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such modification
by the Governor & Executive Council, or amendment;

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Division have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows;

1. Amendment and modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:
1.1.  Amend Section 1.8 of the General Provisions by replacing $5,782,338 with $5,817,338.
1.2.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 1 with the following;:

Service Rate SFY 2010 SFY 2011 SFY 2012 SFY 2013 Total
Deployment | Cost $888,025 $2,409,816 $2,000,000 $484,497 $5,782,338
Cycle Reimburse-

Support ment

Program

Additional $ 35,000 § 35,000
Funds '

Totals $888,025 $2,409,816 $2,000,000 $519,497 $5,817,338

1.3~ (Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 2 with the following:

It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based
Care Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $5,817,338.

1.4.  Replace Exhibit B-1, by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the additional Deployment Cycle
Support Program costs in the amount of $35,000.

NH DHHS, DCBCS

e

Contractor Initials:

Py aY 2




Page 2

2. Effective Date of Amendment:

This Amendment shall be effective the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

3. Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Agreement
and the obligation of the parties thereunder shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth therein.

NH DHHS, DCBCS Contractor Initials: 6,/
Date: 7///470 /?)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above

written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Division of Community Based Care Services

o " Honcuod P20

Nancy L. Rolffhs, Associate Commissioner

Easter Seals New Hampshire. Inc.
Name of Corporation

By %M&r—'

Elin Treanor
Chief Operating Officer/Chief Financial Officer

State of New Hampshire

County of Messinmack Fil\s Do v

On this the _“i/hday of April 2013, before me, Wﬁiang Q)Od‘au, the undersigned officer
personally appeared Elin Treanor who executed the foregoing instrument by signingJ her name.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

an L Aol
Notary Public/Jestiec-of-the-Pemte/

DIANE L. BOULAY, Notary Public
My Commission Expires September 3.2013

My Commission expires:

Approved by the Office of the Attorney General:

By M@WV\

V' Jeanne P. Herrick, Attorney

Date /7 R ,2013

. —

NH DHHS, DCBCS Contractor Initials: ;
o/ / //A P ]
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Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

-Budget Narrative

Line Item

Justification

Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings and Conventions

Occupancy

Telephone
Equipment

Travel

Printing

Subcontracts

Supplies

Postage

Includes the monthly wages of Easter Seals staff
charged to grant for direct service, administrative
support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

21.35% of salary & wages, includes benefit rate
reconciliation true up. Benefits include medical, dental,
life, workers compensation and long term disability
insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
central office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.
Computers for staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile.

Includes costs of copying program materials, business cards
for new staff (provided in-kind).

Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and
individuals for direct service to Service Members and their

families.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,
binders, file labels).

Includes the cost of mailing correspondence, and reports.

[
o for ' 3



Financial Assistance - Emergency Financial Assistance provided to consumers
(provided in-kind).

Administrative Overhead - Agency approved rate of 10% of direct expense to cover
administrative functions associated with program
(Management, IT, Payroll, Accounts Payable, HR,
Accounting, etc.)

o
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE -
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
" DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-785-2964 www.dhhs.nh gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

February 14, 2013

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan

and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301 act #_ OO L4 L.[.q

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services to amend
an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., vendor number
177204, to continue to manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support services
to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are
deployed or returning from combat, by increasing the current amount by $148,497 from $5,633,841 to an amount
not to exceed $5,782,338, effective March 6, 2013, or date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later. The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010
Item #88 and subsequently amended on September 22, 2010 Item #185A, June 20, 2012 Item #74 and September
19, 2012 Item #69A. Funds to support this request are available in the following account.

05-95-95-958010-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Revised
Modified Increase Modified

Fiscal Year Class/Obiject Class Title Amount Amount Amount
2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  § 888,025 $ 888,025
2011 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves ~ $2,409,816 $2,409,816
2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  $2,000,000 . $2,000,000
2013 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sves  § 336,000 $148.497 $ 484.497
$5,633,841 $148,497 $5,782,338

-EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their
families who are deployed or returning from combat. These funds represent additional federal funds available
from the National Guard that were not known at the time the contract was effective back in July 1, 2012. The
Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a community-based support system, which integrates current veteran
services with existing service delivery systems and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care.. It is a
preventive approach supporting families and military members pre, during and post deployments. Crisis
prevention for families and military members is addressed through early development of “care plans” by



-+ Her Excellency, Governor: Margarel Wood Habsan

- and the Honorable Council
February 14, 2013
Page 2

professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk assessment used to organize support services early, thereby
reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and families involved in the war effort.
Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health and
Human Services and the National Guard released a Request for Proposal to select a vendor to implement and
manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was
- posted on the Deparasignt of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all
known potential vendors Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation
of thiree proposals recelved consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format
... and Adherence_to~Insgmctions, Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justification. The Request for Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a
vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest
_.price bid but they:reggived the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the
deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance measures and
other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices, program/financial reports and site
reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care Services. The contractor has met or exceeded -

performance criteria during the prior contract periods.

Sl}ould the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize to armend this existing Agreement,
military men and women and their families will not be provided community-based support services pre, during

and post-deployment in active military duty.
Area served: statewide.

Source of funds: 100% Other Funds (federal funds received and transferred from the State of New Hampshire’s
Adjutant General’s Department).
In the event Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this.
program.

Respectfully submitted,

~ | \/},C \ o ? ﬁ&w&&
Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

Approved b)x U\

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to_join communities and families
- in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AMENDMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter called the “Amendment”) dated February 12, 2013, by and between the State of
New Hampshire acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services of the Department of Health
& Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the “Division”) and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., corporation,
organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester,
NH (hereinafter referred to as the “Provider”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (hereinafter called the “Agreement”), dated September 19, 2012, the
Provider agreed to perform certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the Division of certain sums as specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended or
discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after approval of such modification
by the Governor & Executive Council, or améndment;

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Division have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows;

1. Amendment and modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1.1.  Amend Section 1.8 of the General Provisions by replacing $5,633,841 with $5,782,338.
1.2.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 1 with the following:

Service Rate SFY 2010 SFY 2011 SFY 2012 SFY 2013 Total
Deployment | Cost $888,025 $2,409,816 $2,000,000 $336,000 $5,633,841
Cycle Reimburse-

Support ment

Program

Additional $148,497 $ 148,497
Funds

Totals $888,025 $2,409,816 $2,000,000 $484,497 $5,782,338

1.3.  Replace Exhibit B, Purchase of Services, paragraph 2 with the following:

It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based
Care Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $5,782,338.

1.4.  Replace Exhibit B-1, by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the additional Deployment Cycle
Support Program costs in the amount of $148,497.

/ﬂ& Ialn
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Effective Date of Amendment:
This Amendment shall be effective March 6, 2012 or the date of Governor & Executive Council approval,

whichever is later.

Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Agreement

and the obligation of the parties thereunder shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth therein.

,}/l'}/l 3
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above

written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Division of Community Based Care Services

Y R g

Nancy L. Rollfds, Associate Commissioner

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Name of Corporation

VY TLardy yGammon, President & CEO

State of New Hampshire
County of Merrimack
On this the _L,l day of February 2013, before me, BE 14 BMJ&K,E , the undersigned officer
personally appeared Larry J. Gammon who executed the foregoing instrument by signing his/her name.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Bliblic/Justiceof the-Peace

BETTY R. BURKE, Notary Public
My Commission Expires February 13, 2013

My Commission expires:

Approved by the Office of the Attorney General:

By Kt AT Rgnnten,
(/ Jeanne P. Herrick, Attorney

Date /9 Fer ,2013

ﬂ(&d/fl/;g



Exhibit B-1 Contract Budget Form

Easter Seals New Hampshire
Deployment Cycle Support Program

SFY 2013 July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013

DHHS Funding

Easter Seals In- SFY13
Kind Amendment Total Cost
Salaries and Benefits ,
Salary & Wages 201,565 201,565
Taxes @ 7.65% 15,420 15,420
Fringes @ 19.35% 39,003 39,003
Direct Costs
Meetings 0 0
Occupancy 6,600 6,600
Telephone 1,750 1,750
Equipment 1,100 1,100
Travel 4,000 4,000
Advertising 80 0 80
Subcontracts 169,014 169,014
Supplies 1,900 1,900
Postage 100 100
Financial Assistance 288,000 288,000
Subtital 288,080 440,452 728,532
Indirect Administrative Overhead 28,808 44,045 72,853
Total 316,888 484,497 801,385

J ,1/,}//3



Division of Community Based Care Services
Deployment Cycle Support Care Coordination Program

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Budget Narrative

SFY 2013 - July, 2012 - June 30, 2013

Line Item

Justification

Salary & Wages

Taxes

Fringe Benefits

Meetings

Occupancy

Telephone

Equipment

Travel

Advertising

Subcontracts

Postage

Supplies

Wages for Easter Seals staff charged to grant for direct
service, administrative support and oversight of program.

7.65% of salary and wages as budgeted.

19.35% of salary & wages. Benefits include medical,
dental, life, workers compensation and long term disability

insurance.

Includes the cost of training clinical staff and attending
essential meetings and conferences.

Includes cost of renting remote office space used
exclusively by program and allocated share of program’s
occupancy costs (rent, utilities, grounds keeping, etc.) at
central office.

Cost of cell phones and land lines used by program staff.

Includes cost of a laptop computer for new care
coordination staff

Monthly reimbursement to program staff for work related
travel at .28 per mile. '

Cost of advertising ES Veteran Services (provided in kind)
Includes monthly fees paid to organizations and

individuals for direct service to Service Members and their
families.

Includes the cost of mailing correspondence and reports.

Includes the cost of consumable office supplies (paper,

%%//4/13



Financial Assistance

Indirect Administrative Overhead

binders, file labels, replacement toner/printer cartridges,
etc).

Veterans Count Emergency Financial Assistance provided
to consumers (provided in-kind).

Agency approved rate of 10% of direct expense to cover
administrative functions associated with program
(Management, IT, Payroll, Accounts Payable, HR,
Accounting, etc.)

o
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Commissioner
Nancy L. Rollins Approvad by, ("‘ ‘f &
Associate Commissioner i
Dete Cf ~ | q “ I~

August 31,2012 Wem# 4 A

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch i . )
and the Honorable Executive Council Corvzact # ‘OOC) 9 L=

State House ; b

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

&
(o~
L2

He o

REQUESTED ACTION Now

oy

QTR SRR

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Siézl'?viées,
to amend an existing-Agreement (Purchase Order #10006949) with Easter::Seals New Hampshire; Fnc., 555
Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103, (Vendor #177204) to continue to manage the statewide Deployment Cycle
Support Program that provides support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty
service members and their families who are deployed or returning from combat, by extending the completion date
from September 30, 2012 to June 30, 2013, with no additional cost, effective October 1, 2012 or the date of
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later. The original contract was approved by Governor
and Executive Council on March 24, 2010 (Item # 88), and subsequently amended on September 22, 2010 (Item #
185A), June 8, 2011 (Item # 115) and June 20, 2012 (Item # 74).

These funds can be adjusted, if needed and justified, between State Fiscal Years. Funds are available in State
Fiscal Year 2013 in the following account:

05-95-95-95810-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

State

Fiscal Current

Year Class/Object Class Title Modified Budget
Contracts for program

2010 102-500731 services § 888,025.00
Contracts for program -

2012 102-500731 services $2,409,816.00
Contracts for program

2012 102-500731 services $2,000,000.00
Contracts for program

2013 102-500731 services $336,000.00

Total $5,633,841.00




His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

August 31,2012

Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their

.. families. who are deployed or returning from combat. The Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a

community-based support system, which integrates current veteran services with existing service delivery systems

~-and-allows local acees§Yor a full-spectrum of care. It is a preventive approach supporting families and military

members pre, during, and post deployments. Crisis prevention for families and military members is addressed
through early development of care plans” by professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk assessment

members and families involved in the war effort. Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer
or provide further treatment, as necessary. The Agreement will be extended from September 30, 2012 to June 30, -
2013. This request is not to increase or request additional appropriations, it is to allow Easter Seals to spend down
any remaining funds that may exist as of September 30, 2012.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health and
Human Services and the National Guard released a Request For Proposal to select a vendor to implement and
manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was
posted on the Department of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all
known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation
of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format
and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justification. The Request For Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a
vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest
price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008. Approval of this contract amendment will ensure that the needs of New
Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the
deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in the contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance
measures and other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices, program/financial
reports, and site reviews. Performed by the Division of Community Based Serv1ces The contractor has met or
exceeded performance criteria during the prior contract periods.

———-Should-the-Govemneor-and-Executive-Council-determine-to-not-authorize to-amend this-existing Agreement, . .

military men and women and their families will not be provided community-based support services pre, during
and post-deployment in active military duty.

Area Served: Statewide

The source of funds: 100% other funds (i.e. federal funds received and transferred from the State of New
Hampshire’s Adjutant General’s Department).



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

August 31, 2012
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In the event that other funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.
Respectfully submi%

Nancy b Rollins
Associate Commissioner

WO AT
Approved by: }«k \ s

Nicholas A. Toumnpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



AMENDMENT
This Agreement (hereinafter called the "Amendment") dated August 31, 2012, by and between the State of New
Hampshire, acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services, Community Based Military

Programs of the Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Bureau") and Easter

. Seals New Hampshire, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place

of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03103 (hereinafter referred to as the "Provider").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter called the "Agreement") dated May 30, 2012 the
Provider agreed to perform certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the Bureau of certain sums as specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Bureau have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

To Amend Completion Date section 1.7 by extending the completion date from September 30, 2012 to June
30,2013.

To Amend Exhibit A Scope of Services as follows:

Contract Period: July 1, 2009 through September 30, 2012, revised to “through June 30, 2013”.

To Amend Exhibit B Purchase of Services as follows:

Contract Period: July 1, 2009 through September 30, 2012 revised to “through June 30, 2013”.

To Amend Exhibit B-1 Contract Budget

Exhibit B-1: Budget Justification for July 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012 revised to “through
June 30, 2013”.

To Amend Standard Exhibits D, E, F, G, H, I and J by extending the Period Covered from September 30,
2012 to June 30, 2013.

2.  Effective Date of Amendment:

This Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2012 or the date of Governor and Executive Council

approval, whichever is later.



3.  Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the

Agreement, and the obligations of the parties thereunder, shall remain in full force and effect in accordance

with the terms and conditions set forth therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their-hands as of the day and year first above

written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Health and Human Services

Nancy L. Rollmg A55001ate Commissioner

Easter Seals NH, Inc.

Name of Corporation

Q/\AW\E——— Chief Humon Resources offcer

Name/Title

STATE OF {\ea/ H(lmpshirc

COUNTY OF _ H\ls\xorex LG n
On this the l:l:’m day of Sﬁphﬂh% 20 12 , before me, MA_@MMe undersigned officer,

personally appeared Tina M Shar lf)\l/ who acknowledged himself/herself to be the_(C HR(

Cof _Easler Seals nW, \ne

, a corporation, and that he/she, as such _CHRG

being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name

of the corporation by himself/herselfas ~ [y, ™M Shaf bL,{

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and officia] seal

ALYCIA D. MONROE, Notary

Notary, Bublic/Justice of the Peace

ublic

My commission expires: My Commission Expires October 22, 2013

Approved by Attorney General this

Approved by Governor and Council this day of , 20

T dayof Sé,ﬂl— ,20 12~

By __Xaan C Mennn b
T RAL
OFF@EEOF HE ATT;PRNEY C'}IEL\IEW“ o
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-9410 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9410
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins

Associate
Commissioner

May 31, 2012

i D BY

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Community Based Care Services,
to amend an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., 555 Auburn
Street, Manchester, NH 03103, (Vendor #177204) to continue to manage the statewide Deployment Cycle
Support Program that provides support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty
service members and their families who are deployed or returning from combat, by increasing the current amount
by $336,000 from $5,297,841.00 to an amount not to exceed $5,633,841.00 and extend the completion date from
June 30, 2012 to September 30, 2012, effective July 1, 2012 or the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later. The original contract was approved by Govemor and Executive Council on March
24, 2010 (Item # 88), amended and approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 22, 2010 (Item #
185A) and June 8, 2011 (Item # 115). These funds can be adjusted, if needed and justified, between State Fiscal
Years. Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2013 in the following account:

05-95-95-95810-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS:COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

State Current Increase Revised

Fiscal Modified (Decrease) Modified

Year Class/Object Class Title Budget Amount Budget
Contracts for program

2010 102-500731 services $ 888,025.00 $0.00 $ 888,025.00
Contracts for program

2012 102-500731 services $2,409,816.00 $0.00 $2,409,816.00
Contracts for program

2012 102-500731 services $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00
Contracts for program

2013 102-500731 services $ 0.00 | $336,000.00 $ 336,000.00

Total $5,297,841.00 | $ 336,000.00 $5,633,841.00




His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

May 31, 2012

Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. by
increasing the price limitation and extending the completion date to September 30, 2012 from June 30, 2012 in
order to continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that
provides support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and
their familics who arc dcployed or returning from combat. The Deployment Cycle Support Program builds a
community-based support system, which integrates current veteran services with existing service delivery
systems and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care. It is a preventive approach supporting families and
military members pre, during, and post deployments. Crisis prevention for families and military members is
addressed through early development of “care plans” by professional care providers. The “care plan” is a risk
assessment used to organize support services early, thereby reducing the overall number of emergency situations
for service members and families involved in the war effort. Case managers proactively address “care plan”
needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The original Agreement and the original Governor and Executive Council letter approved on March 24,
2010 (Item #88) included the provision to renew the contract for up to five (5) one year renewals. This request is
to exercise three months of the third renewal option during SFY 2013 based on an additional federal
appropriations received by the State of New Hampshire’s Adjutant General’s Department that will be available
through September 30, 2012 and that the contractor has met or exceeded performance criteria during the prior
contract periods.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance
measures and other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices, program/financial
reports, and site reviews performed by the Division of Community Based Care Services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council determine to not authorize to amend this existing
Agreement, military men and women and their families will not be provided community-based support services
pre, during and post-deployment in active military duty.

The original contract was awarded as a result of a competitive bid process. The Department of Health
and Human Services and the National Guard released a Request For Proposal to select a vendor to implement and
manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program on December 1, 2009. The Request For Proposal was
posted on. the Department of Health and Human Services’ website and a notice of the release was sent to all
known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation
of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria identified in the Request For Proposal: Format
and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and
Budget Justification. The Request For Proposal stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a
vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., did not submit the lowest
price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed the highest amount of in-kind support. In
addition, they have contracted with the Division of Community Based Care Services to develop and manage the
pilot program since its inception in 2008.

Area Served: Statewide

The source of funds: 100% other funds (i.e. federal funds received and transferred from the State of New
Hampshire’s Adjutant General’s Department).
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In the event that other funds are no longer av~ailable, general funds will not be requested to support this
program,

Respectfully submitted,

Associate Commissioner

L
Approved by:

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



BID LIST FOR RFP # 10 DCBCS-CBMP-DCSP-02

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR lMPLEMENTATION AND AND MANAGEMENT OF DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUPPORT PROGRAM

. T'DDER'S NAME/ADDRESS:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Iinc. 555 Aubum Street, Manchester, NH
Family Strength, 85 North State Street, Concord, NH
New Hampshire Chlidren’s Trust Fund, 10 Ferry Strest, Suite 315, Concord,NH
RECOMMENDATION : Contract with Easter Seais New Hampshire, Inc.

RFP DCSP BID LIST.xls

Jo Moncher-Evaluator Criteria/Max. Pts. Eastsr Seals Familystrength ™ [NH Childrans Trust]
Bureau Chief Agency Capacity (30) 26 24 17
DHHS Community Based Military Programs ~ Workplan (50) 48. 38 28
Budgst (15) 13 13 8
Format (5) 5 5 4
’ Points: 80 81 ~ 58
Ranking: 1 2 3
[Wiiilam Howiey-Evaluator "~ Easter Seals Famnysmngth NH Childrens Trust
Financial Manager Agency Capacity (30) 29 - 24 19
DHHS Community Based Care Services Workplan (50) . 48 40 33
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) ] 5 5
Points: 96 82 68
Ranking: 1 P 3
Col, Greenwood _ Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Ch! chn' Idrens Trust]
-1 Agency Capacity (30) 27 24 -12 .
New Hampshim Nationa! Guard Workplan (50) 49 43 17
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5 5 § -5
Points:| 95 85 45
Ranking: 1 2 . 3
[Col. Marteli “Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Chiidrens Trust
Joint Chief of Staff Agency Capacity (30) - © 20 18 11
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 33 28 11
. Budget (15) 11 8 4
Format (5) 5 3 3
Pointa: 69 55 29
Ranking: 1 2 3
-{Col. Protxmann Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength Ni"l Chi dnm Trust
2nd Wing Commander Agency Capachty (30) 26 22 BEER
|Néw Hampshire Nationat Guard Workplan (50) a2 35 731
Budget (15) 14 11 11
Format {5) 5 S 5
Points: -87 73 E
Ranking: 1 2 3
[Average Scores "Easter Soals Familystrength __NH Childrens Trust]
Polnts: 84 7 45
Ranklng: 1 2 3
[Bid Amounts. Eastor Seals____ Familystrength __ NH Chiidrens Trust
SFY 2010 (3/1/10 - 6/30/10)1 $ - B8B0251 S 811,818 s 799,998
SFY 2011 (7/1/10 - 9/30110) § 604,8161 $ 523,671 § 600,000
Total:| $ 149208411 § 1,135,489 1,399,998
In-Kind Funds:!| $ 155,182 | § 148341 % 67,792
3/4/2010
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AMENDMENT
This Agreement (hereinafter called the "Amendment") dated this 30" day of May 2012, by and between the
State of New Hampshire, acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services, Community
Based Military Programs of the Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"Bureau") and Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire, with a place of business at 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03103 (hereinafter
referred to as the "Provider").

WHi:“.REAS, pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter called the "Agreement”) dated March 1, 2010, and
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010, (Item # 88), amended on September 22,
2010 (Item #185A), and amended on June 8, 2011 (Item # 115) the Provider agreed to perform certain services
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the Bureau of
certain sums as specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Bureau have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consid?,ration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

To Amend Completion Date section 1.7 by extending the completion date from June 30, 2012 to September
30, 2012.

To Amend Price Limitation section 1.8 by increasing the amount by $336,000 from $5,297,841 to
$5,633,841.

To Amend Exhibit A Scope of Services as follows:

Contract Period: July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2012, revised to July 1, 2009 through September 30,
2012.

To Amend Exhibit B Purchase of Services as follows:

Contract Period: July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2012, revised to July 1, 2009 through September 30,
2012. ’

To Amend Exhibit B Purchase of Services paragraph 1 as follows:

Initials;
Date: -7
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1. Subject to the Contractor’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the
Division of Community Based Care Services shall reimburse the Contractor for services provided to
eligible individuals, by the Contractor, as detailed below and in Exhibit B-2 Budget and Exhibit B-2

Narrative:
Service Rate SFY SFY 2011 SFY 2012 SFY 2013 Total
2010
Deployment
cycle Cost
Support Reimbursemen
Program t $888,025 $2,409,816 | $2,000,000 $336,000 $5,633,841

To Amend Exhibit B Purchase of Services paragraph 2 as follows:
2. It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based
Care Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $5,633,841.

To Amend Exhibit B-1 by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the Deployment Cycle Support

Program costs for the period of July 1, 2012 through September 30, 2012, in the amount of
$336,000.00

(see attached Exhibit B-1)

To Amend Exhibit B-2 Budget Justification as follows:

Exhibit B-2: Contract Justification for July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012 revised to Exhibit B-2: Budget
Justification for July 1, 2011 through September 30, 2012.

To Amend Standard Exhibits D, E, F, G, H. and [ by extending the Period Covered from June 30, 2012 to

September 30,2012.

Remainder of Page Left Intentionally Blank

53
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2. Effective Date of Amendment:

This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2012 or the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later. ‘ -

3. Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the
Agreement, and the obligations of the parties thereunder, shall remain in full force and effect in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth therein.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

Division of Community Based Care Services
Department of Health and Human Services

Associate Comfipissioner

Easkr Seals NM G ine

Name of Corporati
By Q\/\ ™ L

Name/Title

STATE OF Azg“g Bgmggb[;ﬁ

county or_ Ni| [sboroug b
On thisthe 3} S*day of m“y , 20 J 2 , before me,@‘ar\e 'boulm:} the undersigned officer,

personally appeared “ng S[har bg who acknowledged himself/herself to be the ,Sﬁ’ V E Qi :é g) aurn
oCeS
h .r e’ :D\L .
of Easter Seals i Jow) HumpsM comporation, and that ke/she, as such S \[P_of Woman Reswres

being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name

of the corporation by himself/herself as S(‘ \LP D'F Hurmr\ ,\)\OSOJ ‘S .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.
Notary Public/Jusme 3/

My commission expires:

DIANE L. BOULAY, Notary Public
My Cettimission Expires September 3, 2013

Initials:
Date: - \
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Approved by Attorney General this /! day of “Hr e ,20 /2~

By __ JlvS M
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Approved by Governor and Council this day of , 20

itials:
e (73



Exhibit B-1 Contract Budget Form

Easter Seals New Hampshire

Deployment Cycle Support Program

SFY 2013 July 1, 2012 - Sept 30, 2012

Easter Seals DHHS

in-kind funding  Total Cost
Salaries and Benefits
Personnel Wages 107,000 107,000
Taxes 7.65% - 8,186 8,186
Fringe Benefits 19.35% - 20,705 20,705
Direct Costs -
Meetings and Conventions -
Occupancy 6,600 6,600
Telephone 1,750 1,750
Equipment -
Travel 4,000 4,000
Printing -
Advertising 80 80
Subcontracts 157,014 157,014
Supplies 100 100
Postage 100 100
Financial Assistance 75,000 75,000
Subtotal 75,080 305,455 380,535
Indirect Administrative Overhead 7,508 30,545 38,054
Total Expenses 82,588 336,000 418,589

Date

FQSE{ Dok °/

Contractor's Initials: _QAILA:——‘

52412
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1

ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of
Agreement, is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or
in part, under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability
of funds, including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds
affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or
otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the
Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no
event shall the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or
available funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated
or available funds, the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever. The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify
services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds
from any other source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the
General Provisions, Account -Number, or any other account, in the event funds are
reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is
amended by adding the following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole
discretion of the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of
early termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
clients receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those
needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any
information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement
and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the
Transition Plan to the State as requested.

Initiais:,

Date: —QM& - 312
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10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients
receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by
another entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a
process for uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. @ The Contractor shall include the proposed
communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the
following subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or
property damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per
occurrence and excess/umbrella liability coverage in the amount of $15,000,000 per
occurrence; and

nitiats;_ CWAAD
Dale;, oAl



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-8560 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 8560
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

May 16, 2011

APPROVED BY

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council DATE L ({( [ { ‘
State House M
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 PAGE 13
{g
REQUESTED ACTION  |TEM #

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Community Based Care
Services (DCBCS), to amend an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc., 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103, (Vendor #177204) to continue to manage the
statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program (DCSP), by increasing the current amount of $3,297,841.00 by
$2,000,000 to an amount not to exceed $5,297,841.00 and extend the completion date from June 30, 2011 to June
30, 2012, effective July 1, 2011 upon Governor and Council approval. The original contract was approved by
Governor and Council on March 24, 2010 (Item #88), and an amendment was approved by Governor and Council
on September 22, 2010 (Item #185A). These funds can be adjusted, if needed and justified, between State Fiscal
Years. Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2012 in the following account:

05-95-95-95810-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASES CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Modified /Decreased Modified
Year Class/Object Class Title Amount’ Amount Amount
‘Contracts for
Program
2010 102-0731 Services $888,025.00! $0.00{ $888,025.00
ontracts for;
Program
2011 102-0731 Services |$2,409,816.00! $0.00| $2,409,816.00
Contracts for;
Program
2012 102-0731 Services $0.00{ $2,000,000.00i $2,000,000.00

Total: $3,297,841.00 $2,000,000.00 $5,297,841.00



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
And the Honorable Executive Council

May 16, 2011

Page 2

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to
continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides
support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their
families who are deployed or returning from combat. The DCSP builds a community-based support system,
which integrates current veteran services with existing service delivery systems, and allows local access for a
full-spectrum of care. It is a preventive approach supporting families and military members pre, during, and post
deployments. Crisis prevention for families and military members is addressed through early development of
“care plans™ by professional care providers. The “care plan” is basically a risk assessment used to organize
support services early, thereby reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and
families involved in the war effort. Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide
further treatment, as necessary. The Agreement will be extended through June 30, 2012.

The original contract was awarded as a result of the competitive bid process. The Department of Health
and Human Services and the National Guard released a Request-For-Proposal (RFP) to select a vendor to
implement and manage the statewide DCSP on December 1, 2009. The RFP was posted on the DHHS Website
and a notice of the release was sent to all known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was
selected following a comprehensive evaluation of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria
identified in the Request for Proposals: Format and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of
Operation and Workplan, and Budget and Budget Justification. The RFP stated that the bid amount was not the
main factor in selecting a vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire did
not submit the lowest price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed to the highest amount
of in-kind support. In addition, they have contracted with DCBCS to develop and manage the pilot program since
its inception in 2008 and approval of this contract will ensure that the needs of New Hampshire National Guard,
Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are engaged in the deployment cycle will
continue to be met as described in this contract.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance
measures and other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices and program/financial
reports submitted to DCBCS.

If this funding is not approved, military men and women and their families will not be provided
community-based support services pre-, during and post-deployment in active military duty.

The original contract, as well as the letter to Governor and Council, was approved by Governor and
Council on March 24, 2010 (Item #88) and included the provision to renew the contract for up to five (5) one
year renewals. This request is to exercise the second one-year renewal option during SFY 2012.

Area Served: Statewide

The source of funds is 100% other funds (i.e. federal funds transferred from the Adjutant General’s
Department to the Department of Health and Human Services).

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this
program.



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
And the Honorable Executive Council

May 16, 2011
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Respectfully submitted, Z

Nancy L. Rbllins
Associate Commissioner

iyision ofCommunity Care Services

Approved by:
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services ' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens 1o achleve health and independence.



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Nicholas A. Toumpas 603-271-8560 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 8560
Commissioner Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dbhs.nh.gov

Nauncy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

August 24, 2010

APPROVED BY

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch

and the Honorable Executive Council DATE M__ﬂ/\‘éﬂ\[/‘a‘\‘
0

State House PA
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 6E___

ITew
REQUESTED ACTION #1658

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Community Based Care
Services (DCBCS), to amend an existing Agreement (Purchase Order #1006949) with Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc., 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH 03103, (Vendor #177204) to continue to manage the
statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program (DCSP), in an amount not to exceed $1,805,000.00, effective
October 1, 2020 or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2011. The
original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 24, 2010 (Item #88). These funds can be
adjusted, if needed and justified, between State Fiscal Years. Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2011 in the
following account:

05-95-95-95810-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASES CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Fiscal Year Class/Object Class Title Amount Revised Adjusted
Totals
Contracts for
2010 102-0731 Program $888,025.00 $0.00 $888,025.00
Services

Contracts for

2011 102-0731 Program $604,816.00] $1,805,000.00{ $2,409,816.00
Services
Total $1,492,841.00 $ 1,805,000.00 $3,297,841.00
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this Requested Action is to amend an existing Agreement with Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. to continue the operation and management of the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program
that provides support services to New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members
and their families who are deployed or returning from combat. The DCSP builds a community-based support
system, which integrates current veteran services with existing service delivery systems, and allows local access



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
And the Honorable Executive Council

March 1, 2010

Page 2

for a full-spectrum of care. It is a preventive approach supporting families and military members pre, during, and
post deployments. Crisis prevention for families and military members is addressed through early development
of “care plans” by professional care providers. The “care plan” is basically a risk assessment used to organize
support services early, thereby reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service: members and
families involved in the war effort. Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide
further treatment, as necessary. The Agreement will be extended through June 30, 2011.

The original contract was awarded as a resuit of the competitive bid process. The Department of Health
and Human Services and the National Guard released a Request-For-Proposal (RFP) to select a vendor to
implement and manage the statewide DCSP on December 1, 2009. The RFP was posted on the DHHS Website
and a notice of the release was sent to all known potential vendors. Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was
selected following a comprehensive evaluation of three proposals received, consistent with the following criteria
identified in the Request for Proposals: Format and Adherence to Instructions, Background and Capacity, Plan of
Operation and Workplan, and Budget and Budget Justification. The RFP stated that the bid amount was not the
main factor in selecting a vendor to manage the program. The selected bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire did
not submit the lowest price bid but they received the overall highest score and committed to the highest amount
of in-kind support. In addition, they have contracted with DCBCS to develop and manage the pilot program since
its inception in 2008 and approval of this contract will ensure that the needs of New Hampshire National Guard,
Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are the deployment cycle will continue to be
met as described in this contract. See attached Bid List for names of bidder, evaluators, criteria, scores and
recommendation.

The contractor’s performance will continue to be measured by their ability to meet the performance
measures and other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices and program/financial
reports submitted to DCBCS.

Area Served: Statewide

The source of funds is 100% other funds (i.e. federal funds transferred from the Adjutant General’s
Department to the Department of Health and Human Services).

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.
tfully Swm @

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner
ivision of Community Based Care Services

-,
Approved by: X ﬂ&k / >

icholas A, Toumpas
Commissioner ;

Res

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



BID LIST FOR RFP # 10 DCBCS-CBMP-DCSP-02

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND AND MANAGEMENT OF DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUPPORT PROGRAM

BIDDER'S NAME/ADDRESS:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH

Family Strength, 85 North State Street, Concord, NH

New Hampshire Children's Trust Fund, 10 Ferry Street, Suite 315, Concord,NH
RECOMMENDATION : Contract with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

| RFPDCSP BID LIST xis

Jo Monchar-Evaluator Criteria/Max, Pts. Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
Bureau Chief Agency Capacity (30) 26 24 17
DHHS Community Based Military Programs Workplan (50) 46 39 26
Budget (15) 13 13 8
Format (5) 5 5 4
‘ Polints: 90 81 55
Ranking: 1 2 3
Willlam Howley-Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
Financial Manager Agency Capacity (30) 29 24 19
DHHS Community Based Care Services Workplan (50) 48 40 33
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) 5 5 ) 5
Points: 96 82 68
RanMng: 1 2 3
Col. Greenwood Easter Seals l-familystrength NH Chiidrens Trust
J=1 Agency Capacity {30) 27 24 12
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 49 43 ' 17
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Points: 95 85 45
Ranking: 1 2 3
[Col. Martell Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
Joint Chief of Staff Agency Capacity (30) 20 18 11
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 33 ‘ 26 11
Budget (15) 11 8 4
Format (5) 5 3 3
Points: 69 55 29
Ranking: 1 2 3
Col. Protzmann Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
2nd Wing Commander Agency Capacity (30) 26 22 15
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 42 35 31
Budget (15) 14 11 11
Format (5) 5 5 5 "
Points: 87 73 82
Ranking: 1 2 3
Average Scores Easter Seals Familystrength  NH Childrens Trust '
Points: 84 71 45
Ranking: 1 2 3
Bid Amounts Easter Seals Familystrongth __NH Childrens Trust
SFY 2010 (3/1/10 - 6/30/10)] $ 888,025 1 $ 611,818 | § ‘799,999
SFY 2011 (7/1/10 - 9/30/10){ $ 604,816 | § 523,671 § 600,000
Total:| § 1,492,841 | § 1,135,489 | § 1,399,999
In-Kind Funds:| § 155,182 | § 14,834 [ § 67,792
3/4/2010
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AMENDMENT

This Agreement (hereinafter called the "Amendment") dated this 23rd day of August, 2010, by and between the
State of New Hampshire, acting by and through its Division of Community Based Care Services, Community Based
Military Programs of the Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "Bureau™) and
Easter Seals NH, a corporation organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, with a place of business at
555 Auburn Street, Manchester, New Hampshire 03103 (hereinafter referred to as the "Provider").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter called the "Agreement") dated March 1, 2010, and
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 24, 2010, (Item # 88), the Provider agreed to perform
certain services upon the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the
Bureau of certain sums as specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Provider and the Bureau have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions contained in the
Agreement and set forth herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement:

The Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

To Amend Price Limitation section 1.8 by increasing the amount from $1,492,841.00 to $3,297,841.00.

To Amend section 1.7 by extending the completion date from September 30, 2010 to June 30, 201 1.

To Amend Exhibit A Scope of Services as follows:

Contract Period: March 1, 2010 to September 30, 2010 revised to March 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011.

Contractor’s Initials: _( MLO
Date: X .J2(\D
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To Amend Exhibit B as detailed in italics:

EXHIBIT B
PURCHASE OF SERVICES

Contractor Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Contract Period: July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2011
1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Division of

Community Based Care Services shall reimburse the Contractor for services provided to eligible individuals, by
the Contractor, as detailed below and in Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 Budget Narrative:

Service Rate SFY 2010 SFY 2011 Total

Deployment Cycle Support Program | Cost Reimbursement |$  888,025.00 |$§ 2,409,816.00 |$ 3,297,841.00

2. It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community Based Care
Services under this Agreement exceed the sum of $3,297,841.00.

3. Requests for Payment shall be submitted on a combined line item cost reimbursement basis for expenses
incurred, on a monthly basis, on the Contractor’s letterhead. The Contractor shall also submit monthly,
quarterly and final financial reports that detail the line item expenses in accordance with instructions provided
by the State to the Contractor. The Division of Community Based Care Services shall then pay the Contractor
the amount of the request for payment which has been approved by the Division of Community Based Care
Services.

4. The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses incurred for services rendered in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with the applicable State and
federal laws and regulations. The amount of any payment approved shall be determined at the sole discretion
of the Division of Community Based Care Services.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part,
in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if such services or products have not been satisfactorily completed according to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

6. The Contractor and the State may adjust the contract budget through line item increases, decreases, or the
creation of new line items, provided these adjustments do not exceed the Contract price. Such adjustments
shall only be made upon written request and written approval by the State with programmatic justifications.

7. Payment Requests, and financial and program reports shall be sent to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Community Based Military Programs -

Hugh Gallen Office Park

129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building

Concord, NH 03301

Contractor’s Initials: G AD

Date: X.;;;};()
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To Amend Exhibit B-1 by adding a Contract Budget Form to identify the Deployment Cycle Support program
costs for the period of October 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011, in the amount of $1,805,000.00. (See Attached)

To Amend Exhibit B-2 by adding language for the Budget Justification for the period of October 1, 2010 through
June 30, 2011. (See Attached)

To Amend Standard Exhibits D, E, F, G, H, and [ by extending the Period Covered from September 30, 2010 to
June 30, 2011,

2. Effective Date of Amendment:

This Amendment shall be effective October 1, 2010, upon approval of Governor and Council.

3. Continuance of Agreement:

Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this Amendment, the Agreement,

and the obligations of the parties thereunder, shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms

and conditions set forth therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above written.

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
Division of Community Based Care Services
Community Military Based Programs

Department of Health and Human Sgrviges

By

Associate Commissioner

- ,
C2sler Seals N
Name of Corporation

By QMML SY P Human Prceedteq

Name/Title

STATE OF _Newy Hom ashuce.
COUNTY OF _H;lis\ho 4! 55'”:3
On this the 24 day of A{@AL, 20 10 , before me, HZU![?:[& b bgg@fg the undersigned officer,

personally appeared __ iy M Shoud b / who acknowledged himself/herself to be the_ S \/ P_HR
of @;& l-;g L§}f( S‘({'QIS A QH, ln(: , & corporation, and that he/she, as such T Tare l‘:! ,Sbﬁ[ bil being

authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing the name of the

corporation by himself/herself as Q/\/\ VL (S_/—\

Contractor’s Initials: gg&
Date: K a 9, D



Page 4 of 6

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand T@ ofﬁcia? SE;
ﬁ;tary ublic/Justice Of the Peace

My commission expires: ALYGIA D. DWYER, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 22,2013

“
Approved by Attorney General this 5 day of _Q#M, 20 (O .

BYW
OFF1 EATTORNEY GENERAIA?/

Rebetce Lbooclard , #

Approved by Governor and Council this day of , 20

Contractor’s Initials: S] AL
Date:  _¥-33.10



EXHIBIT B-1
Contract Budget Form

Page 5 of 6

Agency Name

Easter Seals New Hampshire |

Program Service Name

Deployment Cycle Support Program/Veterans Count

SFY 2011 (October 1, 2010-June 30, 2011)
B

—A=B¥C - C

Program Service | Total Cost Requested DHHS funding Other Fﬁding___
Salaries & Benefits
Personnel Salaries/Wages $ 429219 | § 414219 | $ 15,000 |
Fringe Benefits:

Taxes 7.65% $ 32,836 | $ 31688 | % 1,148

Benefits 13% $ 55,798 | $ 53,848 | § 1,950
Total Salaries & Benefits $ 517,853 | $ 499,755 | $ 18,098 ]
Direct Costs X
Meetings & Conventions $ 3,000] % 3,000
Occupancy $ 27,330 | $ 14,000 | $ 13,330
Telephones $ 2,700 | § 2,700
Equipment $ 900 | $ 900
Travel $ 8,100 | $ 8,100
Printing $ 1,350 | $ 1,350
Advertising $ 1001 $ 100
Subcontracts $ 1,108,200 | $ 1,108,200
Supplies $ 2,700 | § 2,700
Postage $ 104 | § 104
Financial Assistance $ 270,000 $ 270,000

$ -
$ -

Total Direct Costs $ 1,424,484 | $ 1,141,154 | $ 283,330
Total Salary/Benefits/Direct $ 1,942,337 | $ 1,640,909 | $ 301,428
Admin Costs @ 10 % of Direct $ 194234 1 % 164,001 | $ 30,143
Total Program Costs and Funding | $ 2,136,571 | $ 1,805,000 | § 331,571

Contractor's Initials:
Date:

2310
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Exhibit B-2: Budget Justification for October 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011

Salaries/Wages: Salaries/wages for ESNH staff with salaries/wages allocated to this program as indicated on the
Personnel Form

Fringe Benefits: Calculated as 7.65% for taxes and 13% for benefits for staff covered by this contract. Benefits
include health insurance, dental insurance, life insurance, long term disability.

Meetings & Conventions: Includes the cost of attendance at any meetings or events pertaining to the work of this
program as well as food for meetings.

Occupancy: Includes the cost of rented office in remote location to serve a specific geographic area and the allocated
costs of space used by the program at 555 Auburn Street in Manchester, NH.

Telephones: Includes the cost of cell phones for key staff .

Equipment: Includes the monthly rental charge for office machines.

Travel: Includes the cost of staff travel, reimbursed at the agency rate of .28 per mile.

Printing: Includes the cost of brochures, promotional materials, newsletters, reports, training materials, etc.
Advertising: Includes the allocation of advertising/recruiting costs to agency.

Subcentracts: Includes payments to contracted agencies and individuals who provide direct service/care coordination
to service members and their families across the State. Also included is the cost of program evaluation identified in
our proposal as required by the RFP.

Supplies: Includes the cost of consumable office and program supplies.

Postage: Includes the cost of postage for mailings to fundor, clients, subcontractors.

Financial Assistance: Financial Assistance provided to Service Membes and their families, such as food, rental

assistance, mortgage assistance, fuel assistance, childcare, medical treatment, etc.

Admin: Calculated at 10% of total program cost per agency policy. Includes expenses such as administration,
accounting, billing, information technology, maintenance, human resources.

Contractor’s Initials: ( 704 )
Date: g .Q;3.| b



Personnel Form - Program Personnel Costs Budget By Service

Agency Name: Eastel Sedls NeW Hampsnire
Program Service Name: Deployment Cycle Support 5rogram
SFY 2011
Period: October 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011
Total Annual Salary Allocated Salary Allocated
|Position Title Salary To Program to this Contract
Key Administrative Staff
Larry Gammon-CEO $ 325,000 $ - 3 -
Elin Treanor-CFO $ 210,000 | $ - $ -
Noel Sullivan-COO $ 200,000 $ 15,000 | § -
Key Administrative Program Staff
Daisy Wojewoda-Program Director $ 80,000 { $ 60,000 | $ 60,000
Peter Collins-Clinical Director $ 65,000 ] $ 48,750 | § 48,750
Linda Sirak-VP Major Gifts/Corporate Giving $ 90,000.{ $§ 33,750 | $ 33,750
John DeVos-Project Director-Finance 3 71,000 | $ 26,6251 % 26,625
Direct Care Staff
Peter Collins-Care Coordinator $ 46,8001 § 35,100 | $ 35,100
Suzannah Carey-Care Coordinator $ 36,0001 % 27,0001 % 27,000
Deanna Monroe-Care Coordinator 3 42,0001 % 31,500 | % 31,500
Susan Hilchey-Care Coordinator $ 59,7271 % 33,596 | $ 33,596
Chrystn Pitt-Intake Care Coordinator $ 42000 | $ 31,500 1 § 31,500
Kim Reynolds-Care Coordinator $ 148201 % 11,115 1§ 11,115
Donna McDonough-Job Placement Specialist $ 41411 [ § 621219 6,212
Linda Mattson-Job Placement Specialist $ 35,000 | $ 5250 | $ 5,250
Wanda Follansbee-Job Placement Specialist $ 30,8031 % 463418 4,634
Nicole Johnson-Job Placement Specialist $ 32,000 $ 48001 % 4,800
Elizabeth Webster-Autism Family Support Worker $ 43,7681 % 328389 3,283
Non Key Administrative Staff
Becki Malandrino-Office Manager $ 38,0001 % 28,500 | $ 28,500
Michelle Smith-Volunteer Coordinator/office support 3 2184019 16,380 | $ 16,380
Kim Stewart-Grant Writer $ 50,999 | § 19121% 1,912
Pam Langone-Director of Communications $ 57491 | % 431219 4,312
ITOTALS $ 4292191 $ 414,219 |
Contractor's Initials QUMD
Date: %.3%.\D




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-8560 1-806-852-3345 Ext. 8566

Nicholas A. Toumpas
Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Commissioner

Nancy L. Rollins
Associate Commissioner

March 1, 2010

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Community Based Care
Services (DCBCS), to enter into an agreement with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., 555 Auburn Street,
Manchester, NH 03103, vendor code 177204 to implement and manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support
Program (DCSP), in an amount not to exceed $1,492,841.00, effective March 24, 2010 or date of Governor and
Council approval, whichever is later, through September 30, 2010. Eunds are available in State Fiscal Years
2010 and 2011 in the following account, pending approval of an Inter-Agency Agreement between the Adjutant
General’s Office and the Department of Health and Human Services, submitted by the Adjutant General’s Office
to the Governor and Council for the March 24, 2010 meeting. These funds can be adjusted, if needed and

justified, between State Fiscal Years.

05-95-48-95810-5192 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: COMMISSIONER, COMMUNITY BASES CARE SERVICES, DIRECTORS OFFICE

Fiscal Year Class/Object ~ Class Title Amount \\7,0\0
2010 102-0731 Contracts for Program Services $ 888,025.00 33“*\)@ »°
2011 102-0731 Contracts for Program Services $604.816.00 7
Total §$ 1,492,841.00
EXPLANATION

The purpose of this Requested Action is to contract with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. to operate
and manage the statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program that provides support services to New Hampshire
National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who are deployed or returning
from combat. The DCSP builds a community-based support system, which integrates current veteran services
with existing service delivery systems, and allows local access for a full-spectrum of care. It is a preventive
approach supporting families and military members pre, during, and post deployments. Crisis prevention for



His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
And the Honorable Executive Council

March [, 2010

Page 2

families and military members is addressed through early development of “care plans” by professional care
providers. The “care plan” is basicaily a risk assessment used to organize support services early, thereby
reducing the overall number of emergency situations for service members and families involved in the war effort.
Case managers proactively address “care plan” needs and refer or provide further treatment, as necessary.

The DCSP developed from the federally funded pilot program referred to as the Joint Family Support
Assistance Program (JSAP), and is an integral element of the NH Joint Force Headquarters JI Deployment Cycle
Support program continuum, which includes a wide range of programs and services. The program was developed
by a multidisciplinary team representing military, DHHS, Veterans Administration, and community
organizations.

The Department of Defense authorized Federal Fiscal Year 2010 funding for this project in early January
2010. Federal funds for this agreement are provided to the Adjutant General's Department by the National Guard
Bureau pursuant to a Federal-State Master Cooperative Agreement for the mutual support of the New Hampshire
National Guard. The cost of this agreement shall be reimbursed to the State of New Hampshire by the Federal
Government at a rate of 100%, and in turn transferred by the Adjutant General’s Department to the Department
of Health and Human Services.

The Adjutant General’s Department and the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of
Cominunity Based Care Services have submitted an Inter-Agency Agreement for the March 24, 2010 Governor
and Executive Council meeting to authorize the payment of $2,600,000 through June 30, 2011, of which
$1,492,841.00 will be contracted with Easter Seals NH, Inc. for provision of services identified as the
Deployment Cycle Support Program, upon approval of this contract and the Inter-Agency Agreement by the
Governor and Executive Council.

The Department of Health and Human Services and the National Guard released a Request-For-Proposal

=(RFP) to select a vendor to implement and manage the statewide DCSP on December. 1,,2009. The RFP was
posted on the DHHS Website and a notice of the release was sent to all known potential vendors. Easter Seals
New Hampshire, Inc. was selected following a comprehensive evaluation of three proposals submitted, consistent
with the following criteria identified in the Request for Proposals: Format and Adherence to Instructions,
Background and Capacity, Plan of Operation and Workplan, and Budget and Budget Justification. The RFP
stated that the bid amount was not the main factor in selecting a vendor to manage the program. The selected
bidder, Easter Seals New Hampshire did not submit the lowest price bid but they received the overall highest
score and committed to the highest amount of in-kind support. In addition, they have contracted with DCBCS to
__develop and manage the pilot program since its inception in 2008 and approval of this contract will ensure that

the needs of New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty service members and their families who
are the deployment cycle will continue to be met as described in this contract. See attached Bid List for names of
bidder, evaluators, criteria, scores and recommendation.

The contractor’s performance will be measured by their ability to meet the performance measures and
other terms and conditions of the contract as evidenced by monthly invoices and program/financial reports
submitted to DCBCS.

The Department of Health and Human Services shall retain the option to renew the contract for a period

to be negotiated with the contractor, but not to exceed five (5) one year renewals, at its discretion, upon
satisfactory delivery of services, availability of funds, and upon approval of Governor and Executive Council.

Area Served: Statewide
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The source of funds is 100% other funds (i.e. federal funds transferred from the Adjutant‘General’s
Depariment to the Department of Health and Human Services).

In the event that federal funds are no longer available, general funds will not be requested to support this

program.

Respectfully submitted,

Nancy L. Rollins

Associate Commissioner

Division of Community Based Care Services
AN

Approved by: @ a& A V' Cormea™
Nicholas A. Toumpas
Commissioner -

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



BID LIST FOR RFP # 10 DCBCS-CBMP-DCSP-02

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND AND MANAGEMENT OF DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUFPORT PROGRAN

BIDDER'S NAME/ADDRESS:

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. 555 Auburn Street, Manchester, NH
Family Strength, 85 North State Street, Concord, NH
New Hampshire Children's Trust Fund, 10 Ferry Street, Suite 315, Concord,NH
RECOMMENDATION : Contract with Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Jo Moncher-Evaluator

Criteria/lMax. Pts.

Easter Seals

Familystrength

NH Childrens Trust

RFP DCSP BID LIST xis

Bureau Chief Agency Capacity (30) 26 24 17
DHHS Community Based Military Programs Workplan (50) 46 39 26
Budget (15) 13 13 8
Format (5) 5 S 4
' Points: 90 81 55
Ranking; 1 2 3
William Howley-Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
Financial Manager Agency Capacity (30) 29 24 19
DHHS Community Based Care Services Workplan (50) 48 40 33
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Points: 96 82 68
Ranking: 1 2 3
Col. Greenwood Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
J-1 Agency Capacity (30) 27 24 12
New Hampshire National Guard Worlplan (50) 49 43 17
Budget (15) 14 13 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Points: 85 85 45
Ranking: 1 2 3
Col. Marteil Easter Seals Familysfrength | NH Childrens Trust
Joint Chief of Staff Agency Capacity (30) 20 18 11
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 33 26 11
Budget (15) 11 8 4
Format (5) 5 3 3
Points: 69 55 29
Rankijg: 1 2 3
Col. Protzmann Evaluator Easter Seals Familystrength | NH Childrens Trust
2nd Wing Commander Agency Capacity (30) 26 22 15
New Hampshire National Guard Workplan (50) 42 35 31
Budget (15) 14 11 11
Format (5) 5 5 5
Points: 87 73 62
Ranking: 1 2 3
Average Scores Easter Seals Familystrength  NH Childrens Trust
Points: 84 71 45
Ranking: 1 2 3
Bid Amounts Easter Seals Familystrength  NH Childrens Trust
SFY 2010 (3/1/10 - 6/30/10){ $ 888,025 | § 611,818 { $ 799,999
SFY 2011 (7/1/10 - 9/30/10)] $ 604,816 | $ 523,671 $ 600,000
Total:] $ 1,492,841 1 $ 1,135,489 § 1,399,999
in-Kind Funds:[ § 155,482 | § 14,834 | § 67,792
3/4/2010




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: DCSP

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
1.3 129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building
NewHampshire Department of Health and Human Concord, New Hampshire 03301-3857
Services, Division of Community Based Care Services
1.4 Contractor Name 1.5 Contractor Address
555 Auburn Street
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Manchester, New Hampshire 03103
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number 05-95-95810-5192
603-621-3462 September 30, 2010 $1,492,841.00
1.8 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Nancy L. Rollins 603-271-8560
1.11  Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
O A cont ML
Cz{{yg, \ A T El Trepove, ek Dinorusy O

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of A+, County of _HyJls borew ey

On 2l |lt0, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public erJusticeof thie Peace
TN L cuv Do DIANE L. BOULAY. Notary Public
T Wk d 5 My Commission Expires September 3. 2013
[Seal)

| 1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Diane L. Boovlay, NoTery Foolic

1.14  State Agency Signature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

/ Zc,b,ﬂ/% & // ik » Nancy L. Rollinrs, Associate Commissioner

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: ) Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By: 7 ’ N
" ( /\ { /< p{/,z/xachJ/Loo([a/c( *I/v’, VL /ﬁ/(()
118 Approvat by the Governor and Executive Council } /

By: On: J
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (““State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor cominences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMFPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining comphance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4 0 //
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8. EVENT OF PEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished. ‘
9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by NNH. RSA™™
chapter 91-A or other existing taw. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination

Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of|
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the

Stafe of New Hampshire by the N-H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of tnsurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor [nitials:
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EXHIBIT A

DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUPPORT PROGRAM (DCSP)

Date: January 22, 2010

Contractor:
Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Address: 555 Aubumn Street
Manchester, New Hampshire zip
Telephone | 603-621-3462
Contact Person: Elin Treanor

SCOPE OF SERVICE

The Centractor agrees to the following:

SECTION I: PROGRAM/ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACT PERIOD

Contractor shall meet the terms and conditions of this base contract during the contract period of
March 10, 2010 to September 30, 2010.

1.1 PROGRAM GOALS

The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of
Community Based Care Services (DCBCS), Community Based Military Programs (CBMP),
offers a statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program (DCSP) for New Hampshire National
Guard, Reserves, Active Duty and their families who are engaged in the deployment cycle. The
Deployment Cycle Support Program provides comprehensive, free, and confidential care
coordination and integrates veterans services with the existing community based service delivery
system to provide local access to a full-spectrum of care, utilizing a client centered, supportive
approach to service delivery. Philanthropic support is used to generate a sustainable source of
flexible financial assistance for service members/families. The DCSP is both a pro-active and
reactive program that offers support services pre-deployment, during deployment and post
deployment, resulting in fewer and less severe crises for service members and their families.

1.2 DEPLOYMENT CYCLE SUPPORT PROGRAM (DCSP)

To continue to meet the program goals identified above, the Contractor shall implement and
manage a statewide Deployment Cycle Support Program utilizing the model provided in the
DCSP Manual which includes but is not limited to: System Design, Policies; Forms and
Procedures; Training Curricuium, Handbook/Guidebook; Service Resources by service type,

o
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including community and military providers; Reports; and Evaluation/Program Effectiveness and
effective use of philanthropic flexible funding for service members/families.

The Contracter agrees that during the contract period, any substantive changes/adjustments to the
guidelines identified in the DCSP Manual that would improve the efficiency and delivery of
services and better meet the targeted goals and outcomes of the program would need to be
identified in writing and agreed upon by both parties. Requests for changes could come from
either party to this Agreement; however, DCBCS/CBMP would have final approval in any
substantive changes to the guidelines.

The DCSP Manual is incorporated by reference into this Agreement.

1.3

LOCATION

Services shall be available statewide and allow for local access by service members/families to
those services.

1.4

POPULATION SERVED

The Contractor shall provide services, support and completion of care plans for service members
and families of the New Hampshire National Guard, Reserves and Active Duty who are in the
deployment cycle.

1.5

1.5.1

1.5.2

1.53

54

1.5.5

1.5.6

"'PromUte‘an’d*'support'*\feteransﬁountﬂaws*ﬁstainab}efphﬂaﬂfhmpicfsoureé of-flexible

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Continue existing care plans and services for service members and families currently
being served. ‘

Receive and process referrals, assess, develop and implement care plan, to include any
appropriate services, for service members and families pre-deployment, during
mobilization and post deployment. The NH National Guard plans on 1,350 service
members of the National Guard and 650 Reserves being in the deployment cycle in

calendar year 2010.

Identify, facilitate, and make available to service members and their families
philanthropic sources of flexible funding for assistance with emergencies such as help
with heating and rental/mortgage payments, etc.

funding, and using the guidelines and tools available in the DCSP Manual, make
emergency flexible funds available to service members and their families.

Partner with existing community/military resources to ensure that services are available
to meet and support the identified needs of service members and their families pre, during

and post deployment.

Maintain, expand, and continuously update list of all resources for service members and
their families.

TEE e
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QUALITY IMPROVEMENT/PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT (QI/PI)

1) All service members and families currently served by this program will continue to

2) New service members and families referred for services will work with Care
Coordinators to develop and implement care plans, thereby experiencing fewer crisis

3) DCSP recipients feel well taken care of, can access services with dignity, and feel

Exhibit A

1.6

1.6.1 PROGRAM QUTCOMES
receive services as prescribed by their individual_ care plans;
and emergencies during the deployment cycle;
that their needs are anticipated by the system.

1.6.2 PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Contractor’s performance shall be measured by the extent to which they meet the
benchmarks that support the program outcomes identified above. Performance Measures
will be reported to DCBCS/CBMP and NHNG as instructed. Additional performance
measures and benchmarks may be added at the discretion of DCBCS/CBMP and

provided to the Contractor.

Performance Measures

Benchmarks

Locations where DCSP care coordinators
and community services providers offer
local access to clients.

Services are available locally to all service
members /families regardless of their location

Number of care coordinators, available by
location, to meet the needs of current
clients and new referral care plans in a
timely manner.

Provides adequate numbers of trained care
coordinators on a statewide basis to address the
needs of all current care plans and new referrals in
a timely manner.

Reports on care coordinators’ training and
monitoring of services to ensure program
policies and procedures are utilized to
meet client’s needs.

Care coordinators utilize program, reporting and
evaluation tools available in the DCSP Manual.

Community based services and military
services are identified and incorporated as
appropriate into the clients care plan to
meet stated clients’ goals.

Available community /military services are
identified, partnered with and utilized to support
the needs of the client as requested and to reduce
the cost of the program.

Reports on usage of flexible funding.

Philanthropic support is available and well
managed to sustain flexible funding for service
members/families.

Client satisfaction reports and survey
results submitted to DCBCS/DCSP and
NHNG

90% of recipient’s goals were met as requested
resulting in fewer or less severe crises during the
deployment cycle.

Submits invoices, reports and other
requested information to DCSP and

NHNG as requested.

95 % of the time the administrative requirements
are accurate and meet deadlines as requested.

Contractor’s Initials: e
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1.7

. ,;,,,,,,,_178, ,,,,fSHFF_W e e e e

1.8.1

1.8.2

1.8.3

RECORDS/REPORTING/MEETINGS REQUIREMENTS

Monthly Meetings with DCBCS/CBMP as instrucied.

Monthly Reports: Submit toc DCBCS/CBMP as instructed

Number of New Referrals by referral source and deployment status

Number of Initial Risk/Resiliency Assessments completed that month

Report total cost per service by type and total number of units per type and total number
of clients served per type for the following:
e Counseling (hours, service members, families)
o Case Management (hours, service members, families)
e Specific Services (hours or other defined unit as appropriate, service members,
families)
Vocational Services
Financial Counseling
Childcare/Respite
Flexible funding
o Other

o O OO0

Report on Referrals to Community/Military Service Providers,
e Type of service :
e Name of community service provider
o Number of referrals by type of service
e Service member or family member referred
e Total type of service by Deployment Status (pre-during and post deployment)

Reports on Community Contacts and Trainings
e Dates/topics of trainings to and meetings with Community Service Providers

o Dates/topics of trainings/group interventions with military units.

General  trends/barriers - identified in  service delivery ~and = program

implementation/management

Quarterly Reports: Submit to BCBCS/CBMP as instructed

Summary of results of a quarterly random client record review to ensure services are
being delivered and clients’ needs are addressed.

Final Report: Submit to DCBCS/CBMP as instructed

Provide a final fiscal and programmatic summary as instructed by DCBCS within sixty

days of the contract year being reported.

The Contractor shall staff this program with individuals trained in service coordination
and who are familiar with military life. The number of Care Coordinators needed to staff
the program will be determined, in part, by such factors as the number of service
members/families to be served under this contract as well as their demographic data.

The Contractor shall staff this program with individuals who at a minimum meet the
staffing requirements identified in the DCSP Manual.

Community agency personnel shall receive comprehensive training to enhance their
qualifications for working with the target population.

Cﬁ’) Pl
3 . . ’:" o
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1.8.4 DCSP program leadership staff and some Care Coordinators will be required to work on
some weekends to participate in the National Guard drills to introduce the program and to
accept referrals/intakes. The number of Care Coordinators required to participate will
depend on the number of service members participating in the drill. Care Coordinators
will be required at times to meet with service members/families at night. In the event of a
crisis/emergency, the service member/family should be able to contact the Care
Coordinator, or if not available, the Care Coordinator’s program office, in order to
identify their situation and obtain assistance as needed.

1.8.5 DCBCS/CBMP will review and approve all key staff and may disapprove any
individuals. During the life of the contract, except for termination of employment, any
proposed changes to key staff must be reported to DCBCS/CBMP in writing.

1.10 ACCESS TO SERVICES

1.10.1 To ensure access to quality services, the Contractor, when feasible and appropriate, shall
make reasonable efforts to provide clients of limited English proficiency (LEP) with
interpretation services. Persons of LEP are defined as those who do not speak English as
their primary language and whose skills in listening to, speaking, or reading English are
such that they are unable to adequately understand and participate in the care or in the
services provide to them without language assistance.

1.10.2 Additionally, the Contractor, when appropriate, shall identify communication access
needs (hearing, vision, speech) and develop an individual communication plan for
recipients of services provided under this contract.

1.11  TERMINATION PLAN/ASSURANCE

1.11.1 In the event that services are terminated for any reason by the Contractor, at least a ninety
(90) day prior written notice addressed to the DCBCS/CBMP) is required.

1.11.2 The Contractor shall maintain a plan that addresses the needs of clients receiving services

in the event that:
o  Service(s) are terminated or planned to be terminated prior to the termination

date of the contract;
e  The contract is terminated or is planned to be terminated prior to the

termination date of the contract by the Contractor or the State;
In the event that services are terminated for any reason by the Contractor.
Any substantive change of the services terms or conditions outlined in the

contract or sub-contracts.

1.12 CONSUMER GRIEVANCE PROCESS

The Contractor shall have a grievance process for clients and for individuals who have been
denied services, that shall be maintained during the contract period and any grievances filed are to
be available to DCBCS/CBMP upon request. At a minimum the process shall include the

following:

e Client name, type of service, date of written grievance, nature/subject of the grievance,
who in the agency reconsiders agency decisions, what are the issues that can be addressed
in the grievance process, and how consumers are informed of their right to appeal or file

grievances.

7;' ./¢7»~~‘~.
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1.13 TRANSITION PROCESS

1.13.1 If applicable, Contractor agrees to coordinate and work with DCBCS/CBMP and the
current provider of services to ensure continuity in the delivery of services to current
service members and families.

1.13.2 The Contractor shall have a transition process for clients in the event that they maybe
transitioned between contracted providers. The process shall ensure

e Uninterrupted delivery of services for clients;

e A method of notifying clients and/or the community about the transition. A staff member
shall be available to address questions about the transition.

SECTION 2: OCTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS
2.1 MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS/CONFIDENTIALITY

The Contractor shall ensure the confidentiality of client’s records according to the terms and
conditions identified in this Agreement.

2.2 SUB CONTRACTS

2.2.1  With prior written approval from DCBCS/CBMP the Contractor may enter into
subcontracts as needed to meet the terms of this contract.

2.2.2  Prior to entering into subcontracts supported with Federal funds, the Contractor shall
consult the ineligible parties list to ensure that potential subcontractors are eligible for
participation in Federal assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment
and Suspension.” The list is available on the Web at http://www/epls.gov.

23 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Contractor shall submit to the DCBCS/CBMP proof of current licenses/permits etc., as described
in Exhibit C Special Provisions # 15 Operations of Facilities that covers the entire contract period
from March 10, 2010 through September 30, 2010. Failure to submit current copies of
licenses/permits, etc. may result in the DCBCS/CBMP withholding payments until licenses are

submitted. Provide DCBCS/CBMP with copies of —any “inspection—deficiency—reports—and-——-———-

corrective action plans.

2.4 CRIMINAL BACKGROUND AND ADULT PROTECTIVE SERVICE
REGISTRY CHECKS '

2.4.1 Contractor shall conduct a criminal background check if a potential applicant for
employment or volunteer, funded under this contract, may have client contact in the
client’s place of residence. Contractors who are licensed home health care providers
shall meet the requirements of RSA 151:2-d Criminal Record Check Required.

2.4.2 Contractors which are licensed, certified or funded by the DHHS shall meet the
requirements of RSA 161-F: 49 Registry, VII, which requires the submission of the name

-
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of a prospective employee who may have client contact, for review against the State Adult
Protective Service Registry, effective July 1, 2007. '

2.5 PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to be paid for services provided under this contract as detailed in Exhibit B
Purchase of Services and Exhibit B-1 Budget and Justification. :

2.6 INVOICES AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Monthly invoices and financial reports and annual financial reports shall be submitted to
DCBCS/CBMP as described in Exhibit B Purchase of Services.

2.7 AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

2.7.1  On or before May 31, 2010, the Contractor shall deliver to the State, at the address set
forth in Section 1.2 of these General Provisions, an independent audit performed by a
Certified Public Accountant, of the Contractor, including the funds received under this
Agreement. The Contractor shall provide the State with a copy of their most current
independent audit during the entire contract period.

2.7.2  The following requirement shall apply if the Contractor is a State or Local Government
or an Institution of Higher Education or Other Non-Profit Organization: If the federal
funds expended under this or any other Agreement from any and all sources exceeds
$500,000 in the aggregate in a one year fiscal period the required audit shall be
performed in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations for fiscal years ending on or after
December 31, 2003.

2.8 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Contractor shall submit to the DCBCS/BMA a list of current Board of Directors, with names,
addresses and titles that covers the entire contract period.

2.9 DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor shall
comply with the provisions of Section 319 of the Public Law 101-121, Limitation on use of
appropriated funds to influence certain Federal contracting and financial transactions; with the
provisions of Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Subpart A, B, C, D, and E Section 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters, and shall complete and submit to the
State the appropriate certificates of compliance upon approval of the Agreement by the Governor

and Council.
2.10 RENEWAL OPTION

DCBCS/CBMP shall retain the option to renew the contract for a period to be negotiated with the
contractor, but not to exceed five (5) one year renewals, at its discretion, upon satisfactory
delivery of services, availability of funds, and upon approval of Governor and Executive Council.

Contractor’s Initials: £
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2.11 CREDITS

2.11.1 All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the
following statement:

2.11.2 “The preparation of this (report, document, etc.) was financed under a Contract with the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Division of
Community Based Care Services, Community Based Military Programs, with funds
provided, in part by the State of New Hampshire and the United States Department of
Health and Human Services and Department of Defense, New Hampshire National
Guard.”

2.12 PRIOR APPROVAL AND COPYRIGHT OWNERSHIP

All documents (written, video, audio) produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from DCBCS/CBMP before printing, production, distribution or use.  The
DCBCS/CBMP will retain copyright ownership for any all original materials produced with
DCBCS/CBMP funding, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols
or guidelines, posters, or reports. Contracted organizations may not reproduce any materials
produced under the contract without prior written approval from DCBCS/CBMP.

2.13 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

The following constitute the entire agreement: General Provisions (P-37), Certificate of Vote,
Exhibits A and A-1 Scope of Service/Narrative/Workplan, Deployment Cycle Support Manual is
incorporated by reference, Exhibit B Purchase of Services, Exhibit B-1 Budget, Exhibit B-2
Budget Narrative, Exhibit C Special Provisions, Exhibit C-1 Additional Special Provisions,
Exhibit D, Certification Regarding Drug Free Work Place Requirements, Exhibit E, Certification
Regarding Lobbying, Exhibit F, Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other
Responsibility Matters, Exhibit G, Certification Regarding The Americans with Disabilities Act
Compliance, Exhibit H, Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke, Exhibit I,
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Business Associate Agreement, Mission
Statement, Audited Financial Statement, Personnel List, Resumes, Board of Directors List,
Certificate of Good Standing, Copy of Secretary of State website printout showing contractor’s
creation date, General Liability Insurance Acknowledgement Form and Proof of General Liability

and Workers Compensation Insurance.
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EXHIBIT A-1
Program Narrative

1. Describe how the program will operate and ensure statewide services; how scope of
service will be carried out; roles of BUSF siaff; how performance measures will be met:

a. Ensuring Continued Statewide Access: The DCSP addresses the needs of struggling Guard/Reserves
members/families through local services, identified and accessed with the guidance of a qualified, trusted
mentor who is adept in local and statewide systems navigation, and builds trust based on respect,
responsiveness and close rapport. Since the program’s inception, ESNH has provided local services
throughout NH and adjoining regions, meeting people in their homes or other nearby locations at times
that are convenient to them. ESNH’s core network of staff and independently contracted care
coordinators are located throughout NH and bordering communities, and log many miles to see clients.
To continue to provide local services to a significantly greater number of service members/ families,
ESNH proposes to establish a statewide, interagency network of qualified care coordinators that can ramp
up for the deployment cycle just as Guard/Reserves members/families do. ESNH will continue to provide
services as well; however, in this contract period, we will also establish subcontracts with social service
and mental health agencies throughout the state, which have identified 30+ qualified staff, including
veterans and others with background and/or strong interest for working with service members/families.
The intent is that many of the care coordinators from the subcontracted agencies will carry smaller DCSP
caseloads that are consistent with their expertise and part of their overall caseloads at their agency. While
it utilizes more resources to train/orient/manage a larger team of part-time care coordinators, it will not
only meet the current need for local services but also effectively create more sustainable capacity by
establishing a broad-based workforce of professionals who can meet military families’ needs not only for
this cycle of deployments, but throughout OEF/OIF and future conflicts/crises. Subcontracting with local
organizations will also reduce care coordinator travel expenses and help ensure maximum use of local
resources—key to cost efficiency and creating sustainable long-range capacity in the social service system.

b. Program Operations, Management/Administration, Supervision — How Scope of Services will be
carried out: ESNH staff and current independent contractors will function as a Core Team that provides
clinical and administrative management and guidance, and direct care coordination by experienced
clinical and social service professionals with proven dedication to the project. An Extended Network of
care coordinators and related providers from subcontracting agencies will be engaged, trained, and fully
integrated into the DCSP through ongoing clinical supervision, peer suppozt, and engagement with the J1
Deployment Cycle Support team, DHHS-CBMP activities, local service providers, Veterans Count, and
other activities as described at #2, below. Additionally, ESNH Development professionals will ensure
effective administration and sustainability of Veterans Count. ESNH has designated a DCSP financial
liaison who provides accounting/finance services and guidance. The program is an important priority for
ESNH with ongoing involvement and guidance from the President/CEO and Sr. VP of Programs.

c. Staff Roles (resumes attached):

Core Team

Project BDirector (Daisy Wojewoda): Responsible for overall qualitative and quantitative
program performance, personnel management, fiscal management, compliance, reporting, inter-agency
relations, and supporting Veterans Count activities to facilitate sustainable access to emergency fund.

Clinical Director (Peter Collins): Clinical training and supervision to care coordinators. Presents
at drills, military events, workshops, and PR events on program and clinical topics. In addition to his full-
time role as Clinical Director, Peter will carry an additional part caseload of critical, challenging, and

emergent cases.

e -
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Intake Coordinator (Chrystn Pitt): Receives and manages referrals. Responsible for assigning
cases and coordinating internal referrals. Also carries smail care coordination caseload.

Office Manager (Becki Malandrino): Design and manage database, file storage, office
operations, financial assistance processing, monthly reporting, and subcontract management.

Program Assistant (Paula Kvetkosky): Coordinates donations, organizes resource library,
represents program at events, provides office and general support in all areas as needed.

Care Coordinaters - 5 ESNH Employees (Deanna Monroe, Suki Carey, Matthew Aversa, Susan
Hilchey, plus Peter Collins and Chrystn Pitt): Core “in-house” team serving new/existing cases.
Responds to urgent requests, provides peer support, and coverage to ensure cohesive services. Works
closely with J1 team. Deanna Monroe attends J1 weekly meetings and functions as general liaison with
J1 Full Cycle Support team. 9 Independent Contractors (Louisa Fisher, Noah Jacobsen-Goodhue,
Patricia Grondin, Jason Luciano, Kirsten MacArthur, Eileen McDonald, Elisabeth Swiriduk, Linda
Hanley-Thomas, Joyce Whiting): Core group of independent providers currently performing care
coordination.

Other ESNH Staff

Job Placement Specialists (Donna McDonough, Colleen Powers, Wanda Follansbee, other
vocational services staff as warranted): Provide resume assistance, job development, and job
placement/follow up. Development Staff (Linda Sirak, Pam Langone, Mike Cormier, Kim Stewart): VP
of Major Gifts is administrative liaison to Vets Count. Communications Director manages PR. Events
Director coordinates fundraisers. Grant Writer secures grants for the Emergency Fund.

Extended Network

Contracted Care Coordinators: Over 30 licensed, master’s-level counselors and other qualified
personnel employed by subcontracting organizations. Provide counseling and care coordination locally.
As part of a statewide network of providers in the Deployment Cycle Support program, complete required
training, access supervision and peer support, report to the program office, and work effectively with
military, civilian, and VA systems to meet needs of Service Members/families with existing services and
programs. Designated Admin Contacts: Each subcontracting organization will designate one point of
contact for receiving referrals and submitting reports. Financial Services Provider: Jena Palisoul of
“Greenback Guides” provides financial support and counseling services on a statewide basis as requested.
Other Service Providers: Experienced non-clinical staff from subcontracting agencies will be utilized as
needed for support services. This will be particularly useful in the North Country, where there are a wide
range of social service needs, limited master’s-level clinicians, and extensive travel demands. In this
region, the Gorham-based Family Resource Center will provide highly experienced bachelor’s level staff

- (withmilitary life/family experience) to support the local-Care Coordirator (@ indeperdernt comtractor)

d. Key performance measures/benchmarks, (as per 1.6.2 in RFP) and how they will be met:

Performance Measure Benchmark How Benchmark Will Be Met
Locations where DCSP care Services available locally to all Statewide network of agencies with strong
coordinators offer local access service members/families local presence representing all NH regions
to clients regardless of location that supplements core statewide team
# of care coordinators by Provides trained CC’s statewide | Adding approx. 30 new CCs, designated by
location to meet the needs of to address all current/new client | 'sub-contracting agencies and covering all
clients in timely manner needs in timely manner regions
Reports on CC training and CCs utilize program, reporting Provide/track training; monitor services
monitoring services to ensure and evaluation toois availabie in | through supervision; complete required
policies/procedures being DCSP Manual encounter reporting, CC tools; required
[d )
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[ utilized to meet client needs

reporting to DHHS and NHNG

Community-based and muilitary
services are identified and
incorporated into client’s care
plan to meet stated client goals

Avatlable community/military
services are identified and
utitized to support client needs
and reduce cost of program

Promote participation in community/military
partnerships; monitor and track referrals to
existing programs ( Vet Center, VA, MH
Center, etc); expand resource list

Usage of flexible funding

Philanthropic support is
available and well-managed to
sustain flexible funding for
service members/families

Continued administration of and participation
in Vets Count at all levels; review all
financial assistance requests reflect need and
exhaustion of other resources

Client satisfaction survey
reports submitted to
DCBCS/DCSP and NHNG

90% of goals met as requested
resulting in fewer/less severe
crises during deployment cycle

Survey prepared and conducted by UNH.
Work closely with J1 team to ensure
increased survey responses; report findings

Submits invoices, reports and
other requested info to DCSP
and NHNG as requested

95% of the time the admin
requitements are accurate and
meet deadlines as requested

Monthly meetings with CBMP Bureau Chief
and J1 Deputy Officer to include review of
accuracy and timeliness of admin deadlines

2. How Needs of Target Population will be Met, Including Partnering with Community
Providers/Veterans Services and Promoting Sustainability: This section (and #3 below) outlines
proposed plan for carrying out the scope of work and corresponds with the accompanying Workplan

Ensuring ESNH is administratively ready for program expansion: With input and approval of J1 and

DHHS, ESNH will update data collection, invoicing and reporting forms to manage extended
network/subcontracts, track referrals to other programs/services and monitor use of existing resources.

ESNH will finalize release of info, grievance and responsiveness policies according to NHNG and DHHS
expectations. ESNH will produce additional program tools and training materials and schedule/complete
1-1/2 day Care Coordinator Training for new providers that includes clinical and administrative training,
general DCSP orientation, and issuance of DCSP Tool Kit with all necessary forms, contacts, and tools.

Ensuring local statewide access to care coordination is available to all NH service members/families
in the deployment cycle: As described above, subcontracting agencies have offices throughout the staie
and will work together with the Core Team to provide local access to all DCSP participants.

Ensuring new and pre-existing DCSP care coordinators function as a cohesive team that is
qualified, trained, and committed to providing high-quality services:

Qualifications and credentials: ESNH will monitor care coordinator training and credentials as
outlined in DCSP manual, perform annual review of all ESNH staff

Orientation and training: All new care coordinators will complete Care Coordinator Training,
Military Culture 101, and additional 12 CEU’s per year. Clinical staff will complete NAMI Connect
Suicide Pre/Postvention Training. New care coordinators will attend bi-monthly J1-CC meetings.

Clinical supervision and peer support: ESNH Clinical Director will provide clinical
supervision through monthly regional meetings and core team meetings and will be available by phone
for consult. Care coordinators will continue to provide peer support, with experienced staff assigned to
mentor new personnel as warranted. Critical Case Review (CCR): To continue to ensure high-quality
clinical intervention and effective collaboration with J1 and command staff on cases where multiple
parties are providing support, ESNH Clinical Director will work with the NHNG DPH to implement a
CCR process for addressing complex case-specific issues and facilitating wrap-around meetings as

appropriate.

e,
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General administrative support role in care coordination team building: Project Dir, Intake
Coord, and Office Mgr will establish clear and efficient process with subcontracting agencies for
referring, reporting, invoicing, etc and use the email list to maintain network-wide communication

Continuing care plans/services for service members/families currently being served: On average
each month, care coordinators provide services to approximately 1/3 of the entire DCSP participant base.
As of 12/31/09, ESNH has served over 1000 service members/families and 375 in the past month (all
branches). ESNH will continue to serve existing participants through the deployment cycle and ensure
long-range services are identified. Existing staff will be fully trained in all new policies and procedures.

Receiving/processing referrals of service members/families new toc DCSP, conducting assessments,
developing and implementing care plans: ESNH has established protocol working with the Military
Liaison to coordinate referrals from Guard and Reserves components via pre-deployment presentations
and for the Intake Coordinator to receive and assign self-referrals and ongoing/emergent referrals from J1
personnel and other community providers. With regard to unit referrals, ESNH and the J1 Military
Liaison, with oversight from the J1 Deputy Officer, completed Gate 1 A/B presentations and referral
process with over 700 service members in fall 2009 and will receive additional referrals from a Jan 2010
Air Guard pre-deployment event and additional events throughout the 7-month contract period. All
emergent/critical referrals from fall 2009 were promptly assigned to care coordinators; however, as of
now, over 320 non-critical Gate 1 A/B referrals from fall 2009 are as yet un-assigned. As soon as is
operationally/fiscally possible, ESNH will assign these cases through the extended network and guide
new care coordinators through the outreach and engagement process. While it is impossible to predict the
exact number of active cases, case intensity, or hours of staff time required for a program that is optional
and needs-driven, ESNH estimates that the total served by the DCSP will rapidly rise from over 1000 to
close to 2000 and that in any given month, an average of 600 service members/families will receive an
average of 3 hours care coordination and related services. Through its established monthly reporting
process and ongoing supervision as proposed, ESNH will monitor progress in connecting with newly
assigned referrals and in completing assessments/care plans and initiating services.

Accessing philanthropic funding and promoting Veterans Count’s sustainability: ESNH will
continue to work closely with partners to ensure that all appropriate charitable resources are identified and
accessed, including ongoing management of requests/donations of material goods. ESNH will make Vets
Count emergency funding available in cases where the help is needed and other resources are unavailable,
according to existing protocol. ESNH VP of Major Gifts and the DCSP Project Director will continue to
work closely to ensure Vets Count leaders are well-informed and to coordinate events, secure foundation
grants and major gifts, and other activities to ensure continued growth and sustainability of the fund.
ESNH staff will assist NHNG in coordinating Military Culture 101 for Veterans Count Advisory Board.

Partnering with existing community and military programs to ensure that services are available to
———meet-and-supportservice member/family needs-pre; during; and -post-deployment: Effective——————

partnerships with military, VA, and civilian systems are critical to the success of DCSP. A primary

project focus over the next year will be strengthening partnerships to increase service availability and

long-range cost efficiency/sustainability. ESNH will ensure strong and increasingly effective cross-

system collaborations and service delivery by continued development of the following partnerships:

NHNG/J1 and Reserves: Ongoing communication and collaboration with J1 leadership and
staff, including bi-monthly J1-CC team meetings, weekly meetings between Project Director and Military
Liaison, care coordinator liaison at weekly J1 case management/staff meetings, clinical collaboration with
DPH, and continued work in special joint initiatives, such as the School/Education project. Work with
Military Liaison to ensure ongoing communication with Guard/Reserves unit command.

Contractor’s Initials: <
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DHHS/DCBS/CBMP and other DHHS pregrams: Ongoing communication with CBMP
Bureau Chief regarding upcoming meetings, drill events, emergent issues, training, and other
opportunities. Meet monthly to review performance benchmarks and plan for developing and maximizing
community and state resources. Ensure Bureau Chief’s involvement in program activities and policies.
Participate in NH VetNET and Community Programs work groups.

VA System: Monitor referrals to ensure that VA and Vet Center evaluation, treatment and
services are accessed whenever appropriate and track referrals. Include VA personnel in J1-CC team
meetings and continue to participate in VA OEF/OIF Community Partners meetings. Work with VA,
Transition Assistance Advisor, to assist service members/families in accessing benefits.

Local community programs: Care plans will emphasize collaboration with local programs,
particularly those that are funded through other funding streams. Referrals to community programs will
be tracked and care coordinators will participate in local community partnerships that can benefit service
members/families. In addition to care coordination (assessment, planning, ongoing service coordination),
ESNH and subcontracting agencies will provide counseling, job placement, financial assistance,
children’s services, and additional services as needed.

Other programs and initiatives with similar or related objectives: ESNH will continue to
endeavor to engage service members/families, Veterans Count leaders, DHHS, NHNG and Reserves
leadership in exploring creative partnerships, such as current work with Mass General Hospital/Red Sox
Home Base Program, that will address unmet needs or improve/increase services and have long range
impact on project sustainability.

Maintaining, expanding, and updating list of service Resources: ESNH will track referrals made by
DCSP participants and care coordinators to local community and military programs, monitor
effectiveness of different services, and update resource list accordingly; and/or participate as directed by
NHNG J1 in web-based resource directory project.

Ensuring sufficient staffing is available for weekend/off-heur activities: As outlined in the workplan,
ESNH will continue to stay abreast of events schedules and work closely with Military Liaison to ensure
sufficient staffing for DCSP presentations and individual contact at weekend and evening drills and
events throughout the state, engaging local care coordinators whenever possible.

3. Plan for Monitoring and Evaluating Progress in Meeting Objectives (QI/PI): All
program objectives and activities are related to key program outcomes outlined in the RFP at 1.6.1: 1) all
service members/families currently served will continue to receive services; 2) new service members and
families will develop/implement care plans resulting in fewer crises and emergencies during the
deployment cycle; and 3) DCSP recipient feel well taken care of, can access services with dignity, and
feel that their needs are anticipated by the system. The workplan outlines steps for achieving the
following key Quality Improvement/Performance Improvement objectives.

Measuring extent to which established benchmarks have been met: ESNH will collect relevant data
and maintain accurate records for performance assessment. In order to further develop and ensure a more
in-depth, comprehensive process for evaluating effectiveness in achieving these key outcomes, ESNH
proposes to continue to subcontract with UNH-IOD for program evaluation. UNH-IOD deliverables will
include satisfaction survey (emphasis on increasing response rate), ongoing quality monitoring and
guidance, chart/electronic data review and reporting based on random chart review, final report.

Reporting performance to DCBCS/CBMP and NHNG per established expectations: ESNH will

submit all required reporting and requests in a timely manner and provide full access to DHHS, NHNG,

A AR 2 D PaY i
Veterans Count, UNTI-IOD and other stakeholders as appropriate.
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Continually striving to improve quality and responsiveness while promoting cost efficiency and
long-range sustainability: Through a detailed plan built on the principles set forth in the RFP, ESNH
will continue to communicate openly and productively at all levels, receive and incorporate constructive
feedback, and maintain high quality and responsiveness.

4. Resumes and Personne! Form: Resumes and Personnel Form for each SFY are attached.

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
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Goals/Outcomes

Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsibie Deadline
Start-Up Preparation: All reporting forms/protocol, 1. Create uniform invoicing format for use by | Project Mar 1
Easter Seals NH is data management/database subcontractors that captures all required Director, Office
administratively ready for | modifications, expanded data for purposes of reporting, accounting Mgr.
program expansion in staffing (in-house and and program evaluation
conjunction with criteria subcontracted), program 2. Update monthly client encounter reporting | Proj. Director, | Mar 1
outlined in RFP materials, supervision and form to include tracking referrals made to Office Mgr.
meeting protocols, are in community agencies
place. 3. Modify database in conjunction with Office Mgr. Mar |
updated invoicing and reporting forms
4. Work with NHNG J1 partners to finalize Proj. Dir., Clin. | Immediate
grievance and 24/7 policies and incorporate | Dir.
in new protocols/training
5. Est. contracts w/ new sub-conractors Proj. Dir. Mar 1
6. Print/assemb. materials for CC Office Mgr, Mar 30 (or
Training/Tool-Kits for new CC’s Prog Asst. sooner)
7. Schedule and complete | ¥ day Care Clinical Apr 15 (or
Coordinator training with 1* day a full-day | Director, Proj. sooner)
clinical training and 2™ day a half-day on Director
reporting/record keeping/referrals/financial
assistance — and include designated admin
contacts from subcontracting agencies in the
2™ day (2 sessions may be necessary to
accommodate schedules/number of people)
8. Print new batch of Service Member/Family | Office Mgr. Mar 30
Guidebook brochures
9. Update contact lists and disseminate to Office Mgr. Mar 1
entire CC/J1/DHHS team
10. Establish plan for assigning to staff at Intake Coord., | Mar 1
subcontracting agencies approx. 360 Proj. Dir., Clin
referrals that were generated at Gate 1B Dir.
events in Fall 2009 but not yet assigned due
to insufficient funding (note that some of
the Fall 2009 Gate 1B referrals are already
o =T
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Activities

Geals/Cutcomes Perfermance Standards Person/s Timeline/
Responsible Deadline
assigned and receiving services) _
Local, statewide access to | Services are available locally 1. Core team to continue to manage current Proj. Director Immediate
Care Coordination is to all NH service statewide caseload in their geographic and Core CC and ongoing
available to all NH members/families regardless regions of expertise and take on new team
Service Members/families | of their location; and Care referrals as appropriate _
in the deploymernt cycle Coordinators are well-versed V
in local community programs 2. Establish sub-contracts with the wo:oé%m Proj. Director Mar 1
organizations ?\Eow will provide qualified | and Exec
Care Coordination staff with local QQLEH Director of sub-
in every NH county and region): contracting
agencies:
Child and Family Services | Michael
(staff/offices serving Belknap, Ostrowski
Merrimack, Hillsborough,
Rockingham and Strafford county
regions); :
Community Partners Amamoa Nancy Morse
County); m
Family Resource Center at Oo%ma Tom Austin
(Coos Country - NH North
Country); |
Greater Nashua Mental Health Hisham Hafez,
Center; MD
Mental Health Center of Greater Peter Janelle
Manchester;
Milford Regional Counseling Peter Kelleher
Services Inc (affiliated with Harbor

Contractor’s Initials:
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Goals/Outcomes

Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsible Deadline
Homes — Greater Nashua, Souhegan
Valley, Mass. border region)
New and pre-existing staff | All staff meet or exceed 1. Qualifications/Credentials: Proj. Dir., Clin. | Mar 1 and
function as a cohesive qualification requirements Dir. annually
team that is qualified, and complete required a. Receive/review resumes for all current and
trained, and committed to | training in timely manner. new clinical and other key staff to ensure
providing high-quality Core team and extended appropriate credentials/background
services team receive formal b. Annual review of all staff
supervision, peer support, -
and administrative support. 2. Orientation and Training: Clin Dir., Proj. | Ongoing
Care Coordinators Dir. NHNG and as
understand their role as part a. Provide Care Coordinator Training and staff (Mil Cult | scheduled
of an integrated full cycle Tool kit to new staff (including orientation | training);
support system in close to J1 programs and personnel) NAMI staff
partnership with the J1 b. All new CC staff attend next J1-CC meeting
programs and personnel, to meet entire team
DHHS, and Veterans Count. c. All CC staff attend Military Culture 101
d. All CC staff attend 6-hr NAMI NH
Training: Suicide Prevention and
Intervention training for Military Providers
e. Monitor clinical staff completion of 12
additional CEU’s annually
3. Clinical Supervision and Peer Support: Clin Director Ongoing
and as
a. Weekly clinical supervision to Core Team scheduled
b. Regional supervision meetings monthly to
include clinical case review, and ongoing
access to supervision time with Clin. Dir.
c. Core Team monthly meeting including
clinical case review
d. Assign core team members as peer support
liaisons as warranted
Contractor’s Initials: Z
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Goals/Outcomes Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsible Deadline
e. Establish and implement Critical Case
Review Process with NHNG J1 DPH (Sue
Brown) — DPH and Clinical Director meet
New and pre-existing staff | All staff meet or exceed monthly to review Critical Cases presented
function as a cohesive qualification requirements by care coordinators and facilitate
team that is qualified, and complete required wraparound meetings as warranted
trained, and committed to | training in timely manner.
providing high-quality Core team and extended 4. General Admin Support and Care Coord. Proj Dir; Office | Cngoing
services team receive formal Team Building: | Mgr; Clin Dir; and as
supervision, peer support, Intake Coord; scheduled
and administrative support. a. Meet with Admin support contact @o:w each | Core CC Team
Care Coordinators are part of subcontracting agency to establish o_o%&
an integrated full cycle expectations for reporting, invoicing, ¢tc
support system in close b. Ongoing communication via e-mail :M -
partnership with the J1 serve and peer support
programs and personnel, ¢. Provide 1:1 admin support as needed |
DHHS, and Veterans Count
Care plans/services for All service members/families 1. Continue to provide assessment, planning, Proj. Dir., Clin. | Immediate

service members/families

already in the DCSP

service coordination, and service provision

Dir., and Core

and ongoing

currently being served experience un-interrupted to service members/families currently being | Care Coord.
continue services through deployment served Team
cycle 2. Train existing (core) CC team in new
reporting protocols
New referrals are received | 100% of eligible 1. Assign as-yet-unassigned referrals from Fall | Intake Coord. Mar 30
and processed; individuals/families referred 2009 Gate 1A/B intake events
assessments conducted on | (inc. self referrals, provider 2. Coordinate w/ Military Liaison to conduct Proj. Dir. Ongeing
newly referred service referrals, Gate 1A/B) who additional Gate 1 A/B intake events as
members/families, Care consent to participate in the additional units are sourced and assign cases
Plans developed and program receive Care 3. Receive self and provider referrals and Intake Coord. Ongoing
implemented Coordination services as assign cases w/in 2 business days
outlined in DCSP manual 4. Provide assessment, planning, service CCTeam, Clin | (Apr1-
coordination, and service provision Dir, Pro;. Dir immediate if
Contractor’s Initials: < \; B
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Goals/Cutcomes Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsible Deadline
5. Monitor progress in connecting w/ referrals | Proj/Clin Dir urgent)
6. Monitor progress in developing Care Plans | Proj/Clin Dir Ongoing
and providing/coordinating services |
Philanthropic funding for | Crises are thwarted and seif- 1. Work closely w/ J1 staff and community Proj. Dir. Ongoing
€mergency Services is sufficiency is encouraged partners to ensure that all
identified, facilitated, and | through continued support philanthropic/charity programs are
made available to service | and use of Veterans Count, identified and accessed, including CERF.
members/families; CERF, and other 2. Coordinate donations of material goods and | Prog. Assistant | Ongoing
Veterans Count i3 philanthropic programs, requests for material goods
promoted as sustainable allowing ongoing provision 3. Continue to provide emergency funding Proj. Dir; VP Ongoing
philanthropic source of of emergency financial through Vets Count using established Major Gifts
flexible funding. assistance to eligible service funding request and approval protocol
members/ families in contex 4. Ensure service member/family member Proj. Dir; VP Ongoing
of comprehensive care testimony at Veterans Count Advisory Major Gifts (quarterly)
planning Board meetings and events :
5. Provide financial assistance data reporting | Proj. Dir; Office { Ongoing
to Vets Count upon request Mgr (quarterly)
6. Meet with Vets Count financial Proj. Dir; VP Ongoing
subcommittee chair to review fund use Maj. Gifts (quarterly)
7. Represent program to media and at PR and | Proj. Dir., Clin | As
fundraising events with proper protocol as Dir. requested
requested
8. Help coordinate NHNG’s Military Culture | VP Maj. Gifts. | Mar/Apr (or
101 for Veterans Count Advisory Board, Proj. Dir. according to
MGH-Red Sox-HBP reps and ESNH senior timeframe
leadership established
by NHNG)
Contractor’s Initials: KS \\\
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Exhibit A-1 DCSP Workplan

Goais/Outcomes

Performance Standards

Lctivities

Partnerships with existing
community and military
resources ensure that
services are available to
meet and support
identified needs pre,
during, and post-
deployment

Existing programs are
identified and made
accessible to service
members/families. DCSP
Care Coordination 1s
embedded in deployment
cycle experience and
effective, integral part of the
continuum of full cycle
support s. Services
identified in Care Plans are
available locally with
minimal red-tape and
maximal use of existing
resources and prograrms
(funded through other
streams when possible)

1. Ensure strong and increasingly effective
partnership with J1 team:

a. Care Coordination team to attend bi-
monthly J1-CC meetings re communication/
coordination issues & objectives

b. Proj. Dir. communicates with J1 Officers,
Military Liaison, and other key J1 staff
regarding all important programmatic jssues
and in coordination of Gate events, for
Guard and Reserves deployments — weekly
meetings with Military Liaison and
minimum of monthly meeting w/ J1 Deputy
Officer

c. Designated Care Coord liaison attend
weekly Case Mgt meeting and bi-weekly J1
staff meeting to share info/concerns/et

d. Clinical Director meet/communicate
regularly w/ DPH for Critical Case Review
and oversee team wraparound Boocsm
process |

e. Continue School/Education initiative with
interdisciplinary CC and J1 ooBBEoo
chaired by Military Liaison

f.  Monitor Care Coordination to ensure .%mﬁ J1
programs and personnel are engaged
whenever possible and warranted

[@]

Page 20 of 52
Person/s Timeline/
Responsibie Deadline
All DCSP Ongoing
personnel
e T

Contractor’s Initials:
Date:

Tl S

\N\\\\\w\\\i
e




Exhibit A-1 DCSP Workplan

Page 21 of 52

Gozls/Outcomes Performance Standards % Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsible Deadline
Partnerships with existing | Existing programs are 2. Ensure strong and increasingly effective Project Ongoing
community and military identified and made partnership with DHHS-DCBS-CBMP and | Director,
resources ensure that accessible to service other DHHS programs: Clinical
services are available to members/families. DCSP Director, CC
meet and support Care Coordination is a. Proj. Dir. meet minimum of monthly w/ Staff
identified needs pre, embedded in deployment Bureau Chief of CBMP to ensure awareness
during, and post- cycle experience and of statewide issues in DHHS system.
deployment effective, integral part of the b. Notify Bureau Chief. of upcoming trainings,
continuum of full cycle meetings, drill/Gate events, PR events,
support s. Services emergent issues, etc
identified in Care Plans are c. Proj. Dir and/or Clin. Dir participate in NH
available locally with VetNET and Community Programs
minimal red-tape and workgroups .
maximal use of existing d. Ensure Bureau Chief is aware/involved in
resources and programs program activities and policies
(funded through other
streams when possible)
3. Ensure strong and increasingly effective Proj. Dir., Clin. | Ongoing
- partnership with VA system: Dir., CC staff
a. Attend monthly VA OEF-OIF Community
Partners Meeting
b. Include VA personnel in J1-CC team
meetings as warranted
c. Monitor CC referrals to ensure that
appropriate service members are referred to
VA system or Vet Center services whenever
possible/warranted
Contractor’s Initials: |mvu\‘\‘)
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Goals/Outcomes Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
: Responsible Deadline
Partnerships with existing | Existing programs are 4. Ensure strong and increasingly omooa,\ow DCSP staff and | Ongoing
community and military identified and made partnership with local community programs: | management
resources ensure that accessible to service |
services are available to members/families. DCSP a. Care Coordinators participate in ooBB:?Q
meet and support Care Coordination is resource committees/meetings in their |
identified needs pre, embedded in deployment regions — particularly those geared to
during, and post- cycle experience and military needs
deployment effective, integral part of the b. Track referrals per case on monthly basis
continuum of full cycle per requirements outlined in RFP to o:mﬁ_:o
support s. Services community programs being utilized in mt
identified in Care Plans are geographic regions
available locally with
minimal red-tape and 5. Offer key services through Easter Seals and | Proj. Dir. and Ongoing
maximal use of existing subcontracted providers as needed with DCSP staff/sub-
resources and programs emphasis on using free or otherwise-funded | contractors
(funded through other existing resources: m
streams when possible) !
a. Vocational (resume prep, job development
and placement) services provided through
ESNH Vocational Services division and/or
other local service providers when existing
resources are unavailable or insufficient]
b. Financial Counseling provided by Jena |
Palisoul-Greenback Guides and/or ﬂoom;
financial services providers
¢. Personal/Couples/Child Counseling |
provided by Care Coordinators as :ooaoa
when VA, Vet Center, local ooB:EEJ\.
mental health/clinical providers, etc. m&
insufficient, unavailable or inaccessible
d. Children’s services (care, respite) ,
” Contractor’s Initials: .mw\..\\\q.li
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Goals/Cutcomes

Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/ J
Responsible Deadline
e. Monitor care plans/monthly reporting to
ensure that existing services are accessed
whenever possible and appropriate

Partnerships with existing | Existing programs are 6. Explore additional creative partnerships and | Proj. Dir (with | Ongoing
community and military identified and made means for leveraging additional resource as | in-kind support
resources ensure that accessible to service part of unified team (military, DHHS, VA, | of ES Senior
services are available to members/families. DCSP Vets Count, ESNH, community programs): | Management)
meet and support Care Coordination is and designees
identified needs pre, embedded in deployment a. Continue to work as unified partnership, from Vets
during, and post- cycle experience and engaging all partners in working with Mass | Count, DHHS
deployment effective, integral part of the General Hospital -Red Sox Home Base and NHNG

continuum of full cycle Program personnel to establish MOU and partnership

support s. Services plan that will address unmet needs of NH

identified in Care Plans are service members/families

available locally with b. Engage in ongoing discussion with service

minimal red-tape and members/families, designees from DHHS,

maximal use of existing NHNG, VA, ES, Vets Count, community

resources and programs orgs, etc to understand needs and ensure

(funded through other partnership activities address unmet needs

streams when possible)
Resource list 1s All personnel and clients 1. Monthly tracking of referrals Proj. Dir. and Monthly

maintained, expanded, and
continuously updated

involved in DCSP have
access to up-to-date
information about local
resources

2. Care Coordinators constantly review w/
their clients the effectiveness of different
programs accessed

3. Care Coordinators report back to program
on community program effectiveness/level
of service

4. Update resource list monthly as indicated

5. Participate as directed by NHNG J1
leadership in web-based resource directory

project

CC team

and ongoing
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Goals/Outcomes | Performance Standards Activities H Person/s Timeling/ #
Responsible Deadline J
Sufficient staffing is Gate 1 A/B events result in 1. Communicate closely with Military Liaison | Proj. Dir,, Ongoing
available for weekend over 90% sign-up rate. and J1 administrative staff to ensure aware | Office Mgr.
activities (Yellow Ribbon | DCSP Care Coordination of events schedule and schedule changes
“Gates,” drill services are represented and 2. Obtain info about unit %Eommﬁ?om msmm_ Proj. Dir.,, Ongoing
presentations, other events | made available to service key issues affecting the unit prior to Gate Intake Coord.,
as indicated) members/families at all 1 A/B presentations | Clin Dir.
relevant military/drill events 3. Communicate closely with Military Cw%os Proj. Dir., Clin | Ongoing
throughout the deployment unit commanders, and designees to ozm%o Dir., Intake
cycle Gate 1 A/B details, expectations, etc, are Coord.
understood and met ,
4. Implement master schedule and secure fﬁ Proj. Dir., Ongoing
attendance based on specific event/need; Office Mgr.,
keep CC’s aware of schedule changes ,, Prog. Asst.
QUALITY All stakeholders (service 1. Continue sub-contract with UNH-IOD 8 Proj. Dir., Mar 1
IMPROVEMENT/ members/families, military provide Program Evaluation UNH-10D Dir
ERFORMANCE leadership, Veterans Count 2. UNH-IOD Prog Eval consultant will create | UNH Consult Orgoing
IMPROVEMENT: Extent | partners, DHHS leadership, and implement client satisfaction mczoq
to which established community at large) have and work closely with DHHS, ZEZQ:
benchmarks have been access to valid, accurate ESNH, etc to promote high response Bﬁo
met is measured information regarding DCSP 3. UNH-IOD Prog Eval reviews Qomﬂmﬁ_amﬁm UNH Consult, | Monthly
activities extent to which monthly to include review of Office Manager
program meets established responsiveness and thoroughness in Beozsm
benchmarks; 90% of clients established performance measures
report goals were met and 4. UNH-IOD Prog Eval consultant will mEuB: UNH Consult Quarterly
they feel well taken care of, Quarterly Reports — summary of resu ﬁ of and as
can access services with random client record review to ensure| requested
dignity, and fee! that their services are being delivered and o:o:ﬁ
needs are anticipated by the needs addressed
system 5. UNH-IOD Prog Eval consultant will w\ch: UNH Consult Within 60
Final Report — including final fiscal msa days of end
programmatic summary, including RmE:m of of contract
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Goals/Outcomes

Performance Standards Activities Person/s Timeline/
Responsibie Deadline
client satisfaction survey ear
QUALITY DCBCS/CBMP and NHNG 1. Monthly meetings Proj Director Monthly
IMPROVEMENT/ have ongoing access to valid, 2. Submit monthly reports with all data as Proj Director Monthly
PERFORMANCE thorough, accurate instructed in RFP
IMPROVEMENT: information. Minimum of 3. Provide full access to UNH-IOD in Proj Director, Ongoing
Performance is reported to | 95% of the time the reviewing program data, conducting Office Manager
DCBCS/CBMP and administrative requirements surveys, observing events, etc, and ensure
NHNG per established are accurate and meet UNH-IOD is thorough and timely in
expectations deadlines as requested. completing its requirements
QUALITY Program design, partnerships I. Receive ongoing feedback and constructive | Proj. Dir., Clin. | Ongoing,
IMPROVEMENT/ and connections, policies and input from DHHS/NHNG, Veterans Count, | Dir via
PERFORMANCE procedures, operations, and and other stakeholders scheduled
IMPROVEMENT: outcomes are modified and 2. Work in partnership with DHHS CBMP and | Entire DCSP meetings
Contractor and improved as a result of NHNG J1 teams to modify program to staff and
subcontractors continually | effective ongoing reflect lessons learned continued
strive to improve quality communication and 3. Seek opportunities to continually establish | Proj. Dir., collabor-
and responsiveness while | evaluation and implement effective means of analyzing | UNH-IOD, ation
promoting cost efficiency cost/benefit NHNG and
and long-range DHHS
sustainability leadership
R un
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EXHIBIT B

PURCHASE OF SERVICES

Contractor’s Name: Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Contract Period: March 10, 2010 through September 30, 2010

1) Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Division
of Community Based Care Services shall reimburse the Contractor for service provided to eligible
individuals, by the Contractor, as detailed below and in Exhibit B-1 Budget and Exhibit B-2 Budget

Narrative:

Service Rate SFY 2010 SFY 2011 Total

Deployment Cycle Support Program| Cost Reimbursement | $888,025.00 | $604,816.00 | $1,492,841.00

2)

.3)

4)

5)

6)

It is understood that in no event shall the total payments made by the Division of Community
Based Care Services under this Agreenmient exceed the sum of $1,492,841.00.

Requests for Payment shall be submitted on a combined line item cost reimbursement basis for
expenses incurred, on a monthly basis, on the Contractor‘s letterhead. The Contractor shall also
submit monthly, quarterly and final financial reports that detail the line item expenses in
accordance with instructions provided by the State to the Contractor. The Division of Community
Based Care Services shall then pay the Contractor the amount of the request for payment which has
been approved by the Division of Community Based Care Services.

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all payments made by the State for direct and indirect costs
and expenses incurred for services rendered in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance with
applicable State and federal laws and regulations. The amount of any payment approved shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Division of Community Based Care Services.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation
applicable to the services provided, or if such services or products have not been satisfactorily
completed according to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

The Contractor and the State may adjust the contract budget through line item increases, decreases,
or_the creation_of new line items, provided these adjustments do not exceed the Contract price.

7)

Such adjustments shall only be made upon written request and written approval by the State with’
programmatic justifications. '

Payment Requests, and financial and program reports shall be sent to:

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Community Based Care Services
Community Based Military Programs

Hugh Gallen Office Park

129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building

Concord, N.H. 03301.

Contractor’s Initials:
Date:
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Agency Name

Easter Seals New Hampshire

Program Service Name

Deployment Cycle Support Procgram/Veterans Count

SFY 2010
Period: March 1, 2010 - June 30, 2010
=B+C B [o]
Frogram Service | Total Amount of Program Costs Requested Funding from DHHS Other Funding (in-Kind, efc)
Salaries & Benefits
Personnel Salaries/Wages $ 201,028 { $ 189,861 | $ 11,167 |
Fringe Benefits:
Taxes 7.65% $ 15,379 | § 14,524 1 § 854
Benefits 17.25% 3 346771 9% 32,7511 % 1,926
Total Salaries & Benefits $ 251,084 | § 237,136 | $ 13,948 |
Direct Costs
Meetings & Conventions $ 285719 2,857
Occupancy $ 35891% 3,589
Telephones $ - 800 | $ 800
Equipment $ 2,200 | § 2,200
Travel 3 9,333 | 9% 9,333
Printing $ 2,000 1§ 2,000
Advertising $ . 971 % 97
Subcontracts $ 547,883 | $ 547,883
Supplies ) 1,200 | § 1,200
Postage 5 2001 § 200
Financial Assistance $ 66,667 $ 66,667
3 -
$ -
Total Direct Cosis ) $ 636,826 | $ 570,159 | $ 66,667
Total Salary & Benefits and Direct Cost % 887910 | § 807,295 | $ 80,615
Adminisirative Costs 10 % of Total Direct Cost $ 88,791 | § 80,730 | $ 8,061
Direct Program Service Dollars
Total Program Costs and Funding $ 976,701 | $ 888,025 | %

Contractor's Initials:

Date:
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Agency Name Easter Seals New Hampshire m
Program Service Name Deployment Cycle Support Program/Veterans Count |
SFY 2011 |
Period: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010 _
A=B+C C
Program Service | Total Amount of Program Costs | Requested Funding from DHHS Other Funding (In-Kind, eic;
Salaries & Benefits
Personnel Salaries/Wages 3 150,771} % 142,396 | $ 8,375 |
Fringe Benefits: |
Taxes 7.65% 3 11,534 | § 10,893 | § 641
Benefits 17.25% 3 26,008 | $ 24563 | § 1,445
Total Salaries & Benefits $ 188,313 | § 177,853 | § 10,460 |
Direct Costs )
Meeting & Conventions 3 2143 1% 2,143
QOccupancy $ 2,692 % 2,692
Telephones $ 600 | § 600
Equipment $ - $ | -
Travel $ 7,000 | $ 7,000
Printing $ 1,500 | § 1,500
Advertising ) 7319% 73
Subcontracts d 356,922 | § | 356,922
Supplies $ 900 % a“ 300
Postage $ 150 | § ! 150
Financial Assistance $ 50,000 _ 8 50,000
$ B
$ - |
Total Direct Costs $ 421,980 | $ | 371,980 | $ 50,000
Total Salary & Benefits and Direct Cost $ 610,293 | $ 549,833 | $ 60,480
Adminisirative Costs 10 % of Totial Direct Cost $ 61,029 | § | 54,983 % 6,046
Direct Program Sarvice Dollars
Total Program Cosis and Funding $ 671,322 1 $ 604,816 | $ mm_momla
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Exhibit B-2 — Budget Justification
SFY 20610: March 1, 2010 — June 30, 2010

Salaries/Wages: Salaries/wages for ESNH staff with salaries/wages allocated to this program as
indicated on the Personnel Form. Note that Peter Collins is listed twice. He will hold a fuli-time key
program administrative position as Clinical Director providing training, supervision, guidance, critical
case review, etc. He will also work an additional 20 hours per week providing direct care — clinical
therapy/counseling on challenging, complex, and emergency clinical cases.

Fringe Benefits: Calculated as 7.65% for taxes and 17.25% for benefits per ESNH policy

Meetings & Conventions: $2,857 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of 5,000 for the 7-month
period. This funding will cover expenses associated with key ESNH program or administrative personnel
attending meetings/conventions/trainings for which there are travel/lodging/registration costs, as well as
food/refreshments for trainings hosted by ESNH and refreshments for military events (e.g, Gate 1A) as
requested by J1 leadership. NOTE: This line item does not include entire training costs — which inciude
salaries of staff (training costs are included in “Salaries/Wages™); or subcontractor fees for time spent in
training or providing training (included in “Subcontracts’)

Occupancy: $3,589 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $6281 for the 7-month period.
Funding covers occupancy expenses for ESNH’s main DCSP Program Office in Manchester and one
small care coordinator office in Franklin, NH.

Telephones: $800 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $1400 to cover estimated cost of cell-
phones for ESNH staff performing DCSP duties.

Equipment: $2,200 for purchase of 2 laptops and a file cabinet. One lap-top for new staff Care
Coordinator and another to replace Project Director’s old laptop that will likely need replacing before
June 2010. File cabinet to provide additional office storage for files of newly-referred and to-be-referred

service member/families

Travel: $9,333 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $16,333 for the 7-month period. This

covers mileage reimbursement for ESNH DCSP program and admin staff at agency rate of .28/mile.
Estimate the core DSCP team will travel 8333 miles per month for program-related duties (local and
statewide) based on historical analysis and projections.

Printing: $2,000 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $3,500 for the 7-month period. This will
include printing materials for Care Coordinator Training/Tool-kit for 30 additional sub-contracted
personnel, as well as professional printing of 1000 additional Service Member/Family Guide Books and

other necessary program materials.

Advertising: $97 is the 4-month proportion of entire request for $170 for advertising trainings, events,
etc, in local publications, and other miscellaneous advertising costs associated with staffing and operating

the DCSP program.

Subcontracts: $547,383 for the 4-month period is calculated as follows (rationales are provided below
this breakdown):

Direct Services: $398,400

Care Coordinator Training for subcontracted staff: $29,750

Military Cuiture Training for subcontracted staff: $17,000

Contractor’s Initials:
Date:
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Subcontracted staff attending J1/CC meetings: $21,250

Subcontracted staff attending regional supervision meetings: $17,000
Subcontracted staff attending local community meetings and military events: $6,071
NAMI contract: 513,150

UNH Program Evaluation contract: $15,262

TOTAL: $547,883

Subcontract Cost Rationales:

Direct Services: Estimate fees paid to subcontracted personnel for provision of direct services
and associated travel is average of $99,600 per month for total of $398,400 in the 4-month period.
Reimbursement rates agreed upon with subcontracting agencies are $75/hour for master’s level
clinical staff and $50/hour for other personnel performing direct services. These rates include
subcontracting agency expenses associated with salaries, fringe, mileage reimbursement, phone,
supplies, admin support, occupancy, and other overhead. Estimate DCSP will serve average of
600 service member/families in any given month and average 3 hours per service member/family
— for total of 1800 hours of direct service provided per month. Of the 1800 hours of direct service
provided per month, ESNH staff will provide 520 hours (based on historical performance and job
duty changes associated with expansion) to 175 service member/families and the subcontracted
personnel will provide 1280 hours to 425 service member/families. It is estimated that the
average travel time per service member/family served by subcontracted staff in any given month
will be ¥ (.5) hour for total of 1492 hours of direct service and travel time. It is further estimated
that approximately 1000 of the 1492 hours of service and associated travel will be clinical
counseling, assessment, or care coordination provided by licensed, master-level staff at the rate of
$75 per hour for total of $75,000 and 492 hours of service will be other necessary services
(financial counseling/budgeting, vocational services, and other social services) at the rate of $50
per hour for total of $24,600 — totaling $99,600 for one month and $398,400 for 4 months.

Care Coeordinator Training for subcontracted staff: Mandatory one-and-a-half day training at
ESNH will be provided to all new sub-contracted care coordinators. Training and estimated
travel time (to ESNH in Manchester) combined to average 14 hours reimbursable time per
attendee. Estimate 25 care coordinators at licensed/masters level of $75/hour at cost of $26,250
and 5 bachelor’s level care coordination personnel at cost of $3,500 for total of $29,750

Military Culture Training for subcentracted staff: Mandatory one-day training provided by
NHNG to all new subcontracted care coordination staff within the first four months. Estimate 8
hours per attendee, including travel time. 25 care coordinators at $75/hour at cost of $15,000 and
5 care coordinators at $50/hour at cost of $2,000 for total of $17,000

NAMI Connect Suicide Pre/Post-vention Trairing for subcontracted staff: Two mandatory
6-hour trainings (estimate 8 hours with travel) provided within first four months to 25 master’s
level staff. 400 hours at rate of $75/hour for total of $30,000

Subcontracted staff attending J1/CC meetings: Two meetings (March and May) with J1 team
and other partners. Estimate 5 hours for each meeting — 2 /% hr for team meeting, extra hour for
care coordinator-specific discussion after the meeting, and additional estimated travel time for
statewide staff to come to central location (NHNG HQ, ESNH, etc) for total of 10 hours per
subcontracted attendee. Estimate average aitendance rate of 25 subcontracted personnel at
$75/hour at cost of $18,750 and 5 subcontracted personnel at $50/hr at cost of $2,500 for total of

$21,250

1o roazgs
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Subcontracted staff attending regional supervision meetings: Monthly meetings with Clinical
Director for clinical supervision. Estimate 2 hours per meeting, including travel time (travel time
will be very limited because the supervision will be provided regionally at subcontractor
agencies, for total of 8 hours per subcontracted care coordinator. Estimate average attendance rate
of 25 subcontracted personnel at $75/hour at cost of $15,600 and 5 subcontracted personnel at
$50/hour at cost of $2,000 for total of $17,000

Subcontracted staif attending local community meetings and military events: Estimated
subcontracted care coordinator participation in two 2-hour local community partnership/resource
meetings and/or local military drill/Gate events over course of 7-month period with average of 1
hour total travel per person (half-hour per meeting/event). Five hours total. 25 subcontracted
care coordinators at $75/hr at cost of $9375 and 5 subcontracted care coordinators at $50/hr at
cost of $1,250 for total over 7-month period of $10,625. Four-month proportion is $6,071

NAMI contract: NAMI-NH subcontract for $21,270 (NAMI-NH will provide additional
$3,160 in-kind) for 7-month period to cover expenses for providing suicide prevention and post-
vention training to clinical staff, train military family members to lead support groups and
become family support program teachers, and provide ongoing support/evaluation/tech
assistance. Estimate that NAMI-NH will complete the Pre/Post trainings and training of support
group and family support program teachers/leaders in the 4-month SFY 10 period for total cost of

$13,150

UNH Program Evaluation contract: UNH-IOD subcontract for $26,710 for 7-month period to
provide program evaluation as described in narrative and work-plan. 4-month proportion is

$15,262

Supplies: $1,200 is the 4-month proportion of entire request for $2,100 for office supplies for ESNH
staff and program activities, including supplies for care coordinator Tool-Kits for all care coordinators,
supplies for events/presentations, and general office supplies for ESNH core team (subcontractors are

responsible for their own general office supplies).

Postage: $200 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $350 for postage; includes postage costs for
postal communication to service members/families and program materials to geographically dispersed

subcontracted personnel.

Financial Assistance: $66,667 is the 4-month proportion of entire estimate of $116,667 that will be
provided in direct emergency/flex fund assistance to service members/families in the DCSP program
during the 7-month period. This is a modest estimate; ESNH staff will work closely with Veterans Count
Advisory Board to ensure maximum funds are being raised through ESNH grant-writing, gift solicitation,
and Vets Count membership activities, and dispersed to eligible service members/families accordingly.

NOTE Regarding line item: “Direct Program Service Dollars” included en RFP budget form:
Because all direct services (Care coordination and other, related services) provided with grant funding
will be provided by program staff and subcontractors, this total is already included in previous line items.

e TN
. —y
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Exhibit B-2 — Budget Justification
SFY 201%: July 1, 2010 - September 30, 2010

Salaries/Wages: Salaries/wages for ESNH staff with salaries/wages allocated to this program as
indicated on the Personnel Form. Note that Peter Colilins is listed iwice. Ie will hold a full-time key
program administrative position as Clinical Director providing training, supervision, guidance, critical
case review, etc. He will also work an additional 20 hours per week providing direct care — clinical
therapy/counseling on challenging, complex, and emergency clinical cases.

Fringe Benefits: Calculated as 7.65% for taxes and 17.25% for benefits per ESNH policy

Meetings & Conventions: $2,143 is the 3-month proportion of entire request of 5,000 for the 7-month
period. This funding will cover expenses associated with key ESNH program or administrative personnel
attending meetings/conventions/trainings for which there are travel/lodging/registration costs, as well as
food/refreshments for trainings hosted by ESNH and refreshments for military events (e.g, Gate 1 A) as
requested by J1 leadership. NOTE: This line item does not include entire training costs — which include
salaries of staff (training costs are included in “Salaries/Wages”); or subcontractor fees for time spent in
training or providing training (included in “Subcontracts™)

Occupancy: $2,692 is the 3-month proportion of entire request of $6281 for the 7-month period.
Funding covers occupancy expenses for ESNH’s main DCSP Program Office in Manchester and one

small care coordinator office in Franklin, NH.

Telephiones: $600 is the 3-month proportion of entire request of $1400 to cover estimated cost of cell-
phones for ESNH staff performing DCSP duties.

Equipment: No equipment expenses anticipated for SFY'11

Travel: $7,000 is the 3-month proportion of entire request of $16,333 for the 7-month period. This

covers mileage reimbursement for ESNH DCSP program and admin staff at agency rate of .28/mile.
Estimate the core DSCP team will travel 8333 miles per month for program-related duties (local and
statewide) based on historical analysis and projections.

Printing: $1,500 is the 3-month proportion of entire request of $3,500 for the 7-month period. This will
include printing materials for Care Coordinator Training/Tool-kit for 30 additional sub-contracted
personnel, as well as professional printing of 1000 additional Service Member/Family Guide Books and

other necessary program materials.

Advertising: $73 is the 3-month proportion of entire request for $170 for advertising trainings, events,

etc, in local publications, and other miscellaneous advertising costs associated with staffing and operating "~

the DCSP program.

Subcontracts: $356,922 for the 3-month period is calculated as follows (rationales are provided below
this breakdown):

Direct Services: $298,800

Subcontracted staff attending J1/CC meetings: $21,250

Subcontracted staff attending regional supervision meetings: $12,750

Subcontracted staff attending local community meetings and military events: $4,554

NAMI contract: $8,120

UNH Program Evaluation contract: $11,448

TOTAL: $356,922

Contractor’s Initials:
Date:
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Subcontract Cost Rationaies:

Direct Services: Estimate fees paid to subcontracted personnel for provision of direct services
and associated travel is average of $99,600 per month for total of $298,800 in the 3-month period.
Reimbursement rates agreed upon with subcontracting agencies are $75/hour for master’s level
clinical staff and $50/hour for other personnel performing direct services. These rates include
subcontracting agency expenses associated with salaries, fringe, mileage reimbursement, phone,
supplies, admin support, occupancy, and other overhead. Estimate DCSP will serve average of
600 service member/families in any given month and average 3 hours per service member/family
— for total of 1800 hours of direct service provided per month. Of the 1800 hours-of direct service
provided per month, ESNH staff will provide 520 hours (based on historical performance and job
duty changes associated with expansion) to 175 service member/families and the subcontracted
personnel will provide 1280 hours to 425 service member/families. It is estimated that the
average travel time per service member/family served by subcontracted staff in any given month
will be %2 (.5) hour for total of 1492 hours of direct service and travel time. It is further estimated
that approximately 1000 of the 1492 hours of service and assoclated travel will be clinical
counseling, assessment, or care coordination provided by licensed, master-level staff at the rate of
$75 per hour for total of $75,000 and 492 hours of service will be other necessary services
(financial counseling/budgeting, vocational services, and other social services) at the rate of $50
per hour for total of $24,600 — totaling $99,600 for one month and $298,800 for 3 months.

Subcentracted staff attending J1/CC meetings: Two meetings (July and September) with J1
team and other partners. Estimate 5 hours for each meeting — 2 %2 hr for team meeting, extra
hour for care coordinator-specific discussion after the meeting, and additional estimated travel
time for statewide staff to come to central location (NHNG HQ, ESNH, etc) for total of 10 hours
per subcontracted attendee. Estimate average attendance rate of 25 subcontracted personnel at
$75/hour at cost of $18,750 and 5 subcontracted personnel at $50/hr at cost of $2,500 for total of

$21,250

Subcontracted staff attending regional supervision meetings: Monthly meetings with Clinical
Director for clinical supervision. Estimate 2 hours per meeting, including travel time (travel time
will be very limited because the supervision will be provided regionally at subcontractor
agencies, for total of 6 hours per subcontracted care coordinator. Estimate average attendance rate
of 25 subcontracted personnel at $75/hour at cost of $11,250 and 5 subcontracted personnel at
$50/hour at cost of $1,500 for total of $12,750

Subcontracted staff attending local community meetings and military events: Estimated
subcontracted care coordinator participation in two 2-hour local community partnership/resource
meetings and/or local military drill/Gate events over course of 7-month period with average of 1
hour total travel per person (half-hour per meeting/event). Five hours total. 25 subcontracted
care coordinators at $75/hr at cost of $9375 and 5 subcontracted care coordinators at $50/hr at
cost of $1,250 for total over 7-month period of $10,625. Three-month proportion is $4,554

NAMI contract: NAMI-NH subcontract for $21,270 (NAMI-NH will provide additional
$3,160 in-kind) for 7-month period to cover expenses for providing suicide prevention and post-
vention training to clinical staff, train military family members to lead support groups and
become family support program teachers, and provide ongoing support/evaluation/tech
assistance. Estimate that NAMI-NH will facilitate up to 20 sessions (Faimily-to-Family and
Parents Meeting the Challenge) in the 3-month SFY11 period for total cost of $8,120

((K;')/A
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UNH Program Evaluation contract: UNH-IOD subcontract for $26,710 for 7-month period to
provide program evaluation as described in narrative and work-plan. 3-month proportion is
$11,448

Supplies: $900 is the 3-month proportion of entire request for $2,100 for office supplies for ESNH staff
and program activities, including supplies for care coordinator Tool-Kits for all care coordinators,
supplies for events/presentations, and general office supplies for ESNH core team (subcontractors are
responsible for their own general office supplies).

Postage: $150 is the 4-month proportion of entire request of $350 for postage; includes postage costs for
sending postal communication to service members/families and program materials to geographically
dispersed subcontracted personnel. :

Financial Assistance: $50,000 is the 3-month proportion of entire estimate of $116,667 that will be
provided in direct emergency/flex fund assistance to service members/families in the DCSP program
during the 7-month period. This is a modest estimate; ESNH staff will work closely with Veterans Count
Advisory Board to ensure maximum funds are being raised through ESNH grant-writing, gift solicitation,
and Vets Count membership activities, and dispersed to eligible service members/families accordingly.

NOTE Regarding line item: “Direct Program Service Dollars” included on RFP budget form:
Because all direct services (Care coordination and other, relaied services) provided with grant funding
will be provided by program staff and subcontractors, this total is already included in previous line items.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXRIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1. Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenanis and agrees that all tunds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees as

follows:

2. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of
individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and state laws,
regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

3. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by the

Department.

4. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor shall
maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ali information necessary
to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the Department requests. The Contractor
shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the

Department may request or require.

5. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor
hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an appiication form
and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with

Department regulations.

6. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or make a
payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or the State in
order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this Contract. The State
may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is determined that payments,
gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by any officials, officers, employees
or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

7. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto, that
no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for any purpose or for
any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract and no payments shall be
made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided prior to the date on which the
individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the federal regulations} prior to a
determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

8. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services hereunder at a
rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate which exceeds the
amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the auality of such service, or at a rate which exceeds the rate
charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors for such service. If at any time
during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department
shall determine that the Contractor has used payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than

‘_f;,,._.,
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such costs, or has received payment in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the
Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

8.1 Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;

8.2 Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

8.3 Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make such
repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is permitted to determine
the eligibility of individualis for services, the Contractor agrees to reimburse the Department for all funds
paid by the Department to the Contractor for services provided to any individual who is found by the
Department to be ineligible for such services at any time during the period of retention of records
established herein. '

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

9. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor covenants
and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

9.1 Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs and
other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and ail income received or
collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be maintained in accordance with
accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and expenses,
and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records
requested or required by the Department.

9.2 Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records regarding the provision
of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such services.

9.3 Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

10. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of Office
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non Profit
Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities
and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as they pertain to financial

compliance audits.

10.1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their designated
representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for

purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

10.2 Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it
is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal
audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the Contract to which
exception has been taken or which have been disaliowed because of such an exception.

11. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected in

conneciion with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not be
.-—__.L...o;:’///;"ﬁ
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disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of the
Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to public officials
requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes directly connected to the
administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that the use or disclosure by any party
of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not directly connected with the administration of
the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited
except on written consent of the recipient, his attorney or guardian.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in the
Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

12. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

12.1 Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of all
costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and containing such
other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to justify the rate of payment
hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form designated by the Department or

deemed satisfactory by the Department.

12.2 Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term of
this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall contain a
summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal and other information

required by the Department.

13. Completion of Services: Disaliowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Depariment of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation hereunder,
the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the termination of the
Contract} shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the
Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are disallowed or to recover such

sums from the Contractor.

14. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared during
or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following statement:

14.1 The preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services, with
funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available
or required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities for
providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county
and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers pursuant to iaws which shall
impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of
the services at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for the operation of the
said facility or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and
will at all times comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract
the facilities shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire
Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning

codes, by-laws and regulations.

LS .
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS - DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the folowing terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be allowable
and reimbursabie in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance with state and
federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of: the Contractor Manual which is entitied
"Financial Management Guidelines"” and which contains the regulations governing the financial activities of
contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms required
by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible individuals by the
Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth the total cost and
sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Coniractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the

Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MARNUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and federal
regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this Contract
will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

T e
4"/;7’
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STANDARD EXHIBIT C-1
ADDITIONAL SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Subparagraph 14.1.1 of the General Provisions of this contract is deleted and the following
subparagraph is added:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability against all claims of bodily injury, death or property
damage, in amounts of not less than $250,000 per claim and $1,000,000 per occurrence and
excess umbrella liability coverage in the amount of $15,000,000 per occurrence, and

Contractor’s Initial’s: /7 L
Date: Voo ST 0
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D;
41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitie D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.}). The January
31, 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register
{pages 21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c} of the
regulation provides that a grantee {and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of ceriificates
for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below
is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant.
False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using
this form should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will cantinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of

such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and :
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace; q: A .
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials~
Standard Exhibit D - Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements A }_\ / ;
January 2009 Date:
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{d)

(e)

(f)

Page 41 of 52

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition
of employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and

(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}{2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working, unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of
such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d}{(2}, with respect to any employee who is so convicted —

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and
including termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g} Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (¢}, (d), (e}, and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work
done in connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, state, zip code} (list each location)

Check []if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

From: 3/10/2010 To: 9/30/2010

&g—jer Seals A

(Contractor Name)

{Period Covered by this Certification)

Cin Tremmoe . Chid Fiopncind Offrc™
[ I e of , L Rico rinondio d 1T

{Name & Title of Authofized Contractor Representative)

A »

I8

-

{Contractor Representative Signature)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit D — Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace Requirements
January 2009
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MH Depariment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXRIBIT E

CERTIFICATICN REGARDING {.OBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31
U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMARN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title |V

Contract Period: 3/ 10/ 2010 through 9/ 30/ 2010

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

{1)  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for infiuencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connecticn
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {(and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

contractor).

{2} i any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.}

(3} The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction

—was-made-or-entered-into——Submission-of-this-certification Jis-a prerequisite for making or entering into this

transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each

such failure.

\—-{i; / ‘ A,
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NH Benartment of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the
provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76
regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the
Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract}, the prospective primary participant is
providing the certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. if necessary, the prospective
participant shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The
certification or explanation will be considered in connection with the NH Department of
Health and Human Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to enter into this
transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this
transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance
was placed when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later
determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneocus
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS
may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS
agency to whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective
primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier
covered transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,”
“proposal,” and “voluntarilty excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out
in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order
12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal {contract) that,
should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter
into any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended,
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction,

unless authorized by DHHS.
P4
C‘Z,"Lj,
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations Contractor Initials: -
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7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without
modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lovwer tier
covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended,
ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered transaction, uniess it knows that
the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by
which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not
required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a
system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this
clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that
which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business

dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
{1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that

it and its principals:

{a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or

agency;

{b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federa!l or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or

receiving stolen property;

ey “are not presently “indicted—for—otherwise—eriminally—or—civilly——charged by —a— .

governmental entity {Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses
enumerated in paragraph (l}(b} of this certification; and

{d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or
more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

{2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in
this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this

proposal {contract).

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations

Standard Exhibit F —

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal {contract), the prospective lower tier
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief

that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any
federal department or agency.

(b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal

(contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract)
that it .will include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,
ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without
modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier

covered transactions.
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NH Department of Heaith and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the

Contractor’s representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to
execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable
efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990.

L’/é//} N
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or
leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day
care, education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by
Federal programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract,
loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’'s services provided in private
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for
inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in
the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor’s representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to

execute the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children

Act of 1994.
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MH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
' BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMIENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for Privacy and
Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have
access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions

a. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated
record set” in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

b. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in
45 CFR Section 164.501.

c. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care
operations” in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

d. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and -Accountability Act of 1996,
Public Law 104-191.

e. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

f. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable
Health Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of

Health and Human Services.

g. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term
“protected health information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Busmess Assocnate from or on behalf of Covered Enmy

h. : “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in
45 CFR Section 164.501.

i. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human
Services or his/her designee.

- » “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operaticns Contractor Initials:

Standard Exhibit | — HIPAA Business Associate Agreement /
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k. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time.

(2) Use and Disclosure of Protecied Healih Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the
Agreement. Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the

Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
(i) for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
(ii) as required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
(iii) for data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.
c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PH!

to a third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances
from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to
immediately notify Business Associaie of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has

obtained knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disciosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to
object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. |f Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has
agreed to be bound by additional restrictions on the uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI pursuant to
the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not
disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity,
in writing, any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, of which it becomes aware, within two {2} business days of becoming aware of such
unauthorized use or disclosure or security incident.

b. Business Associate shall use administrative, physical and technical safeguards that

reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of protected health information,
in electronic or any other form, that it creates, receives, maintains or transmits under this Agreement, in
accordance with the Privacy and Security Rules, to prevent the use or disclosure of PHI other than as permitted

by the Agreement.

C. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance

with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.
g T
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d. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under
Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the
Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’'s intended business associates, who-will be receiving
PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates
who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling
Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity
for an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business
Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment
to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHi and information related
to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity
for a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures
with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

IR In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the
individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

ke  \Within_ ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the

Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up
tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed
to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the Agreement, to such PHI
and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible,
for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. [f Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has

been destroyed.
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{4) Obligations of Covered Entiiy

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that
such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

C. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that
such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

(5} Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit [. The Covered Entity may either irmmediately terminate the Agreement or
provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered
Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the

violation to the Secretary.

{G) Miscellaiicous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the
same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, as amended from time to time. A reference in the
Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section

as in effect or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to amend
the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the changes in the
requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowiedges that it has no ownership rights with respect to
the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered
Entity to comply with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s} or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be given effect
without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit t regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of PHI,
extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification provisions of
section 3.d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.
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